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PREFACE

1n the curricular structure introduced by this University for students of Post-Graduate
degree programme, the opportunity to pursue Post-Graduate course in Subject introduced
by this University is equally available to all learners. Instead of being guided by any presumption
about ability level, it would perhaps stand to reason if receptivity of a learner is judged in the
course of the learning process, That would be entirely in keeping with the objectives ofopen
education which does not beheve in artificial differentiation.

Keeping this in view, study materials of the Post-Graduate level in different subjeets
are being prepared on the basis ol'a well laid-out syllabus. The course structure combines the
best clements in the approved syllabi of Central and State Universitics in respective subjects,
It has been so designed as to be upgradable with the addition of new information as well as
resulls ol fresh thinking and analyses.

The aceepted methodology of distance education has been followed in the preparation
of these study materials. Co-operation in every form of experienced scholars it indispensable
fora work ol this kind. We, therelore, owe an enormous debt of gratitude to everyone whose
tircless efforts went into the writing, editing and devising of proper lay-oul of the meterials.
Practically speaking, their role amounts to an involvement in invisible teaching, For, whoever
makes use of these study materials would virtually derive the benefit of learning under their
collective care without each being seen by the other.

The more a learner would scriously pursue these study matetials the easier it will be
for him or her to reach out to larger horizons of a subject, Care has also been taken to make
the language lucid and presentation attractive so that they may be rated as quality self-leaming
materials. If anything remains still obscure or difficult to follow, arrangements are there to
come lo terms with them through the counsclling sessions regulacly available at the network of
study centres set up by the University,

Needless lo add, a great part of these efforts is still experimental—in fact, pioneering in
certain arcas. Naturally, there is every possibility of somg lapse or deliciency here and there.
[Towever, these to admit of rectification and lurther improvement in due course. On the whole.,
therefore. these study materials are expeeted Lo evoke wider appreciation the more they
receive serious attention of all concerned.

Professor (Dr.) Subha Sankar Sarkar
Vice-Chancellor
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Unit 1 [] Disclosure in Company Accounts

Structure
1.0 Objective
1.1 Introduction
1.2 Objectives of Disclosure
1.3 Need for Regulation of Corporate Accounting and Reporting
1.4 Disclosure in Company Accounts as per Companies Act, 1957
1.4.1 Maintenance of books of account and their related provisions
1.4.2 Preparation and Submission of Annual Accounts
1.4.3 Audit of Accounts
1.4.4 Directors’ Report
1.5 Disclosure in company accounts as per Accounting Standards of ICAI
1.6 Disclosure in company accounts as per SEBI guidelines
1.7 Summary
1.8 Eier{:ises
1.9 Questions

1.10 Suggested Readings

1.0 Objective

By the time you have gone through this chapter you should be able to !
% understand the disclosure requirements of the Companies Act, 1956;

% know the disclosure requirements as per the Accounting Standards prescribed
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAL) up to June, 2002;
and

% know the disclosure requirements as per the Securities and Exchange Board of
India (SEBI) guidelines. '



1.1 Introduction

Financial statements are usually prepared to provide useful financial information to
the users. One may argue that only financial information is to be disclosed through
preparation and presentation of company accounts. Only linancial information is not
sufficient to satisfy the need of the large number of users. Considering the need of
different interested parties—investors in particular and others in general—information
must mean both financial information and non-financial information, which are very
much useful to the users in taking potential economic decisions, In the context of
globalisation, corporate reporting should be nced based of the investors and other
interested parties, In India, many companics do not provide information according to the
need of the users. In order to ensure adequate and effective corporate reporting in the
interests of the investors and others, disclosure requirements of the Companies Act 1956,
the Accounting Standards (AS) as prescribed by the TCAT and the SEBIT guidelines are
required to be followed strictly.

1.2 Objectives of Disclosure

Now-a-days accounting is recognised as a prestigious profession. In order to
discharge the responsibilities of any profession properly, one has to perform differcat
functions. Accounting is not an exception to this rule. So accounting has to perform
multifarious functions, The functions of accounting rightly starts from recording,
classilying, summarising, and measuring business transactions and ends atcommunicating
the resulls to the interested partics, Communication of information is made through
reporting. One may raise question as to the need for disclosure of information. Thus the
relevant 1$sues in corporate accounting disclosure are :

1. Are the companies violating disclosure requirements?

2. Arethe companics lagging far behind in disclosing information as per need of the
users?

3. Are the companies voluntarily disclosing potentially useful information to the
users for taking economic decisions?
Many more similar questions may be raised. All such questions attempt to evaluate the

present state of practices of disclosure of information by Indian corporate houses so that
users’ needs are adequately fulfilled or partially fulfilled. In this context, it is highly
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relevant to mention that prior to the 1980s, most of the Indian companies published the
legally required minimum financial information while reporting. They kept many facts
and figures hidden [rom the users. Some of the companies also violated the provisions
of law. At present some Indian companies disclose information voluntarily. But the types
and nature of such information are not conducive for taking uselul economic decisions,
Howcver, some Indian companies arc much ahead of the requirements in disclosing
potentially useful economic mformation in the form of annual accounts including
schedules, charts and other supplementary statements,

The corporate reporting practices in India are different among the corporate houses.
As a result users are nol getting uniform nature of information. Delivering information
of diverse nature by different companies is not considered a healthy practice and this
undoubtedly disseminates confusing and wrong signals to the users. Thus, keeping in
view the bringing of uniformity in corporate reporting practices in general and the
necessity of providing potentially useful information to the users for taking economic
decisions in particular, supplying better and qualitative information is the nced of the
hour.

The business circuit of corporate houses is not confined to any particular country’s
national territory; it is spread all over the world after the emergence of free market
economy in most of the countries, Also the free markel economy wave throughout the
world has brought many changes and will bring about more changes in all ficlds of
economic activily including the accounting. So, corporate reporting practices should be
improved over the existing oncs as to make them capable of satisfying the need of the
world-wide-scattered users. The uniformity in qualitative corporate reporting practices
helps not only the corporate houses in fulfilling their desired objects but also the national
cconomy in its smooth sailing towards goal.

From the above discussion it is apparent that corporate reporting practices are
yielding divergent outcomes not only for the users but also for the companics themselves
in the matter ol attracling prospective investors. Some companies are violating the law
ol the land in fulfilling the disclosure requirements, some are lagging far behind ofit and
only a few are providing voluntarily the gualitative information more than what is
expected. Thus, for providing qualitative information (o lulfill the need of the users,
corporate reporting practices should be governed by the law ol the land in the light of
changing economic scenario of the plobe.



1.3 Need for Regulation of Corporate Account and
Reporting

We usually go to physicians, nursing homes or hospitals for getting us cured of
diseasc or discases. Occasionally, we may go to the residence of our physician-friend
solely with an intention of showing social gesture. But, when we suller from diseases,
we perforce become patients of a physician who prescribes medicines for us in order to
cure diseases. Thus, disease forces us to go to physicians. Had there been no disease, we
would not have felt the need of doctors.

Similarly, had the Indian corporate reporting practices been ol proper guality and
capable of satisfying the need of users of information, the question of regulation of
corporale accounting and reporting would not arise at all. But the past and present state
of corporate reporting practices are not free from shorlcomings, i.c. diseases. Tor
complete curing or at least partial curing of diseases ol corporate reporting practices, we
must have to search for appropriate physician. Companies Act 1956, the ICAT and the
SEBI are the prominent physicians in India in detccting the diseases of corporale
reporting and as such, they preseribed accordingly.

With a view Lo bringing uniformity in accounting policies and reporting practices
and for providing potentially useful information, both linancial and non-financial, by the
corporate business houses to the users for laking economic decisions, the nced for
corporate legislation and regulating of accounting was felt during British Tndia regime.
As a result, in the year 1956, the first corporate legislation of independent India, the
Companies Act, 1956 was passed by the Parliament. Companies Act, 1936 was amended
several times according to the need of the social, economic, political and corporate
environment of the country. The main objective of corporate legislation and repulation
of accounting is to govern the corporate business houses within the framework of law in
the matter of preparation and presentation of annual accounts so thal comparability and
uniformity in respect of both financial and non-financial information can be delivered to
the worldwide scattered users.

In the present world, accounting is considered as one of the most important functions
of business. Naturally, the degree of regulation is ever increasing lo cope with the
changes that are taking place throughout the globe. The developed countries in particular
arc much ahead in the matter ol legislation and repulation of corporale accounting and
developing countries in general too have already taken necessary steps in this direction.
India is trying hard to cope with all these changes.
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The study of corporate accounting regulation has gained importance over the last
few years as it involves some vital issues like governance, administration, surveillance,
supervision, legislation, ete. in the domain of accounting. Since accounting is a multi-
disciplinary study, a variety of theories are moving around the concept of accounting
regulation. Accounting regulation refers to the act of making accounting process regular,
and/or the act of controlling, governing, correcting and adjusting it by rule or provision
of law.

Till the first quarter of the 20" century, when the objectives of the preparation of
financial statements were primarily to reveal the wealth penerated and income carned by
the proprictor, self-regulation was considered sufficient. Bul now., when accounting
provides more than one inlerested partics with quantitative financial information that
helps them to make decisions about the employment and use of resourees in business and
non-business entities and the reports are consulied by a large section of the people
(including government) who have a wide range of interest in them (though in varying
degrees), self-regulation has been justifiably replaced by some outside agencies. Thus,
in modern times, accounting regulation means regulation by other outside agencies hike
government, regulatory agencies established by government, ete,

Corporate form of businesses having separation between ownership and management
came into existence during mid-cighteenth century, and it required quantities of capital
greater than what could be provided by an individual or a family. These were soon proved
{o be the most satisfactory form ol business organisation and gradually were considered
a cornerstone in the trading structure of the world. The separation between ownership
and management has crealed another separation between ‘financing function® and
*managerial function’, as a result of which there has cropped up a number ol accounting
challenges and financial accounting and reporting has got an important social status.
Since managers of corporate business houses manage other people’s money rather than
their own, il cannot be expected that they should look over it with the same anxious
vigilance as the real owners do with respect to the management of the affairs of the
business including financial function. In this situation, fraud and misappropriation of
fund are also very likely to oceur. During 1960s, financial reporting system was made
the subject of much criticism on some strong and reasonable grounds, like (i) lack of
uniformity in accounting practice that made difficult the comparison of dilferent
companies; (ii) the multiplicity of accounting practiccs that made it possible for the
management (o select alternative presentations of financial results which allowed
earning to be manipulated and made it possible to coneeal cconomic realilics; ete.
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A government cannol allow this situation and act as a passive obscrver, It felt,
therefore, the necessity of regulating the corporate accounting and management, and
started promulgating the Companies Act, keeping in view the objective of protecting the
interests of investors and other interested partics. Again, cvery democratic government
with an aim of maximising the social welfare has the capacity of being an independent
and impartial regulator. Moreover, accounting profession of almest all countries is in
favour of imposing regulation on corporate accounting and reporting. Thus, regulation
ol accounting is not only desirable, but also essential in the interests of all concerned. But
there remain differences as to the approach of regulation among countries.

It is thereforc imperative to have regulation in accounting. Accounting has also
accepted its importance for its healthy improvement and progress. Several provisions of
the Companies Act, case laws and other regulatory requirements now guide both
maintenance of books of account and linancial reporting. It is to be remembered that
accounting regulation should be consistent with some pre-determined objectives, These
objeclives cannot, again, be static and uniform in all countries and throughout all times.

Rather they will be dependent on the changing socio-cconomic need of the couniry
concerned,

In India, the present [ramework of corporate accounting has a lepal backbone. The
corporate legislation in the form of the Companics Act, 1956 provides the basic rules and
guidelines for presenting final accounts. The accounts are kepl and presented according
to the Indian Accounting Standards (AS) issued by the Institutc of Charlered Accountants
of India (ICAT) which derives its authority and power from another legislation known as
the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949.The Securities and Lixchange Board of India
(SLEBL), a rcgulatory body, has been working and making rules for governing stock
markets in India over the last few years.

What the regulating agencics already did in respect of bringing uniformity in
corporate accounting and reporting practices, and in providing large number of users

with potentially uscful information for taking economic decisions, are to be examined
one by one in the paragraphs that follow.

1.4 Disclosure in Company Accounts as per Companies
Act, 1956

Every limited company must prepare at the end of cach financial year the Profit and
Loss Account and the Balance Sheet. Section 209 makes it compulsory to keep certain
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books of account along with their legal provisions and Section 210 governs the
preparation of the final accounts.
1.4.1 Maintenance of books of account and their related provisions :

According to Section 209, companies must maintain proper books of account for
proper recording along with their disclosure requirements for the following :

1. All moneys received and paid by the cmﬁpany and the matters in respect of which
the receipt and expenditure take place.

2. All purchases and sales made by the company.

3, All assets and liabilities of the company.

4. Companiesengaged in production, processing, manufacturing or mining activities,
must maintain proper books of account relating to utilisation of raw materials, labour,
ete. [Section 209(1)(d})].

5, Books of account and other books and papers must be open to inspection by
directors [Section 209(4)].

6. Books of account shall not deemed to be kept properly, il the books do not give
true and [air view of the state of affairs, and if those are not kept on acerual basis and
according to double entry system of accounting.

7. Defaulters will be punishable with imprisonment for 6 months and with fine of
Rs. 1,000,

8. Books of account of every company shall be open to inspection by the Registrar
or by such officers of the government as may be authorised by Central Government in
this behall. Such inspection may be made without giving any prior notice to the company
or any oflicer thercof [Section 209A].

1.4.2 Preparation and Submission of Annual Accounts :

Section 210 of the Companics Act, 1956 governs the preparation and submission of
annual accounts of a company. Main provisions are given below :

1. At every annual general meeting of the company, the Board ol Directors of the
company shall lay before the company :

(a) a balance sheel as at the end of the accounting period; and
(b) a prolit and loss account for that period,

2, In case of a company not carrying on business [or profit, an income and
expenditure account shall be laid before the company at its first annual gencral mecting
instead of profit and loss account.
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3. The profit and loss account (or the income and expenditure account) shall relate
to the period :

(a) in case of first annual general meeting of the company from the date of
incorporation of the company to a date not more than 9 months before the meeting; and

(b) in case of any subsequent annual general meeting from the date immediately
afier the period for which the account was last submitted to not more than 6 months before
the meeting.

4. The period for which the account has been prepared is referred to in this Act as
a*“financial year”. It may be less than or more than a calendar year, but it shall not exceed
15 months. However, with the permission of the Registrar, it may extend to 18 months.

In view of the amendment in the Income Tax Act, 1961, the financial year must begin

on ¥ April and end on 31*" March of the subsequent calendar year, w. e. £, financial year
ending 31% March 1989.

5. Every profit and loss Account shall give a true and fair view of the profit and loss
of the company for the financial year and subject to as aforesaid, comply with the
requirements ol Part 1T of Schedule VI, so far as they are applicable thereto [Section
211(2)].

6. Every balance sheet of a company shall give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs ol the company as at the end of financial year and shall, subject to the provision
of this section, be in the form sel out in Part I of Schedule VI, or as near thereto as
circumstances admit orinsuch other form as may be approved by the Central Government:
and in preparing the balance sheet due regard shall be had, as far as may be, to the general
mstructions for preparation of balanec sheet under the heading “Notes™ at the end of the
part [Section 211(1)].

7. The Companics (Amendment) Act, 1999 requires to prepare profit and loss
account and balance sheet in accordance with the accounting standards. Sub-sections
(3A), (3B)and (3C) inserted by the Actin section 211 of the Companics Act, 1956, which
contain these provisions, read as below :

(3A) : Every prolit and loss account and balance sheet ol the company shall comply
with the accounting standards,

(3B) : Where the profit and loss account and the balance sheet of the company do not
comply with the accounting standards, such companics shall disclose in its profit and loss.
and balance sheet (a) deviation form the accounting standards, (b) the reasons for such
deviation; and financial effect ansing due to such deviation,
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(3C) : For the purposes of this section, the lerms “accounting standards’ means the
standards of accounting recommended by the ICAT constituted under the Chartered
Accountants Act, 1949.

1.4.3 Audit of Accounts :

The important provisions relating to audit ol accounts ol a company are as follows :

1. The auditor shall make a report on the accounts examined by him and on balance
sheet and profit & loss account and other documents. The report shall state whether in
his opinion and to the best of information given to him. the said accounts give a true and
fair view, in case of balance sheet, of the state of affairs, and in case of prolit and loss
account, of the profit or loss. It also slates :

(a) whether he has obtained all information and explanations necessary for his
audit;

(b) whether proper books of account have been kept by the company and proper
returns have been received from branches, and whether the report on the accounts of any

branch oflice audited under Section 228 by a person other than the company’s auditor
has been forwarded to him; and

(¢) whether the company’s balance sheet and profit and loss account are in
agreement with the books and returns [Seetion227(2) and (3)].
2. Every auditor shall state whether, in his opinion, the profit and loss account and

balance sheet complied with the accounting standards referred to in sub-section (3C) of
section 211 and 227(3)(1)(d).

3. Every auditor shall have the right of access al all times to the books of account
and vouchers of the company whether kept at head ollice or elsewhere, and shall be
entitled to require {rom the officers, such information and explanalions as the auditor
think necessary. He shall also inquire :

(a) whether loans and advances made by the company have been properly  secured;

(b) whether transactions of the company are not detrimental to the intercst of the
company;

(c) where the company is not an investment company; whether the securilies are
sold at a price less then the purchased price;

(d) whether loans and advances made have been shown as deposits:

(e) whether personal expenses have been charged to revenue accounts;

(f) wherc it is stated in the books and papers that any shares have been allotted for
cash, whether cash has actually received, and if not, whether the position as stated in the
books of account is correct, regular and not misleading [Section 227(1) and (1A)].
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1.4.4 Directors’ Report :
The Directors’ Report of a company must contain the following :

1. There shall be attached to every balance sheet, a report by its Board of Dircetors,
with respect to : '

(a) the state of company’s affairs;
(b) the amount which il proposes o carry o any reserve;
(c¢) the amount which it recommends should be paid by way of dividend;

(d) material change and commitments, if any, affecting the financial position of
the company;

(¢) changes which have occurred in the nature ol company’s business in which
the company has an interest;

(f) name of each employee whose remuneration 1s al least Rs. 72,000 per vear or
Rs.6,000 per month;

(g) the conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange carmings,
and outgo;

(h+ unes of the employees who are the relatives of directors and managers; and

(i) every reservation, qualification or adverse remark contained in the auditor's
report [Section 217].

2. The report must state that the directors have :

(a) followed, in the preparation of annual accounts, the applicable accounting
standards with proper explanation with respect 1o material departures;

(b) selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and
loss of the company for that period;

(c) taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequatc accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. for safeguarding
the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;
and

{d) prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis under Section 21 T(2AA)
of the Companies (Amendment) Act, 2000,
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1.5 Disclosure in Company Accounts as per Accounting
Standards of ICAI

The main objective of accounting standard sefting is to maintain uniformity in the
presentation of economic data contained in the annual accounts of corporate enterprises.
In other words, it aims at harmonising the diverse accounting policics and practices
adopted by different enterprises and ensuring consistency in the reported information of
an enterprise {rom year to year so that users of financial statements are in a position to
understand and make proper use of the statements for decision purposes. The ICA]T has
prescribed 28 standards so lar. The most important Accounting Standards (AS) along
with disclosure requirements are explained as follows :

AS-1 : Disclosure of Accounting Policies

AS-1 deals with the disclosure of significant accounting policies followed in the
preparation and presentation of financial statements. Also it stales that going concern,
consistency and accrual are fundamental accounting assumptions that underlie the
preparation and presentation of financial statements.

Regarding disclosure requirements, it stipulates that :
(a) the significant accounting policies should normally be disclosed in one place;

(b) any change in the accounting policies which has a material effect in the current
period or which is reasonably expected to have a material effect in later period should
be disclosed; and

(c) the non-compliance of fundamental accounting assumption in the preparation
financial statements should be disclosed.

With effect from the accounting year commencing on or after 1:4.1993, it was made
mandatory for all enterprises.

AS-2 : Valuation of Inventories

This standard deals with the principles of valuation of inventories for the purpose of
financial statements. It defines inventory as a tangible property held (1) for sale in the
ordinary course of business (finished goods), (i) in the process of production for such
sale (work-in-progress), or (iii) for consumption in the production of goods or services
for sale including maintenance supplies and consumables other than machinery spares
(raw materials, stores and spares). Valuation of inventories should be at cost, or net
realisable value, which ever is less. The cost of inventory should comprise (a) all cost of
purchase (purchase price, duties and taxes, freight inward and other directly atiributable
expenses less discounts, rebates, etc.), (b) costs of conversion (dircet labour and
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overhead), and (c) other costs incurred in bringing the inventorics to their present
location and condition {excluding interest and borrowing costs).

As regards disclosure requirements, AS-2 siates that the financial statements
should disclose the following :

(i} the accounting policies followed in measuring inventory values including the
cost formula used, and

(i) total carrying amount of inventories and its classification appropriate to the
enterprise.

With effect from the accounting year commencing on or after 1.4.1999, it was
made mandatory lor all enterprises.

AS-3 ; Cash Flow Statements

The main objective of AS-3 is to disclose cash flows arising out of three broad
classifications so that users of cash flow information can evaluate solvency position and
project future cash flows of companies for taking economic decisions.

Regarding disclosure requirements, AS-3 states that a cash flow statement should
be divided into three heads, viz., (a) cash flows from operating activities, (b) cash flows
from investing activities, and (¢} cash flows from financing activities,

In India, preparation of cash flow statement is not mandatory for all companies.

But, with effect from the accounting year starting on or after 1.4.2001, it was made
mandatory in respect of :

(a) listed companies or companies whose shares and debentures are in the process
of enlisting on a recognised stock exchange in India;

(b) all other commercial, industrial and business enterprises whose turnover for
the accounting period exceeds Rs.50 crore,

AS-4 : Contingencies and Events Occurring after the Balance Sheet Date

It deals with the freatment in the financial statements of contingencies and events
oceurring after balance sheet date.

AS-4 requires disclosure only in respect of those contingencics and events, which
alfect the financial position to a material extent. It also requires that if a contingent loss
is not provided for, its nature and an estimate of its financial effeet, or a statement that
such an estimate cannot be made, should be disclosed.

It was made mandatory with effect from the accounting year starting on or after
1.4,1995 for all companies.
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AS-5 : Net Profit or Loss for the Period, Prior Period ltemis and Changes in
Accounting Policies

This standard deals with the treatment in the financial statements of prior period and
extraordinary items and changes in accounting estimates and accounting policies, Also,
it defines ordinary activities, extraordinary ilems, prior period items, accounting
estimates and accounting policies.

AS-5 requires disclosure in respect of :

1. any change in an accounting policy which has a material effect should be
disclosed in the period in which such change is made. But, where the cffect of such
change cannot be ascertained, wholly or parily, the fact should be disclosed.

2. any change in an accounting policy has no material effect in the current period
but is expecled to have a material effect in the later period, the fact of such change
should be appropriately disclosed in the period in which such change is made.

3. the nature and amount of each extraordinary item should be disclosed in the
profit and loss account.

With effect from 1.1.1987, it was made mandatory for all enterprises.

AS-6 : Depreciation Accounting

It deals with the accounting for depreciation and disclosure requirements in
connection therewith. Depreciation has a significant effect in ascertaining the results of
operation of an enterprise and in presenting its financial position,

AS-6 contains following important disclosure requirements in the financial
statements :

1. The historical cost or other amount substituted for historical cost of each class
of depreciable assets:

2. Total depreciation for the period for each class of assets: -

3. The related accumulated depreciation;

4. Method of depreciation used;

5. Depreciation rates or the useful lives of assets, il they are different from the
principal rates specilied in the statute governing the enterprise; and

6. Net suplus or deliciency (if material) of an asset disposed of, discarded,
demolished or destroyed.

With effect from the accounting year starting on or afier 1.4.1995, it was made
mandatory for all enterprises.
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AS-7 : Accounting for Construction Contracis

This standard deals with the accounting for construction contracts and disclosure
requirements therewith, The petiod covered by construction contracts is usually spread
over more than one accounting year and this poses many accounting problems relating
fo revenue rccognition and prescntation of figurcs of advances received, work-in-
progress, ete. in the financial statements. The standard recognises two methods of
accounting for construction contracts, viz., the percentage of completion method and the
completed contract method. When a contractor uses a particular method, then the same
should be applied for all other contracts. .

AS-7 requires a number of disclosure requirements in the financial statements,
Viz. !
1. The amount of construction work-in-progress;

2. Progress payments received and advances and retentions on account of
contracts included in construction work-in-progress; and

3. Changes in an accounting policy used for construction contracts giving the
effect of the change and its amount.

With effect from the accounting year commencing on or after 1.4.1991, it was
| made mandatory for construction companies.

AS-8 ;: Accounting for Research and Development

The standard deals with the treatment of costs of research and development in the
financial statements and their disclosure, AS-8 also identifies items of costs, which
comprise research and development and suggests that (a) the research and development
costs are to be charged to expenses in the period in which they are incurred, and (b) the
deferred research and development costs are to be amortised on a systematic basis.

i AS-8 requires the disclosure of the following in the financial statements :
1. Research and devel_c-pment costs, including the amurtisat_iun ol delerred costs,
charged as an expense of each period;

2. The unainortised balance, if any, of deferred research and development costs;
and

3. The accounting policy adopted for research and development costs.

With effect from the accounting year starting on or after 1.4.1991, it was made
mandatory for all companies.
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AS-9 : Revenue Recognition

This standard deals with the timing of recognition of revenue in the profit and loss
account of an enterprise. [t defines revenues as the gross cash inflow, receivables or other
consideration in the course of ordinary business activities of an enterprise from the (a)
sale of goods, (b) rendering services, and (¢) use of enterprise’s resources by others
yielding interest, royalties and dividends.

As regards disclosure in the financial statements, AS-9 stipulates that, in addition
to the disclosures required as per AS-1, an enterprise is required to disclose the
circumstances in whichrevenue reco gnition has been postponed pending the resolution
of significant uncertainties.

With effect from the accounting year commencing on or after 1.4.1991, it was
made mandatory for all companies.

AS-10 : Accounting for Fixed Assels

This standard deals with the identification of fixed assets, costs of fixed assets, their
accounting and disclosures. As per the standard, a fixed asset is an assct held with the
intention of being used for the purpose of producing or providing goods or services and
is not held for sale in the normal course of business. The gross book value of a fixed asset
should be either historical cost or revalued amount computed as per the standard. Cost
comprises its purchase price, including import dutics and other non-refundable taxes or
levies and any directly attributable cost of bringing the assets to its working condition
or its intended use. The standard once again states that only purchased goodwill should
be recorded as an item of fixed assets.

Regarding disclosure requirements, the following should be disclosed in the
financial statements ;

1. Gross and net book values of fixed assets at the beginning and end of the
accounting period showing additions, disposals, acquisitions and other movements;

2. Expenditure incurred on fixed assets in the course of construction or acquisition;
and :

3, Revalued amount substituted for historical costs of fixed assets, the method
applied to compute the revalued amounts, the nature of indices used, the year of any
appraisal made, and whether an external valuer was involved, in case where fixed
asscts are stated at revalued amounts.

AS-10 was made mandatory w, e [. the accounting year starting on or after
1.4.1991 for all enterprises. R
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AS-11 : Accounting for Effects of Changes in Foreipn Exchange Rutes

The standard deals with the issues in accounting for foreign currency transactions
and foreign branches. Also it decides exchange rate to use and how to recognise the effect
of changes in exchange rates in the linancial statements.

Reparding disclosure requirements, an enterprise should disclose the following :

1. The amount of exchange differences included in the net profit or loss for the
period;

2. The amount of exchange differences adjusted in the carrying amount of fixed
assets during the accounting period; and

3. The amount of exchange differences in respect of forward exchange contracts
lo be recognised in the profit or loss account for one or more subsequent accounting
periods.

AS-11 was made mandatory, w. e. f. the accounting year starting on or after
1.4.1995 for all enterprises. -

AS-12 : Accounting for Government Grarnis

AS-12 deals with the accounting for receipt of government grants by an enterprise

* and its disclosures in the preparation of financial statements. It is desirablé to give an
indication of the extent to which the enterprisc has benefited from such grant during the
accounting period with a view to facilitating both inter-period and inter-firm comparizon.

An enterprise should disclose the following in the financial statements :

1. Accounting policy for government grants, including methods of presentation:
and

2. The naturc and extent of government prants recognised, including grants for
non-operating assets given at a concessional rate or free of cost.

This standard was made compulsory w. e. f. the accounting year commencing on
or after 1.4.1994 for all enterprises.

AS-13 ; Accounting for Investments

AS-13 requires classification of investments into long term and current (short term)
investments on the basis of intention to hold such investments. Cost of an investment
comprises purchase price and acquisition charges such as brokerage, fees and stamp
duties. Long term investments are valued at cost and permanent deeline in market valug
is recognised while current investments are valued at cost or market price, whichever is
lower and are treated in the line of current assets.
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The following disclosures in the financial statcments are required to be made -

1. The accounting policies for the determination of amount of investment shown;

2. The amount included in the profit and loss account for : (i) interest, dividends
(showing separately dividends from subsidiary companies), and rentals on investments,
showing separately such income from long term and current investments., Gross
income should be stated, the amount of income tax deducted at source being included
under Advance Taxes Paid; (i1) prolits and losses on disposal of current investments
and changes in carrying amount of such investments; and (iii) profits and losses on
disposal of long term investments and changes in the carrying amount of such
investments.

3. Significant restrictions on the right of ownership, realisability of investments
or remiltance of income and proceeds of disposal;

4. The aggregate amount of quoted and unquoled investments, piving the
ageregate market value of quoted investments; and

5. Other disclosures as specifically required by the relevant statute governing the
enterprise.

With effect from the accounting year starling on or alter] .4.1995, it was made
mandatory for all enterprises.

AS-14 : Accounting for Amnlgamations .

This standard deals with the accounting for merger (where there is a genuine pooling
not only of the assets and liabilitics of the amalgamaling companies but also of the
_shareholders’ interests and of the businesses of these companies) and acquisition or
purchase (one company acquiring another company and as consequence the shareholders
of the acquired company normally do not continue to have a proportionate share in the
equity of the combined company or the business of the acquired company is not intended
to be continued) and disclosures in connection therewith. The standard recognises two
accounting methods of accounting for amalgamations. They are (a) pooling of interests
method, and (b) purchase method.

The pooling of interests method is adopted in case of an amalgamation in the nature
of merger whereas purchase method is used in case of an amalgamation in the nature of
purchase.

Under pooling of interests method, the assets, liabilities and reserves of the
transferor company are recorded by the transferee company at their existing carrying
amounts with suitable adjustments. Bul, under the purchase method, the transferee
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company accounts for the amalgamation either by incorporating the assets and liabilities
al their existing carrying amounts or by allocaling the consideration to individual
identifiable assets and liabilities of the transleror company on the basis of their fair values
at the date ol amalgamation.

AS-14 requires both general and specific disclosures as below :

General disclosures :

1. Names and peneral nature of business of the amalgamating companies;
2. Effective date of amalgamation for accounting purposes;

3. The method of accounting used to reflect the amalgamation; and

4, Particulars of the scheme sanctioned under a statute.

Additional disclosures under the pooling of interests method :

I. Description and number of shares issued, together with the percentage of each
company’s equity shares exchanged to effect the amalgamation; and

2. The amount of any difference between the consideration and the value of net
identifiable assels acquired, and treatment thereof.

Additional disclosures under the purchase method :

1. Consideration for the amalgamation and a description of the consideration paid
or contingently payable; and

2. The amount of any difference between the consideration and the value of nel
identifiable assets acquired, and the treatment thereof including the period of

amortisation of any goodwill arising on amalgamation,

With effect from the accounting year commencing on or after 1.4.1995, it was
made mandatory for all companies.

AS-15 @ Accounting for Retirement Benefils in the Financial Statements pj
Employers

The standard deals with the ascerlainment, accounting and disclosures of retirement
benefits in the financial statements of employers. Retirement benefit of employees
usually consists of provident fund, superannuation/pension, gratuity, leave encashment
benefil on retircment, post-retirement health and welfare schemes and other retirement
benefits.

24




I_ AS-15 contains the following provisions for disclosures :

1. In view of the diversity in practices used for accounting of retirement benefits
costs, adequate disclosure of method followed in defermination of such costs is
essential for an of the significance of such costs to an employer.

2. Retirement benefits costs are sometimes disclosed scparately for statutory
compliance. In other cases, they arc considered to be an element of employee
remuneration and their separate disclosure is not usually made.

3. When retirement benefit costs are measured on the basis actuarial valuation,
the date of such valuation and method of determination of periodical charges should
briefly be described where such charges are not based on actuarial valuation.

With effcet from the accounting year starting on or after 1.4.1995, it was made
mandatory for all companies.

AS-16 : Borrowing Cosis

This deals with the accounting for borrowing costs and disclosures thereol, Borrowing
costs are interest and other costs incurred by an enterprise with respeet to the borrowing
of funds. Borrowing costs that are directly atiributable in the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets should be capitalised. A qualifying assel is an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for the intended use or sale.
Other borrowing costs (which are not directly altributable to) are recognised as an
expense in the period in which they are incurred.

I'inancial statement of an enterprise must disclose the following :
1. Accounting policy adopted for borrowing costs; and
2. Amount of borrowing costs capitalised during the period.

With effect from the accounting year commencing on or after 1.4.2000, it was
made mandatory for all companies, ;

AS-17 : Segment Reporting

It deals with the disclosure of information on the basis of scgment of an enterprise
in the financial statcments. The objective of segment reporting is to establish principles
for reporting financial information in annual financial statements by segment 1.
information about the different types of product and scrvices an enterprise produces and
the different gecographical areas in which it operates.

Tt distinguishes between business (or industrial) segment and geographical segment
and identifics the factors that are to be taken into consideration in their determination.
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A business segment is a distinguishable component of an cnterprise that is engaged in
providing an individual product or service or group of related products or services and
that is subject to risks and returns that are different [rom those of other business segments,
On the contrary, a geographical segment is a distinguishable component of an enterprise
thatisengaged in providing productsor services within a particular cconomic environment
and that is subject to risks and returns that are different from those of components
operating in other economic environments.

After completion of identification of business and geographical segments,
management has (o ascertain whether these scgments are ‘reportable segments” [or
which segment information is required to be disclosed. As per the standard, a segment
with 10% or more of total revenues, profit (or loss) or identifiable asscts becomes a
reportable sepment. The standard also stipulates that if total external revenue attributable
to reportable segments constitutes less than 75% of the total revenue of the enterprise,
additional segments should be identified as reportable segments, even if they do not meet
the 10% thresholds, to malke the revenue of the reportable segments at least equivalent
to 75% of total revenue of the enterprisc.

Forthe purpose of disclosure of segmental information, the standard also distinguishes
between primary segment and secondary segment and suggests primary and secondary
reporling formats respectively for them. The dominant source and nature of risks and
returns of an enterprise determine the primary segment. or example, ifrisks and returns
of an enterprise are alfected predominantly by dilferences in the products and services
it produces, its primary [ormat for reporting scgment information should be business
segments, with secondary information reported geographically. Similarly, il risks and
returns of an enterprise are affected predominantly by the fact that it operates in different
countries or other geographical arcas, its primary format for reporting segmental
information should be geographical segments, with secondary information reported for
groups of related products and services,

According to AS-17, disclosure requirements in the financial statements are as
follows ;

|. Areportable segment must disclose its revenue, expenses, profit or loss, assets,
liabilities and accounting policies,

2. Once a segment disclosure is made in the previous accounting year based on
10% thresholds, disclosure of information for the same segment must be made in the
current year also in spite of failure to meet 10% thresholds along with previous year’s
ligures, unless it is impracticable 1o do so.
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AS-17 was mandatory with effeet from the accounting year 1.4.2001 for {Sm
companies or companies whose shares and debentures are in the process of enlisting
on a recognised stock exchange in India as evidenced by the board of directors’
resolution in this regard; and (b) all other commercial, industrial and business
enterprises whose turnover for the accounting period exceeds Rs.50 crore.

AS-18 : Related Party Disclosure

This standard deals with the reporting of related party relationships and transactions
between a reporting enterprise and related parties. The requirements of the standard are
not only applicable to the financial statement of each reporting enterprise but also to the
consolidated [inancial stalements presented by a holding company. Tt requires disclosure
of name of the related party and nature of related party relationships where control exists
in such relationship irvespective of whether not there have been transactions hetween
related parties,

AS-18 requires disclosure as noted below in the financial statement of reporting
cnterprise for transaclions between related parties, during the existence of related
party relationship ;

1. The name of the transacting related party;

2. A description of the relationship between the parties;

3. Volume of the fransactions either in terms of amount or in terms of proportion:

4. Any other elements of the related parly transactions necessary for an
understanding ol the fmancial statements;

2. The amount or appropriate proportions of outstanding items pertaining to
related parties at the balance sheet date and provisions for doubtful debts due from
such parties at that date; and

6. Amounts writtcn off or writlen back in the period in respect of debts due from
related parties.

Itis to be remembered that no disclosure is required for state-controlled enterprises
in the matter of related party relationships with other state-controlled enterprises.
Agpain, no disclosure is required in consolidated linancial statements in respect of
intra-group transactions.

With effect from the accounting year starting on or after 1.4.2001, it was made
mandatory for all enterprises.
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AS-19 ; Leascy

It deals with the accounting of transactions relaling to leases other than (a) lease
agreement to explore for, or use of, natural resources; (b) licensing agreements for items
such as motion picture films, video recordings, plays manuscripts, patents and copyrights;
and (c) lcase agreements to use lands. The standard classifies leases into “finance lease’
and ‘operating lease’ on the basis of the extent to which risks and rewards incidental to
the ownership of a leased assets lie with lessor or lessee. A lease is considered as finance
lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership, Title
may or may not eventually be transferred. On the contrary, a lease that does not transfer
substantially all risks and rewards incidental to ownership is termed as operating lease,

As regards finance lease, it provides for recognition of such a lease as asset as well as
liability in the books of lessee at an amount equal to the fair value of the leased assets at
the start of the lease. A lease payment by the lessee is required to be apportioned between
the finance charge and the outstanding liability. Morcover, the lessee is entitled to
provide depreciation for a leased asset in accordance with AS-6.

The standard demands disclesure in detail in respect of a finance lease in the

books of the lessor and lessee. The most imporiant disclosure requirements arc as
follows :

L

" The lessee must, in addition to requirements of AS-10, A5-6 and the governing
statute, make the following disclosures in the financial statements :

1. Assets acquired under finance lease as segregated [rom the assets owned;
2. Yor each class of assets, the net carrying amount at the balance sheet date;

3. A reconciliation between the total of minimum lease payments at the balance
shect date and their present value. Moreover, an enterprise must disclose the total of
minimum lease payments al the balance sheet date, and their present value, lor each
of the following periods :

(a) notlater than one year; (b) later than one year but not later than 5 years; (c) later
than 5 years;

4, Contingent rents recognised as income in the statement of profit & loss for the
period;

5. The total of future minimum sub-lease payments expected to be received under
non-cancellable sub-lcases at the balance sheet date; and
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6. A generaldescription of the lessee’ssignificant leasing arrangements including,
but no limit to, the following :

(a) the basis onwhich contingent rent payments are ascertained: (b) the existence
and terms of renewal or purchase options and escalation clauses; and (c) restrictions
imposed by lease arrangements, such as those concerning dividends, additional debts,
and further leasing.

The lessor must make disclosures in the financial statements in respect of the
following :

1. A reconciliation between the total gross investment in the lease at the balance
sheet date, and the present value of minimum lease payments receivable at the balance
sheet date. Tn addition, an enterprise must disclose the total gross investment in the
leasc and the present value of minimum lease payments reccivable af the balance sheet
date, for each ol the periods as below :

(a) not later than one year; (b) later than one year but not later than 5 years; (c)
later than 5 years;

2. Unearned financial income; :
3. The unguaranteed residual values accruing to the benefit of the lessor;

4. The accumulated provision for uncollectible minimum lcase payments
receivable;

3. Contingent rents recognised in the statement of profit & loss for the period;
6. A general description of the significant leasing arrangements of the lessor; and
7. Accounting policy adopted in respect of initial direct costs.

With effect from the accounting year commencing on or after 1.4.2001, it was made
mandatory for all enterpriscs.

AS-20 : Earnings Per Share (EPS)

Theaimofthis standard is to provide principles for the determination and presentation
of EPS which will improve comparison of performance among various enterprise for the
same period and among various accounting periods for the same enterprise. The standard
also provides the principles and the manner in which both basic and diluted EPS are to
be computed. The basic EPS is determined as below :

Basic EPS = (Profitsattributable to equity shareholders)/(Weighted average number
of equity shares outstanding during the period)
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Allitems of income and expenses including lax expenses, cxtra-ordinary items that
are recognised in a period should be adjusted to arrive at net profit or loss. Net profit after
tax minus preference dividends gives the *profit attributable to equity shareholders’ for
the period. The *weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
period’ is the number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning of the period, adjusted
by the number of equity shares bought back or issued during the period multiplied by the
time weighting factor. The time weighting [actor is the number of days for which the
specific shares are outstanding as a proportion of the total number of days in the period.

‘The basic LPS Iigur{:'muid be misleading o users il} in the future, number of shares
in issue will increase without a commensurable increase in resources due to dilutive
factors, which are (a) convertible bonds, (b) convertible preference shares and (¢) options
and warrants. In this case both numerator and denominator should be adjusted in order
to calculate diluted EPS as below :

Diluted EPS=(Diluted earnings attributable to equity shareholders)/{ Weighted
average number ol shares outstanding adjusted for potential dilutive securities)

With a view to getting diluted earnings attributable to equity sharcholders, net profit
or loss for the period atiributable to equity shareholders, calculated for ascertaining basic
EPS, should be adjusted by the following, taking into account any atiributable change
in tax expenses for the period :

1. Any dividends on dilutive potential equity sharcé._, which have been deducted in
arriving at the net prolit as above;

2. Interest recognised in the period for the dilutive potential equity shares; and

3. Any other charges in expenses or income that would result from the conversion -
of the dilutive potential equity shares.

The “weighted average number of shares outstanding adjusted for potential dilutive
securities’ should be the total of the weighted average number of equity shares caleulated
for basic 1iPS and the weighted average number of equity shares which would be issued
on the conversion ol all the dilutive potential equity shares into equily shares. Dilutive
potential equity shares should be deemed to have been converted into equity shares at the
beginning of the period or, il issued later, the date of the issue of the potential equily
sharcs. :

According to AS-20, basic EPS and diluted EPS should be disclosed prominently
on the face of profit and loss account for each accounting period. This disclosure is
required to be made even when the amounts disclosed are negative,
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With effeet from the accounting year starting on or after 1.4.2001, it was made
mandatory for all enterprises whose equity shares are listed on a recognised stock
exchange in India or, any enterprise whose equity shares is not listed on a recognised
stock exchange in India and discloses EPS voluntarily,

AS-21 ;: Consolidated Financial Stafement

InIndia, the preparation of Consolidated Financial Statement (CFS) isnot comp ulsory
under the Companics Act, 1956, But, AS-21 requires the preparation of CFS by a holding
company lfor a group of companies under its control, in addition, to its separate financial
statement. Such CFS must consolidate all subsidiaries, domestic and foreign other than
a subsidiary when (a) confrol is intended to be temporary because the subsidiary is
acquired and held solely with a view to its subsequent disposal in near future: or {L—:j it
operales under severe long-term restrictions, which significantly impair its liability to
transfer funds to the parent.

The standard also requires that the financial statement used in consolidation should
be drawn up to the same reporting date. I['it is not possible for one or more subsidiaries
to draw up the financial statement to such date, adjustments should be made for the effect
of significant transactions or other events that occur between the dates on which financial
statement of one or more subsidiaries are drawn and the date of the parent company’s
financial statement. Under no case, the difference between reporting dates should be
more than 6 months.

According to AS-21, disclosure requirements are the following :
1. The reasons for not consolidating a subsidiary.

2, When uniform accounting policies are not adopted for similar transactions for
practical difficulties, the fact of such departure and quantum of items to which the
different accounting policies have been followed.

3. List of all subsidiarics including the name, country of incorporation, or
residence, proportion of ownership and, if different, proportion of voling power held.

4. The nature of relationship between the parent and subsidiary, ifthe parent does
not own, directly or indirectly through subsidiaries, more than half of the voting powetr
of the subsidiary.

5. The effect of the acquisition and disposal of subsidiarics on the financial
position on the rcporting date, the resulls for the reporting period and on the
corresponding amounts for the preceding period,
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6. The names of the subsidiary(ies) of which reporting date(s) is/are different
from that of the parent and diflerence in reporting dates.

Tt was made mandatory for all parent companies w. c. . the accounting year
commencing on or after 1.4.2001.

AS-22 : Accounting for Taxes on Income

The objective of this standard is to remove the difference between the incomes
reported by profit & loss aceount and the taxable income determined by tax laws, The
standard requires recognition of deferred tax asscts and liabilities for timing diflerences
subject to consideration of prudence as regards deferred tax assets. However, the
discounting of deferred tax assets in terms of present value is not allowed. It also contains
transitional provisions to recognise accumulated deferred tax balances in the linancial
statement as deferred tax assets or liabilities with corresponding eredit charge to revenue
reserves.

The standard requires disclosure for the following :
1. Delerred tax assets and liabilities should be disclosed under a separate heading
in the balance sheel, scparately from current assets and liabilities.

2. The break up of deferred tax assets and deferred fax liabilitics into major
components of the respective balances is required to be disclosed in the notes to
accounts.

It was made mandatory for all companies w. e. [, the accounting year COMmImencing
on or after 1.4.2001.

AS-23 : Accounting for Investment in Associates in Consoliduted F inancial
Statement

An associate is an enterprise in which the investor has significant influence and
which is neither a subsidiary nor a joint venture of the investor, AS-23 requires that there
should be a differentiation between accounting of investment in associates from that in
any other entity. It advocates that equity method should be adopted for accounting of
such investment in associates while preparing consolidated financial statement (CE S).

In equily method, the investment is initially recorded at cost, identifying any
goodwill or capital reserve arising al the time of acquisition and the carrying amount is
inoreased or decreased to recognise the share in the investor in the profits or losses of the
investee afler the date of acquisition. Dividends rcceived from an investce reduce the
carrying amount of investment. When the investor ceases to have significant influences
in associates it should discontinue the usc of equity method.
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The deviation from accounting under equity method is CFS is permitted when (a) the
investment is acquired and held solely with a view to its subsequent disposal in near
future; or (b) the associate operatesunder severe long-termrestrictions, which sipnificant! y

" impair its ability to transfer funds to the investor.

- According to AS-23, major disclosure requirements are as under

1. Investmentinassociates accounted for using equity method should be mentioned
as long term investment and disclosed separately in CFS.

2. An appropriate listing and description of assoeiates including the proportion
of ownership interest.

3. The share of investor in the profits or losses on investments in associates.

4. A briel description of differences between accounting policies of associates
-and the investor when such different policies are applied for practical difficulties.

5. ‘Amount of goodwill or capital reserve arising on the acquisition of an associate
that has been included in investment.

6. The reason for non-application of equity method in accounting for investments
in an associate under certain special circumstances as allowed by the standard.

With effect from the accounting year commencing on or aflter 1.4.2002, it was
made mandatory for all enterprises having investment in associates.

AS-24 : Discomtinuing Operations

The objective of this standard is to establish principles for reporting information
about discontinuing operations, thereby enhancing the ability of users of financial
statements in order to make projections of cash flows, earnings-generation ability, and
financial position by segregating information about discontinuing operations [rom
information about discontinuing operations of an enterprise.

The disclosure requirement arises on oceurrence of the initial disclosure event with
respect to a discontinuing operation. The initial disclosure event, is the occurrence of any
one of the following, whichever is earlier :

1. The enterprise has entered into a binding sale agreement for substantially all of
the assets attributable to the discontinuing operation; or

2. The board of directors of the enterprise or similar governing body has both (a)
approved a detailed formal plan for discontinuance, and (b) made an announcement of
the plan. i
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An enterprise should disclose the following information with respect to
discontinuing operation in its financial statements beginning with the financial
statements for the period in which the initial disclosure occurs :

1. A deseription of discontinuing operation(s);

2. The business or geographical scgments(s) in which it is reported in accordance
with AS-17;

3. The date and nature of the initial disclosure event :

4. The date and period in which the discontinuance is expected to be completed
if known or determinable;

5. The carrying amounts, as of the balance sheet date, of the total assets to be
disposed of and the total liabilities to be settled;

6. Theamountsofrevenue and expenses in respect of ordinary activities attributable
to the discontinuing operation during the current financial reporting period;

7. The amount of pre-tax profit or loss from ordinary activities attributable to the
discontinuing operation during the current financial reporting period, and the income-
tax expenses related thereto; and

8. The amounts of net cash flows attributable to the operating, investing and

financing activitics ofthe discontinuing operation during the current financial reporting
period.

When an enterprise disposes of assets or settles liabilitics, attributable to a
discontinuing operation or enters into binding agreements for sale of such assets or the
setilement of such liabilities, it should include, in its financial statements, the
following information when the events oceur :

I. For any gain or loss that is recognised on the disposal of assets or settlement
of liabilities attributable to the discontinuing operation, (a) the amount of the pre-tax
pain or loss and (b) income tax expenses relating to the gain or loss, and

2. The net selling price or range of prices (which is after deduction of expected
disposal costs) of those net assets for which the enterprise has entered into one or more
binding sale agreements, the expected timing of receipt of those cash flows and the
carrying amount of those net assets on the balance sheet date.

The required disclosures may be made either in the notes to the financial
statemnents or on the face of the financial statements except that the disclosure of the
amount of the pre-tax gain or loss recognised on the disposal of assets or seftlement
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of liabilities attributable to the discontinuing operation must be shown on the face of
the statement of profit and loss. However, a discontinuing operation should be treated
as an exiraordinary item. The standard also requires disclosure in interim financial
report.

AS-24 is recommendatory in nature at present,

AS-25 ; Interim Financial Reporting

The standard prescribes the minimurn content of an interim [inancial report and the
principles for recognition and measurement in the financial statements for an interim
period. It states that an interim period is a financial reporting period shorter than a full
financial year. It also states that interim financial report means a financial report
containing either a complete set of financial statements or a set of condensed financial
statements.

Reparding disclosure, an enterprise must include the following minimum
information, in the notes to its interim financial statements, if material and if no
disclosure is made in the interim financial report :

1. A statement that the same accounting policies are adopted in the interim
financial statements as those adopted in the most recent annual financial statements,
or, if those policies have been changed, a description of the nature and effect of the
change;

2, Explanatory comments about the seasonality of interim operations;

3. The nature and amount of items af’ ﬁ-‘:cting assets, liabilities, equity, net income,
or cash flows that are unusual because of their nature, size, or incidence:

4. The nature and amount of changes in estimates of amounts reported in prior
interim periods of the current financial year or changes in estimates of amounts
reported in prior financial years, if those changes have a material effect in the current
interim period;

5. Issuances, buy-backs, repayments and restructuring of debt, equity and potential
equity shares;

6. Dividends, aggregate or per share (in absolute or percentage terms) separately
for equity shares and other shares;

7. Segment revenue, capital employed and result for business segments or
geographical segments, whichever is the cnterprise’s primary basis of segment
reporting; i :
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8. The elfect of changes in the composition of the enterprise during the interim
period, such as amalgamations, acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries and long-term
investments, restruclurings, and discontinuing operations; and

9, Material changes in contingent liabilities since the last annual balance sheet
date.

With effect from the accounting year commencing on or after 1.4.2002, it was
made mandatory for all enterprises. '

AS8-26 : Intangible Assets

The standard deals with the accounting treatment for intangible assets that are not
dealt with specifically in another accounting standard. It requircs an enterprise to
recognise an intangible asset subject to fulfilment of certain conditions and specifies how
lo measure the carrying amount of intangible asscts and disclose them.

The standard requires the following general disclosures :
1. The useful lives or the amortisalion rates used;
2. The amortisation methods used;

3. The gross carrying amount and the accumulated amortisation at the beginning
and end of the period; and - -

4. A reconciliation of the carrying amount at the beginning and end of the period
showing : ;

(a) additions, indicaling scparately those from internal dcvclbpﬁcnt and
through amalgamation;

(b) retirements and disposals;

(¢) impairment losses recognised in the statement of profit and loss, if any, during
the period; :

(d) impairment losses reserved in the statement of profit and loss, il any, during
the period;

(¢) amortisation recognised during the period; and

() other changes in the carrying amount during the period.

The financial statements should disclose the above for each class of intangible
assets, distinguishing between internally generated intangible assets and otherintangible
assets. In addition, the financial statements should also contain the following specific
disclosures :
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1. If an intangible asset is amortised over more than 10 years, the reasons why it
is assumed that the useful life of an intangible asset will exceed 10 years from the date
when the asset is available for use;

2. A description, the carrying amount and remaining amortisation period of any
individual intangible asset that is material to the financial statements of the enterprise
as a whole;

3. Theexistence and carrying amounts of intangible assets whose title is restricted
and the carrying amounts of intangible assets pledged as security for liabilitics; and

4. The amount of commitments for the acquisition of the inlangible assets.

With effect from the accounting year commencing on or after 1.4.2003; it was made
mandatory in respect of (a) listed companies or companies whose sccurities are listed,
or are going to be listed, on a recognised stock exchange in India; and (b) all other
commercial, industrial and business reporting cnterprises, whose turnover for the
accounting period exceeds Rs.50 erore.

AS-27 : Financial Reporting of Interests in Joint Venture

The objective of this standard is to prescribe prineiples and procedures for accounting
for interests in joint ventures and reporting of joint venture assets, liabilities, income and
expenses in the financial statements of venturers and investors.

According to the standard, a venturer (an enterprise) has to disclose the following
informationinits separate financial statements and in consolidated financial statements :

1. The aggrepate amount of the following contingent liabilitics, unless the
probability of loss is remote, separately from the amount of other contingentliabilities :

(a) any contingent liabilitics that the venturcr has incurred in relation to its
interests in joint ventures and its share ineach of the contingent liabilities which have
been jointly with other venturers;

(b) itsshare of the contingent liabilities of the joint ventures themselves for which
it is contingently liable; and

{c) those contingent liabilities that arise because the venturer is contingently
liable for the liabilities of the other venturers of a joint venture,

2. The apgregate amount of the following commitments in relation to its interest
in joint ventures separately from other commitments :

() any capital commitments of the venturcr in relation to its interests in joint
ventures and its share in the capital commitments that have been incurred jointly with
other venturers; and
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(b) its share of the capital commitments of the joint venturers themselves,

3. A list of all joint ventures and description of interests in significant joint
ventures; the proportion of ownership interest, name and country of incorporation or
residence in respect of a jointly controlled entities; and

4. The aggregate amounts of the each of the assets, liabilities, income and
expenses related to its interests in the jointly controlled entities.

With efleet from the accounting year commencing on or afler 1.4.2002, it w.as
made mandatory for all enterprises.

AS8-28 : Inqmir}rmnt ﬂfAssets

The objective of this standard is to prescribe the procedure that an enterprise applies
to ensure that its assets are carried at no more than their recoverable amount. An asset
is carried at more than its recoverable amount if its carrying amount exceeds the amount
to be recovered through use or sale of the asset. If this is the case, the asset is described
as impaired, It requires the enterprise to recognise an impairment loss. It also specifies
when an enterprise should reverse an impairment loss and it prescribes certain disclosures
for impaired assets. '

The standard should be applied in accounting for the impairment of all assets, other
than the following assets :

1. Inventories (AS-2 : Valuation of Inventories);

2. Assets arising from construction contracts (AS-7 : Accounting for Construction
Contracts);

3. Financial assets, including investments that are included in the scope of AS- 13 :
Accounting for Investments; and

4. Deferred tax assets (AS-22 : Accounting for Taxes on Income).

Disclosure requirements of an enterprise under AS-28
1. Foreach class of asscts, the financial statements should disclose the following :
(a) The amount of impairment losses recognised in the statement of profit and

loss during the period and the line itemi(s) of the statement of profit and loss in which
those impairment losses are included;

(b) The amount of reversals of impairment losses recognised in the statement of
profit and loss during the period and the line item(s) of the statement of profit and loss
in which those impairment losses are reversed;
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(¢) The amount of impairment losses recognised directly against revaluation
surplus during the period; and

(d) Theamountofreversalsofimpairment losses recognised directly inrevaluation
surplus during the period.

2. An enterprise that applics AS-17, Segment Reporting, should disclose the
following for cach reportable segment based on an enterpriscs’s primary format :

(a) The amount of impairment losses recognised in the statement of profit and
loss and directly against revaluation surplus during the period; and

(b) The amount of reversals of impairment losses recognised in the statement of
profit and loss and directly in revaluation surplus during the period.

3. If an impairment loss for an individual asset or a cash-generating unit is
recognised or réversed during the period and is malerial to the financial stalements of
the reporting enterprise as a whole, an enterprise should disclose the following :

(a) The events and circumstances that led to the recognition or reversal of the
impairment loss;

(b) The amount of impairment loss recognised or reversed,

(¢) For an individual asset :

(i) the nature of the asset; and

(ii) the reportable segment to which the asset belongs, based on an enterprise’s
primary format (as defined in AS-17 : Segment Reporting);

(d) For a cash-generating unit :

(1) a description of the cash-generating unit (such as whether it is a product line,
a plant, a business operation, a geographical arca, a reportable scgment as defined in
AS-17 or other); :

(ii) the amount of the impairment loss recognised or reversed by a class of assels
and by reportable segment based on the enterprise’s primary format (as defined by
AS8-17); and '

(i) if the aggregation of assets for identifying the cash-gencrating unit has
changed since the previous estimate of the cash-generating unit’s recoverable amount
(if any), the ehterprise should deseribe the cwrent and former way of aggregaling
assets and the reasons for changing the way the cash-generating unit is identified;

(¢) Whether the recoverable amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is its net
selling price or its value in use; '
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(f) If recoverable amount is net selling price, the basis used to determine net
selling price (such as whether selling prlcc was determined by reference to an active
market or in some other way); and

(g) If recoverable amount is value in use, the discount rate(s) used in the currcnt
estimale and previous estimate (if any) of value is use.

4. Il impairment losses recognised (reversed) during the period are material in
aggrepate to the financial statements of the reporting enterprise as a whole, an
enterprise should disclose a brief description of the following :

(a) the main classes ol assels alfected by impairment losses (reversals of
impairment losses) for which no information is disclosed under the item no, 3; and

(b) the main events and circumstances that led to the recognition (reversal) of
these impairment losses for which no information is disclosed under the item no, 3.

With effect from the accounting year commencing on or after 1.4.2004, it would
be mandatory in respect of (a) enterprises whose equity or debt securities are listed
on a recognised stock exchange in India, and enterprises that arc in the process of
issuing equity or debt securities that will be listed on a recognised stock exchange in
India as evidenced by the board of directors’ resolution in this regard; and (b) all other
commercial, industrial and business reporting enterpriscs, whose lurnover for the
accounting period exceeds Rs.50 crore,

AS8-28 would be mandatory w. ¢. f. the accounting year commencing on or after
1.4.2005 in respect of all other enterprises.

AS8-29 : Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

The objective of AS-29 is to ensure that appropriale recognition criteria and
measuremenlt bases are applied to provisions and contingent liabilities and that sufficient
information is disclosed in the notes to the financial statements to enable users to
understand their nature, timing and amount, The objective of this Statement is also to lay
down appropriate accounting for contingent assets.

AS8-29 is applicable under the following situations :

1. This Standard should be applied in accounting for provisions and contingent
liabilities and in dealing with contingent assets, cxeept :

a. those resulting from finaneial instruments that arve carried at fair value;
b. those resulting from exccutory contracts;

c. those arising in insurance enterprises from contracts with policy-holders; and
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d. those covered by another Accounting Standard.

2. This Standard applies to financial instruments (including guarantees) that are not
carried at fair value.

3. Execui:ory contracts are contracts under which party has performed any of its
obligations or both partics have partially performed their obligations to an equal extent,

4. This Standard applies to provisions, contingent liabilitics and contingent assets
of insurance enterprises other than those arising from contracts with policy-holders.

5. Where another Accounting Standard deals with a specilic type of provision,
contingent liability or contingent asset, an enterprise applies that Statcment instead of
this Statement, For cxample, certain types of provisions are also addressed in Accounting
Standards on :

a. construction contracts (AS 7, Construction Contracts);
h. taxes on income (AS 22, Accounting for Taxes on Income);
c. leases (AS 19, Leases); and

d. retirement benefits (A8 15, Accounting for Retirement Benefits in the Financial
Statements of Employers).

6. Some amounts treated as provisions may relate to the recognition of revenue, for
examples where an enterprise gives guarantees in exchange for a fee. This Statement
does not address the recognition of revenue. AS 9, Revenue Recognition, identifies the
circumstances in which revenue is recognised and provides practical guidance on the
application of the recognition criteria, This Statement does not change the requirements
of AS 9.

7. This Statement defines provisions as liabilities, which can be measured only by
using a substantial degree of cstimation. The term *provision’ is also used in the conlext
of items such as depreciation, impairment of assets and doubtful debts : these are
adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and are not addressed in this Statement.

8. Other Accounting Standards specify whether expenditures are treated as assels
or as cxpenses. These issues are not addressed in this Statement, Accordingly, this
Statement neither prohibits nor requires capitalisation of the costs recognised when a
provision is made.

9. Other Accounting Standards specify whether expenditures are treated as assets
or as expenses. These issues are not addressed in this Statement, Accordingly, this
Statement neither prohibits nor requires capitalisation of the costs recognised when a
provision is made.
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The major disclosure requiﬁments of an enterprise under AS-29

1. For each class ol provision, an cntcfpris:e should disclose the following :

a. the carrying amount at the beginning and end of the period,;

b. Additional provisions made in the period, including increases to existing
provisions;

¢, amount used (i.e, incurred and charged against the provision) during the
period; and

d. unused amounts reversed during the period.

2. An enterprise should disclose the following for each class of provision :

a. abriefdescription of the nature of the obligation and the expected timing of any
resulting outflows of economic benefits;

b. an indication ol the uncertaintics about those outllows, Where necessary to
provide adequate information, an enterprise should disclose the major assumptions
made concerning future events; and

¢. the amount of any expected reimbursement, stating the amount of any asset that
has been recognised for that expected reimbursement.

3, Unless the possibility of any outflow in settlement is remote, an enterprise
should disclose for each class of contingent liability at the balance sheet date a brief
description of the nature of the contingent liability and, where practicable :

a. an estimate of its financial effect,
b. an indication of the uncertainties relating to any outflow; and
c. the possibility of any reimbursement.

With effect from the accounting year commencing on or after 1.4.2004, it was
made mandatory barring a few circumstances.

1.6 Disclosure in Company Accounts as per SEBI Guidelines

Stock exchanges have a vital role in the development of capital market for the benefit
of the corporate sector. At the same time, they exert influence on the reporting practices
of companies with a view to safeguarding the interest of present and potential investors
through the compliance of Listing Agreement on the admission of securities for listing.
The listing agreement is the most influential aspect of stock exchange regulation as far
as the financial reporting is concerned. It aims at securing a regular supply of information
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to investors and others, and at speeifying the information, which must be supplied by a
company. It also ensures consistency of company financial reporting requiring the
disclosure of reasons for deviations from an existing policy. Moreover, according to the
Agreement Form, each company is required to publish in a form, approved by the stock
exchange, periodical interim statement, total turnover, gross profit, depreciation, net
profit, ete. Thus, the role of stock exchange, as a regulatory body, in corporate accounting
is essentially very important.

‘The Securitics and Exchange Board ol India (SEBI) came into existence in 1992 as
an exclusive controlling and regulatory body of Indian capital market. It has brought a
new dimension in the field of securities, transactions in India. In the meantime, it has
taken a number of steps in order to discharge the responsibility of regulating both the
primary market (initial issue of securities) and secondary market (dealing with securities
in the stock exchanges) with a view to bringing uniformity through the compliance of its
guidelines in the matter of financial reporting practices by the companies in the interests
of both the present and potential investors.

Afler the abolition of office of the Controller of Capital Issues (CCl), the SEBI has
got the power to vet the prospectus of the companies. Thus, if the companies do not
comply with the SEBI guidelines in respect of disclosure, their prospectuses inviting
subscription will not be vetted, and they will not be able to issue shares. According (o
existing guideline, the SEBI requires that specific disclosures be made about NAV (net
assel value) of the company, and adequate justification is given for arriving at issue price
of shares. The SEBI guidelines cover, however, a wide variely of subjects like issue of
shares and debentures, preferential allotment, promoters’ contribution, free pricing,
underwriting, issue of bonus shares, etc. But its role as a regulator is also significant. It
directly regulates the disclosure to be made by the companies while vetting their
prospectus, Italso indireetly regulates corporate accounting, as through Listing Agreement
of Stock Exchanges it requires the publication of unaudited half-yearly working results,
proper and adequate disclosures therein, transparency in investors” transactions and so
On.

In the recent past, the role of SEBI has improved a lot in issuing two most imporlant
guidelines in the matter of corporate accounting and disclosure for the inlerests of both
present and potential investors in particular and harmonising diverse accounting practices
of the companies in gencral. They are :

(a) Mandatory preparation and inclusion of cash flow statement (as defined in AS-
3) as a part of financial statements for (i) listed companies or companies whose shares
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and debentures are in the process ol enlisting on a recognised stock exchange in India as
evidenced by the board of directors’ resolution in this regard; and (b) all other
commercial, industrial and business enterprises whose turnover for the acﬁ:aunting
period exceeds Rs.50 crore.

(b) A new clause 49 was incorporaled in the Listing Agreement on the “Report on
Corporate Governance’ as a part of Directors’ Report in the annual reports of companies.

The following are the list of items as given in Annexure 2 (o ¢lause 49 to be included in
the Report on Corporate Governance :

1. A bricf statement on company’s philosophy on code of governance,

2. Board of Directors—its composition and functioning, number of mectings held,
etc.

3. Audit Committee—terms of reference, composition and meetings.

4. Remuneration Committee—4erms ofreference, composition, remuncration policy,
meetings, cte.

" 5. Shareholders’ Committee—shareholders’ complaints received, suitable action
taken, pending share transfers, cte.

6. General Body Meetings,

7. Disclosures—significant related party transactions of the company of material
nature with its promoters, directors or management and details of non-compliance by the
company, i.c., penalties, fines, strictures imposed on the company by SEBI or Stock
Exchange or any statutory authority, on any matter related to capital market, during the
last 3 years. :

8. Means of communication—half-yearly and quarterly results to shareholdets,
sclected newspapers for publication, web site used, etc.

9. General sharcholders’ information,

The Corporate Governance Report is required to be cerlified by the auditor of the
company. -

1.7 Summary

Proper and adequate disclosure of information through preparation and presentation
of financial and non-financial statements, charts, diagrams, gtc. is the necd of the hour
not only in the interest of a wide varicty of users for taking right decisions but also in the
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interest of the companies themselvesin the matter ol compliance of disclosure requirements
as required by the Companies Act, 1956, Indian Accounting Standards and SEBI
guidelines. The Companies Act 1956, the Council of the ICAT and SEBL, prominent
regulatory bodies, have been playing a remarkable role on the development of carporate
accounting and reporting with_a view to harmonising diverse accounting and reporting
practices in India through the legal framework, standards and guidelines respectively. At
present, many Indian companies have started to comply with the financial disclosure
requirements that the regulators prescribed so (hat the users of financial information can
take potentially useful cconomic decisions.

1.8 Exercises

Problem I !

A company fitids that the stock ason March 3 | ,'2{}[14 had included twice an item whose cost
was Rs. 18,900, State the treatment in the final accounts for the year ending on March_?. 1, 2005,

Answer : As per AS-3, itis prior period item, which requires rectification in stock valuation.
Itis necessary to deduct Rs. 18,900 from opening stock in the profit and loss account for the year
ending on March 31, 2005. Also it is necessary (o charge Rs.18,900 as prior period adjustment
in the profit and loss account below the line. Moreover, AS-3 requires separate disclosure of
Prior Period Items, which may be shown either below the line or above the line.

Problem 2 :

Apex Ltd. estimated 3% bad debts while preparing final accounts for the year ending on
March 31, 2005, Accordingly, provision for bad and doubtful debts was made. Ilowever, it
appears in the next accounting year that some dues from customers are still lying uncollected.
The management feels that an additional 35% provision is necessary on such ducs. (a) Should
such change in estimate be treated as an extraordinary item? (b) Is il prior period item? Discuss.

Answer : (a) and (b)}—No. But according to AS-5, material change in current and later
periods should be disclosed.

Problem 3 ;

Gama Ltd. entered into an agreement to sell its fand included in the balance sheet at Rs.4
lakh to Beta Lid for Rs.25 lakh. The agreement was completed on December 31, 2004 with the
approval ol ils Board of Directors bul the sale deed was registered on May 26, 2003, Gama Ltd,
prepares its annual accounts on March 31, every year. How this event would be dealt with in the
annual accounts?
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Answer : This is an event accurring after the balance sheet date. Registration of sale deed
provides additional information relating to the conditions existing at the balance sheet date.
Thus, adjustments to assets are necessary under AS-4 (Contingencies and Events Occurring after
the Balance Sheet Date) and should be disclosed under the *Notes to Accounts” for the year
cnding on March 31, 2005,

1.9 Questions

().1 What are the objectives of disclosure of information? Are the Indian companies
providing information as needed by the users?

(.2 What is meant by regulation of corporate accounting and reporting? Why is external
regulation essential?

Q.3 Explain, in brief, the disclosure requirements in the financial stalements of the
Companies Act, 1956.

(.4 What is the necessity of Accounting Standards? Can Accounting Standards remove
diverse financial accounting and reporting practices in Tndia?
().5 State the disclosure requirements in the financial statements for the following :
(a) Disclosures of Accounting Policies (AS-1)
(b} Valuation of Inventories (AS-2)
(¢) Cash Flow Statements (AS-3)
(d) Contingencies and Events Occurring after the Balance Sheet Date (A5-4)
(e) Met Profit or Loss for the Period, Prior Period Items and Changes in Accounting
Policies (AS-5) _
(f) Depreciation Accounting (AS-6)
{g) Revenue Recognition (AS-9)
(h) Accounting for Fixed Asscts (AS5-10)
{i) Accounting for Investments (AS-13)
(j) Accounting for Amalgamation (AS-14)
(k) Segment Reporting (AS-17)
(1) Related Party Disclosure (AS-18)
(m) Earnings Per Share (AS-20)
{n) Consolidated Financial Statement (AS-21)
{0) Interim Financial Reporting (AS-23)
(p) Intangible Assets (A5-26)

(.6 State the role of SEBI in the context of disclosure of financial information. |
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1.10 Suggested Readings

I.  Banerjee, B : Regulation of Uorporate Accounting and Reporting in India, World Press
Pvt. Lid.

2. The Companies Act, 1956.
3. The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ; Accounting Standards.

4. The Securities and Exchange Board of India : Guidelines and Regulations.

47



Unit 2 [1 Structure of Company Accounts

Structure

2.0 Objective

2.1 TIntroduction

2.2 The Structure of Company Accounts
2.2.1 Profit and Loss Account
2.2.2 Balance Sheet
2.2.3 Cash Flow Statement
2.2.4 Other Statements

2.3 Summary

2.4 Questions

2.5 BSuggested Readings

2.0 Objective

By the time you have gone through this unit you will be able to :
# understand as to what constitute the structure of company accounts;
4 know the elements of the structure of company accounts; and

#  know the contents of the elements.

2.1 Introduction

Our present society is a civilised one and it has crossed a long path to come to its
present state. Human contributions in a number of fields like literature; history,
sociology, seience and technology including accounting have made this possible. In the
ancient age, there existed some sort of accounting because of the presence of exchange
system. Accounting is an ancient art, clearly as old as money itsclf, because in India,
Kautilya (300 B.C.), the Finance Minister of Emperor Chandra Gupta Murya, clearly
mentions in his “Arthshastra”, the existence and need of accounting. The Indian system
of accounting is certainly older and thus, accounting always played a significant role in
cvery stage of civilisation.
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The Industrial Revolution in 1760s and the subscquent developments in the socio-
economic conditior all over the world made severe impact on trade and business, As a
result, corporate form of busincss came into existence during mid-cighteenth century
with a separale entity and perpetual existence, limited liability requiring huge amount of
capital for large scale production and major changes in accounling procedures and
reporting practices have taken place as a direct conscquence ol such changes in form and
nature of business organisation. This accounting procedure developed the contemporary
balance sheet forming part of the financial reporting during the later part of 19* century
but it lacked in uniformity, terminology and classilication of items. The form of balance
sheet adopted on voluntary basis in India in 1857. Much improvement has taken place
in corporate financial reporting practices all over the world since the turn of the century
on account of various compelling factors, such as, the expansion and growth of the
company form of business, the enactment of disclosure laws and emergence ol accounting
as a recognised profession, At present, it is recognised as a prestigious and important
prolession,

After independence in 1947, India followed a mixed economic path of development.
This ultimately led to the development of public sector and private sector side by side.
Moreover, the emergence of free market cconomy in India since1991made our economy
more liberal and the process of disinvestments have been continuing in the public sector
undertakings and private sector have been gaining ground in Indian economy and there
is strong possibility that they would be the vital economie driver in the long run in our
couniry, But we have democratic government and the sole objective of every democratic
government is lo maximise the social welfare. Thus, no democratic government should
allow the corporate sector to function freely, which is detrimental to the fulfilment of
social objective. Thus, regulation of the corporate sector is essential in respect of
funetioning including accnunling to ensure efficient utilisation of the investors” money
and compel the management to be accountable to all stakeholders including the
government, Keeping an eye over those objectives, the Companies Act, 1956 was passed
by the Parliament of independent India in order to regulate the activities of all companies
within the framework of law, The Act also suggested the structure of company accounls
which is enforceable to all the companies incorporated in India. In the next section, we
would discuss about the structure of company accounts,
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2.2 The Structure of Company Accounts

At present, cvery company is required Lo prepare its final accounts for the year
ending on 31* March evety year. In preparing final accounts, every company has to
prepare its profit and loss account for the year ended 31* March of each year and a balance
sheet as at that date. Moreover, it has to prepare cash flow statement and other statements
as per disclosure requirements of accc-un'ting standards, as prescribed by ICAI with a
view to providing information to the users for taking potentially uscful economic
decisions. The profit and loss account and balance sheet are the two basic financial
statements while the cash flow statement and other stalements are the supplementary
statcments whose only necessity is to justify or lo explain, what has been disclosed in the
basic financial statements, in order to provide proper and adequate information to the
users for taking potentially useful economic decisions.

The Companies Act, 1956, prescribed the formats of balance sheet and profit and
loss account in Part I1 and Part 1 of the Schedule V1 respectively. Preparation of profit
and loss account and balance sheet should be made as per prescribed formats or as near
thercto, as the case may be. But the preparation of cash flow statement should be made
in accordance with the provisions of AS-3, which classifies cash {lows'into cash flow
from operating activities, cash flow from investing activities and cash flow from
financing activities. Other statements should be prepared to comply with the requirements
of disclosure of accounting standards.

In India, the Companies Act, 1956, governs companies. But due to passage of time,
changes in socio-economic conditions, development in trade, industry and commerce,
contribution of professional institutions to the improvement and development of
accounting concepts and practices, liberalisation of economy, requirement of proper and
adequate disclosure of information, and above all growing awareness and attitude of the
investors and government, the Act has undergone a number of amendments which have
great influence on the corporate accounting and reporting practices in India. With a view
to satisfying the changing needs of the users, the vertical form of balance sheet was
inserted in Part B of Schedule VI of the Companies Act, 1956 (amended in 1979). The
companies have now the option to present their balance sheets in either horizontal or
vertical form. The vertical form of balance sheet has been gaining ground very fast due
to its obvious merits.

The structure of company accounts refers to a set of financial statements that are
required to be prepared by every company at the end of each accounting year in
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accordance with the compliance ol Schedule VI of the Companies Act, 1956 and
Accounting Standards as recommended by the ICAT and guidelines as prescribed by
SEBIL. Thus, a set of financial statements consisting of profit and loss account and balance
sheet prepared in adherence to the formats of Part IT and Part I respectively of Schedule
VI of the Companies Act, 1956, and cash flow statement and other statements, as
required o be in compliance with the Accounting Standards and SEBI guidelines is
known as the structure of company accounts.

Let us explain the format along with contents of cach of the elements of the structure
of company accounts in the paragraphs that follow.

2.2.1 Profit and Loss Account

The profit and loss account of a company must be prepared in accordance with the
requirements of Part 11 of Schedule VT of the Companies Act, 1956, These requirements
are as follows :

1. The provisions of this Part shall apply to the income and expenditure account
referred to in sub-section (2) of section 210 of the Act, in like manner as they apply to
a profit and loss account, but subject to modification of reference as specified in that sub-
section. .

2, The profit and loss account (&) shall be so made out as clearly to disclose the result
of the working of the company during the period covered by the account, and (b) shall
disclose every material feature, including credits or receipts and debits or expenses in
respect of non-recurring transactions or transactions of an exceptional nature.

3. The profit and loss account shall set out the various items relating to the income
and expenditure of the company arranged under the most conventional heads; and, in

particular, shall disclose the following information in respect of the period covered by
the account :

(i) (a) The turnover, that is, the aggregate amount lor which sales are effected
by the company, giving the amount of sales for each class separately.

(b) Commission paid to sole selling agents within the meaning of section 294 of the
Act.

(¢) Commission paid to other selling agents,

(d) Brokerage and discount on sales, other than the usual trade discounts.

(i1) (a) In case of manufacturing companics :

1. The value of raw materials consumed, giving item-wise break-up and indicating

the quantities thercol. In this break-up, as far as possible, all important basic raw
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materials shall be shown as separate items. The intermediates or components procured
from other manufacturers may, if their list is too large to be included in the break-up, be
grouped under the suitable headings without mentioning the quantities, provided all
those items, which in value individually account for 10% or more of the total value of
the raw matcrials consumed, shall be shown as separate and distinct items with quantities
thersof in the break-up.

2. The opening and closing stocks of goods produced, giving break-up in respeet of
each class of goods and indicating the quantities thereol.

(b) In the case of trading companies, the purchases made and the opening and
closing stocks, giving break-up in respect of each class of goods traded in by the company
and indicating the quantities thereof.

(¢} In the case of companies rendering or supplying services, the gross income,
derived from services rendered or supplied.

(d) Inthe case of a company, which falls under more than one of the categories
mentioned in (a), (b) and (c) above, it shall be sufficient compliance with the requirements
therein if the total amounts are shown in respect of the opening and closing stocks,
purchases, sales and consumption of raw material with value and quantitative break-up
and the gross income from services rendered 15 shown,

(e) In the case of other companies, the gross income derived under different heads.

(iii) Inthe case of all concerns having work-in-progress, the amounts for which such
works have been completed at the commencement and at the end of the accounting
period. .

(iv) The amount provided for depreciation, renewals and diminution in the value of
fixed assets. [f such provision is not made by means of a depreciation charge, the method
adopted in making such provision. If no provisions is made for depreciation, the fact that -
no provision has been made shall be stated and the quantum of arrears of depreciation
computed in accordance with section 205(2) of the Act shall be disclosed by way ol note.

(v) The amount of interas_‘.t on the company’s debentures and other loans, that is to
say, loans for fixed period, stating separately the amount of interest, if any, paid or
payable to the managing director and the manager, if any.

(vi) The amount of charge for Indian Income Tax and other Indian taxation on
profits, including, where practicable, with Indian income tax, any taxation imposed
elsewhere to the extent of the relicf, if any, from Indian income tax and distinguishing,
where practicable, between income tax and other taxes.
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(vii) The amounts reserved for :

(a) repayment of share capital; and (b) repayment of loans.

(viii) (a) The aggregate, if material, of any amounts set aside or proposed to be set
aside, lo reserves, but not including provisions made to meet any specific liability,
contingency, or commitment known to exist at the date as at which the balance sheet is
made up.

(b) The aggregate, if material, of any amounts withdrawn from such reserves,

(ix) (a) The aggregate, if malerial, of the amounts set aside to provisions made for
meeting specific liabilities, conlingencies, or commitments.

(b) The aggregate, if material, of the amounts withdrawn from such provisions, as
on longer period required.

(x) Expenditure incurred on each of the following items, separately for each item :

(a) Consumption of stores and spare parts.

{(b) Power and fuel.

(c) Rent

(d) Repairs to buildings.

(e) Repairs to machinery.

(f) (1) Salaries, wages and bonus.

(2) Contribution to provident and other funds.

(3) Workmen and stafl’ welfare expenses to the extent not adjusted from any
previous provision or reserve.

(g) Insurance.
~ (h) Rates and taxes, excluding taxes on income.

(i) Miscellaneous expenses, provided that any item under which the expenses
exceed 1% of the total revenue of the company or Rs.5,000, whichever is higher, shall
be shown as a separale and distinct item against an appropriate account head in the profit
and loss account and shall not be combined with any other item to be shown under
“Miscellancous Expenses’.

(xi) (a) The amount of income from investments distinguishing between trade
investments and other investments.

(b) Other income by way of interest, specifying the nature of income.
(¢) The amount of income tax deducted il the gross income is stated under sub-
paragraphs (a) and (b) above.
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(xii) (a) Profils or loss on investments showing distinctly the extent of the profits
earned or losses incurred on account of membership of a partnership firm, to the extent
not adjusted from any previous provision or reserve.

(b) Profits or losses in respect of transactions of a kind not usually undertaken by
the company or undertaken in circumstances of an exceptional or non-recurring nature,
il material in amount.

(c) Miscellaneous income.
(xiii) (a) Dividend from subsidiary companies.
(¢) Provision for losses of subsidiary companies.

(xiv) The aggregate amount of dividends paid or proposed, and stating where such
amounts arc subject to deduction of income tax or not, Presently no tax is to be deducted
from dividend, rather corporate dividend tax has to be paid on dividends.

(xv) Amount, if material, by which any items shown in the profit and loss account
are affected by any change in the basis of accounting.

4. The profit and loss account shall also contain or give by way of note detailed
information, showing separately the following payments provided or made during the
financial year to the directors (including managing directors) or manager, if any, by the
company, the subsidiaries of the company and any other persons :

(i) managerial remuneration under section 198 of the Act paid or payable during the
financial year to the directors (including managing divectors) or manager, if any;

(ii) other allowances and commission including guarantec commission (details to
be given);

(iii) any other perquisites or benefits in cash or in Kind (stating approximately
money value where practicable);

(iv) Pensions, etc. :
(a) pensions,
(b) gratuities,

(¢) payments from provident funds, in excess of own subscriptions and intercst
thereon, '

(d) compensation for loss of office,

(e) consideration in connection with retirement from office.
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4A. The profit and loss account shall contain or give by way ol note a statement
showing the computation of net profits in accordance with section 349 of the Act with
the relevant details of the calculation of the commissions payable by way of percentage
of such profits to the directors (including managing directors) or manager, if any.

4B. The profitand loss account shall further contain or give by way of note detailed
information in regard to amounts paid to the auditor, whether as fees, expenses or
otherwise for services rendered :

(a) as auditor; and,

(b) as adviser in any other capacity in respect of :

(i) taxation matter,

(i) company law matter,

(iif) management services; and

(c) inany other manner.

[The ICAI has stated, in its Statement styled “Payment to Auditors for Other

Services”, that the remuncration to the auditor for other services should be classified as
follows :

1. for tax representation;

2. for company law matters;
3. lor management services;
4, for internal auditing; and
5. for other services. ]

4C. In the case of manufacturing companics, the profit and loss account shall also
contain by way of a note, in respect of each class of goods manufactured, detailed
quantitative information in regard to the following :

(a) the licensed capacity (where licence is in force);

(b) the installed capacity; and

(¢) the actual produetion,

4D. The profit and loss account shall also contain by way of a note the following
information, namely : :

(a) value of imports calculated on C.LF. basis by the company during the financial
year in respect of :

(i) raw materials;

(ii) components and spare parts;

(iii) capital goods;
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(b) expenditure in foreign currency during the financial year on account of royalty,
know-how, professional consultation fees, interest, and other matlers;

(c) value of all imported raw materials, spare parts and components consumed
during the [inancial year and the value of all indigenous raw materials, sparve parts and
components similarly eonsumed and the percentage of cach of the total consumption;

(d) the amount remitted during the year in foreign currencies on account of
dividends, with a specific mention of the number of non-resident shareholders, the
number of shares held by them on which the dividends were due and the year to which
the dividends related; d

(e) carnings in foreign exchange classified under the following heads, namely :
(i) export of goods caleulated on F.0.B. basis;

(i) royalty, know-how, professional and consultation fees;

(ﬂi] interest and dividend;

(iv) other income indicating the nature thereof.

5. The Central Government may direct that a company shall not be obliged to show
the amount set aside to provisions other than those relating to depreciation, renewal or
diminution ini value of assets, if the Central Government is satisfied that the information
should not be disclosed in the public interest and would prejudice the company, but
subject to the condition that in any heading stating an amount arrived at aller taking into
account the amount set aside as such, the provision shall be so framed or marked as to
indicate that fact.

6. (a) Exceplin the case of the first profit and loss account laid before the company
alter the commencement of the Act, the corresponding amount for the immediately
preceding financial year for all items shown in the profit and loss account shall also be
given in the profit and loss account,

(b) The requirement in sub-clause (1) shall, in the case of companies preparing
quarterly or half-yearly accounts, relate to the profit and loss account for the period ended
on the corresponding date of the previous year.

Note : Profit and loss account should contain the figures of the previous accounting
year along with the figures of the cutrent accounting year.

2.2.2 Balance Sheet

Every company is required to prepare a balance sheet at the end of each accounting
year under section 210 of the Act. Section 211 requires the balance sheet to be prepared
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in the prescribed form. This provision is, however, not applicable to banking, i,nsurmmc,
clectricity and other companies governed by special Acts. 'The Central Government has
also the power to exempt any class of companies from compliance with the requirement
of the preseribed form if it deems to be public interest. The objective of preseribing the
form is to elicit proper information from the company so as to give a ‘true and fair’ view
of the state of the company’s alTairs, As a maller of fact both window dressing and
creating secret reserves will be considered against the provisions of section 211. Tn order
to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of a company it is necessary

(i) that the information required by law (as specified in Schedule VI to the Act and
section 212 as regards subsidiary companies) should be disclosed; and

(ii) that the same be disclosed in the manner required.

Part I of Schedule VI gives the prescribed form of a company s balance sheet along
with main contents and its sub-contents. The Act permits the presentation of balance
sheet both in horizontal and vertical forms. Vertical form of balance sheet over the
horizontal form has been gaining ground for its obvious merits and has been used by
many companies.

It may be noted that if information required to be given under any of the items or sub-
items in the prescribed form cannot be conveniently given due to lack of space, it may

be given in a separate schedule or schedules. Such schedules will be annexed to and form
part of the balance sheet.

Note : Balance sheet should contain the figures of the previous accounting year along
with the figures of the current accounting year.

2.2.3 Cash Flow Statement

Presently, cash flow statement is much popular over the lunds flow statement
because the investors in particulars and the other information seckers in general are
greatly interested in cash and cash equivalents generating ability of the companies than
the funds generating ability. Cash flows arc inflows and outflows of cash and cash
equivalents while cash equivalents are short term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts ol cash and which are subject lo an insignificant
risk of changes in value, However, AS-3 requires the preparation and inclusion of cash
flow statement as an integral part of annual accounts with effect from the accounting year
commencing on or after 1.4.2001 in respect of :

(a) listed company or companies whose shares and debentures are in the process of
enlisting on a recognised stock exchange in India;

(b) all other commercial, industrial and business enterprises whose turnover for the
accounting period exceeds Rs.50 crore.

57



AS-3 requires the cash [low statement should report cash flows during the period
classified by operating, investing and financing activilies. An enterprise presents its cash
flows from operating, investing and financing activitics in a manner, which is most
appropriate io its busincss. Classification by activity provides information that allows
users to assess the impact of those activitics on the financial position of the enterprise and
the amount of its cash and cash equivalents. This information may also be used o
cvaluate the relationships among those activities. Now, we would define classified
activities as follows :

(a) Operatingactivitiesare the principal revenue-producing activities of the enterprise
and other activities that arc not investing or financing activitics.

(b) Investing activities are the acquisition and disposal of lonp-term assets and other
investments not included in cash equivalents,

(¢) Financingactivitiesareactivities thatresultinchanges in the size and composition
of the borrowers’ capital (including preference share capital in the case of a company)
and borrowings of the enterprise.

2.2.4 Other Statements

The role of other statements which are prepared to comply with the requirements
of the Companies Act, 1956, Accounting Standards prescribed by the ICAL and SEBI
guidelines, is no longer insignificant because their preparation and inclusion in final
accounts is a must to make the basic financial statements justifiable to the extent
practicable and to exhibit a true and fair view of the prolit or loss of the company
for the financial year and to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
company as at the end of the financial year. Thus, other supplementary statements
added to the basic financial statement are the part and parcel of final accounts and
may be argued as the part of the structure of the company accounts.

2.3 Summary

The Companies Act, 1956 has a great contribution to the developmenl of the
structure of company accounts in India. Changes in socio-economic conditions, need of
the users for gualitative mformation, and above all, accountability of the corporate
directors and managers compelled the government fo make several amendments to the
Actsuitably and also encourage the ICAI and SEBI to come forward with environmentally
suitable accounting standards and guidelines. This made it possible o get the present
structure of company accounts, which is enforceable and indispensable to the Indian
corporate houses.
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2.4 Questions

Q.1

Q.2

Q3.

Q.4

Q.5

What constitute the structure of company accounts in India? Do yvou think the inclusion
or cxeclusion of any other statements to the final accounts in the context of the
Companies Act, 1956, Accounting Standards and SEBI guidelines?

What are the contents of the profit and loss account of a company as per lepal
requirements?

How is a company balance sheet presented? Explain the situations where secondary
financial statements are added to basic financial statements?

Why is traditional cash {low statement not acceptable to the users? Can cash flow

stalement and other statements be avoided? 11 not, why?

Explain, in brief, how does the structure of company accounts gets ils present
shape.

2.5 Suggested Readings

Schedule V1 of the Indian Companies Act, 1956,

Banerjee, B : Regndation of Corporate Accownting and Reporting in India, World Press
Pvt. Ltd.

The Institule of Chatlered Accountants of India : dccowmting Standards.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India : Guidelines and Regulations.
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3.0 Objective

By the time you have gone through this unit you will be able to : )
% know the meaning of goodwill, its types and the factors affecting it:
* explain the need of valuation and methods of valuation:

% explain why is valuation of shares necessary and the methods of valuation,

31 Introduction

Goodwill is an intangible asset but not fictitious. Since it is an intangible assct,
it cannot be used as tangible assets like land & building, plant & machinery, furniture
& fittings; but like other tangible assets it contributes to the profit earning capacity
of the business. Again, goodwill is a valuable asset if the business is profitable; it is
value less if' the business is a losing one. When a business is able to earn profits at
a rate higher than its similar counterpart, the business is said to possess poodwill,

3.2 Meaning of Goodwill

Goodwill is the value of the reputation, connection or other advantage of the
business judged in respect of its capacity to bring in, unaided, profits. It is that
attractive force which brings customers into the business. Again, it is the value of
cxcess eamning power of a firm. Actually, it is the present value of the excess
anticipated future earnings of an enterprise. Thus, goodwill may be defined as the value
of the reputation of a business in respect of profits expected in future over and above
the normal level of profits earned by undertakings belonging to the same class of
business, '

SSAP-22, UK “Accounting Standard on Accounting for Goodwill’ defines the
term goodwill as follows :

“Goodwill is the difference between the value of a business as a whole and the
aggregate of the fair values of its separable nct assets.” Separable net assets are those
assets, which can be identificd and sold (or discarded) separately without necessarily
disposing of the business as a whole. They include the identifiable intangibles. Fair
value is the amount for which an individual asset (or liability) could be exchanged
in an arm’s length transaction. :
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3.3 Types of Goodwill

In business, there are two types of goodwill, namely, purchased goodwill and
inherent or non-purchased goodwill. Different types of goodwill are discussed in the
paragraphs that follow,

3.3.1 Purchased goodwill

It may arise when a business purchases another business. Purchased goodwill is
the cxcess of the purchase consideration over and above the fair value of the separable
net assets acquired with an cxpectation of better future prospects of the entity as a
whole. It must not exist in a business except by business purchase. Conventionally,
only purchased goodwill is recognised in accounting.

3.3.2 Non-purchased goodwill

Internally generated goodwill is known as non-purchased or inherent goodwill,
It arises when a business over the years generates its own goodwill. It is not shown
in the balance sheet.

3.4 Factors Contributing to Goodwill

In valuing goodwill following factors are to be taken into account :

Purchased and non-purchased
goodwill

Purchased goodwill only

1. Superior management team 1. Market dominance

2. Outstanding sales manager of
organisation

3. Weakness in the management of a
competitor

4. Effective advertising

5. Secret or patented manufacturing

. Economics of scale (production,

advertising, distribution, research,
management)

. Cost savings (employing technolo-

gy, transaction costs, co-ordinating
activities, stock-holding savings)

. Cost of financing (reduction in cost

of borrowings and lendet’s risk)

. Fiscal advantages (tax losses,

investment credits, government
incentives)
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Purchased and non-purchased Purchased goodwill only

goodwill

6. Good labour relations 6. Strong liquid resources

7. Ouistanding credit rating 7. Preliminaty expense savings

8. Top flight training programme for | 8, Ability to guarantee suppliers
employees

9. Good public ‘image’ 9. Ability to guarantee market

10. Unfavourable development in | 10. Investors’ collective evaluation of
operation of a competitor political, economic or social

; position

11. Favourable association with another | 11. Opinions of acquirer’s directors as
company to future policy of acquirer

12. Strategic location ' 12. Costs of acquisition

13. Discovery of talents or resources

14. Favourable tax conditions

15. Favourable government regulations

16. Favourable attitudes of customers

17. Excellent reputation of quality and
reliability of products

18. Number of outlets for products

19. Number of service locations for
products

20. Favourable agency agreements

21. Established list of customers

22. Dstablished licence to trade

23. Experience work-force

24. Good relations with suppliers

25. Superior pension fund resources

3.5 Need for Valuation of Goodwill

In case of a joint stock company, the need for valuation of goodwill arises in the
following circumstances :

(1) When the business of a company is taken over by anothet company for the
purpose ol amalgamation or absorption,
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(2) When the shares of the company are quoted on the stock exchange and their
valuation is to be made for the purposes of wealth tax, gift lax, ctc.

(3) When the business ol a company is being taken over by the government.

(4) When a person (or a company) wants to buy a large block of shares of a
comparty (or another company) with a view to exercising control over the management
of the company concerncd.

(5) When the management wants o write back poodwill, which it wrote off
previously to reduce or eliminate the debit balance in the prolit and loss account.

1.6 Methods for Valuation of Goodwill

Generally there are threc popular methods for valuation of goodwill. They are :
(1) Super Profit Method; (2) Capitalisation Method and (3) Anmuity Method. These
may be discussed in the following paragraphs :

3.6.1 Super Profit Method

The cxcess of average future maintainable profit over the normal profil is known
as super profit, In this method, goodwill is taken as the sum of super profit of the
future years for which such super profit is expected to be maintained. The elements
to be taken into account in delermining the value of goodwill are :

(a) Average futurc maintainable profit;

(b) Capital employed;

(¢) Normal rate of return; and

(d) Number of year(s) for which super profit is expected to be maintained, i.e.,
number of years’ purchase.

Super Profit = Future maintainable profit — (Capital employed x Normal rate of
refurn)

Goodwill = Super profit x Number of year(s) for which super profit can be
maintained
Mustration 1 :

Capital employed of Venus Ltd, was Rs.20,00,000. Profits for the last 3 years

ended March 31, were Rs.2,90,000, Rs.3,00,000 and Rs.3,10,000 respectively, Normal
rate of returi is 12%. Super profit is expected to be maintained for 4 ycars.

Determine the value of goodwill.

64




Solution
Super Profi
Average future maintainable profit [(2,90,000+3,00,000+3,10,000/3] Rs.3,00,000
Less : Normal retumn @12% on capital employed
([Rs.20,00,000 = 10%) Rs.2,40,000
Value of goodwill = Super profit x No. of years for

which super profit can be maintained = Rs.60,000 = 4 = Rs.2.40.000
Tlustration 2 : :

In 2004-05, a company reported a net profit of Rs.1,89,000 after 40% tax. It was
found that the profit for the year 2004-05 had included Rs.22,500 for a claim lodged
in 2001-02 for which no entry had been passed then, As far as trading conditions are

concerned, 2004-05 was a normal year. The company expects to launch a new product
in June, 2005, Estimates in this respect arc as follows :

Rs.
Sales 2,40,000
Materials, wages, etc. 1,12,500
Expected increase in fixed expenses 25,000

Ascertain the value of goodwill of the company it it is calculated at two times
the future maintainable profit.

Solution _
Valuation of Goodwill
Particulars Amount | Amount
Rs. Rs.
After tax net profit before launching a new product 1,89.,000
Less : Claim after tax (22,500 x 60%) 13,500
After tax additional profit from launching a new produect :
Sales - _ 2,40,000
Less : Materials, wages, etc. 1,12,500
Increase in fixed expenses 25,000 | 1.37,500
Additional profit before tax 1,02,500
Less ¢ Tax (@ 40% 41,000 61,500
Future maintainable profit after tax (a) 2,37,00
Thus, value of goodwill [(a) * 2] 4,74,000 |
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3.6.2 Capitalisation Method

Under this method, average future maintainable profit is capitalised using normal
rate ol return to arrive at the value of the firm (including goodwill). Goodwill is taken
as the excess of the value of the firm (including goodwill) over the value of capital
employed (excluding goodwill) for which goodwill is caleulated. In this method the
following elements are to be taken into account :

(a) Average future maintainable profit;
(b): Capital employed in the business for which goodwill is to be calculated; and
(¢) Normal rate of retum in the industry to which the business belongs.

Value of the business = (Average future maintainable profit)/(Normal rate of
return)

Value of goodwill = Value of the business — Value of capital employed

Mlustration 3 :

Capital employed in Venus Company Ltd. is Rs.20,00,000. Average future
maintainable profit is Rs.3,00,000. Normal rate of return is 12%. Find out the value
of goodwill.

Solution

Value of the business = (Average future maintainable profit)/Normal rate of return
= (Rs.3,00,000)/0.12=Rs,25,00,000

Value of goodwill = (Value of the business) — (Value of capital employed) =
Rs.(25,00,000 = 20,00,000) = Rs.5,00,000

Ilustration 4 :

Mr. Gupta is the owner of a medical shop. On March 31, 2004, his capital
employed in the business amounted to Rs.5,20,000, He pays Rs.1,500 as monthly
salary to a chemist and rent of Rs.6,000 per year. Mr. Roy, landlord and a famous
chemist, 15 interested in buying the business of Mr, Sen. Averape annual profit afler
salary and rent amounts to Rs.41,000. Value of Building owned by the chemist
landlord rented to Mr, Sen is Rs.80,000. i

If 10% return on capital employed can be considered as fair, what amount of
goodwill Mr. Roy should pay?
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Solution
Valuation of Goodwill

Particulars | Amount | Amount |
; Rs. Rs,
() Capital Employed :
Capital introduced by Mr. Gupta 5,20,000
Add : Value of Building 30,000
6,00,000
(i) Super Profit :
. Profit after salary and rent 41,000
Add : Expenses no longer required :
Salary of the chemist 18,000
Rent of the shop 6,000 24,000
Less : Normal return on capital employed
(6,00,000 x 10%) 65,000
(iii) Value of goodwill (Capitalised value of
super profit at 10% = Rs.5,000 = (100/10) 50,000

3.6.3 Annuity Method

This method is the refinement of the super profit method. Super profit is expected
to arisc usually at the end of each financial year, i.c., at different points of time. In
order to find out the value of goodwill, it would be unfair to simply multiply the super
profit by the number of years® purchase for which super profit is expected to be earned.
So future values of super profit must be discounted using appropriate discount rate
(i.e., normal rate of return) with a view to getting present value of super profits. In
casc of even annual super profit, the Amnuity Formula can be used suitably for
discounting future values of super profit in order to convert them into the present value:
or, annual super profit can be multiplied by the sum of present values of the appropriate

discount rate to find out the value of poodwill,

THustration 5 :

Super profit of Venus Ltd. Rs.60,000 per year can be maintained for 4 vears.

Discount rate is 12%. Find the value of goodwill.
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Solution

Goodwill (V) = A/I[L — 11 + i) Where, V=Value of goodwill
= (Rs.60,000)/(0.12)[1 = L/(1 + 0.12)4 A = Average super profit
= Rs.5,00,000 = [(0.5735)/(1.5735)] i = Interest per rupee p.a.
= Rs.1,82,237 n = No. of years for which

super profit can be maintained

Alternatively, goodwill = Super profit x Sum of present values at 12% for 4 years
= Rs.60,000 x 3.0373 = Rs.1,82,238%

*Difference is due to approximation.

3.7 Capital Employed

It is the most important factor in valuation of goodwill because the volume of
profit is significant only in relation {o the capital used to carn it. Capital employed
is dependent on the approach to be adopted. There are two approaches ; (/) Long
Term Fund Approach and (2) Equity Approach. They are discussed below

3.7.1 Long Term Fund Approach

Under this approach, capital employed refers to permanent resources used to earn
profit, Accordingly, capital employed means ‘(otal assets minus non-trading assets
minus fictitious assets minus current liabilities.” Alternatively, capital employed
means ‘nel-worth plus long-term debt.”

3.7.2 Equity Approach

This approach is suitable for the purpose of valuing goodwill of companics where
it is essentially the advantage accruing to the sharcholders, which has to be evaluated.
For this reason only such funds which is attributable to the shareholders is to come
into capital employed with a view to giving weightage to financial leverage while
calculating goodwill. Thus, in valuing goodwill of companies where advantage of
financial leverage goes in favour of sharcholders, capital employed means ‘total assets
tinus non-trading asscts minus fictitious assets minus all outside liabilities including
long-term debt.® Alternatively, capital employed means only ‘net-worth.” Thus, in
valuing goodwill, equity approach should be preferred on the ground that use of debt.
capital at a cheaper rate than that it has earned so that the value of the firm will be
maximum,
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It is to be remembered that profit 1s expressed in terms of current prices, So, in
order to make fair determination of capital employed, all assets and current liabilities
{or, outside liabilities) are to be taken at current prices, because profit is measured
at current price. In making so, all fixed assets and inventories are to be taken into
account al current prices and the remaining current assets and current liabilities (or,
outside liabilitics) need nol require any valuation as they are already stated at current
prices.

Since the capital employed changes over the year, it would be better to have a
average capital employed instead of capital employed (i.e., closing capital employed)
because average capital employed is the true representative of the capital employed
while evaluating goodwill.

3.8 Future Maintainable Profit

Future maintainable profit is the second important factor in determining the value
of goodwill. Future maintainable profit is ascertained by taking cither simple averape
or weighted average, as the circumstance demands, of the past profits. Conventionally,
profits of last 3 to 5 years are considered. When the past profits do not show any
definite trend, simple average is used to ascertain the future maintainable profit. In
case of mereasing or decrcasing trend of the past profits, weighted average is laken
in order to ascertain future maintainable profit. However, more weights are assigned
to the profit figures of the immediate past years while less weight are given to the
profit figures of the furthest past years.

Nevertheless, ascertainment of future maintainable profit requires following
adjustments :

(1) Elimination of non-trading loss due to sale of asset(s), fire, earthquake, flood,
strike, lock out, etc. from profit or loss.

(3) Elimination of non-trading income arising out of sale of assel(s), dividend or
interest income, etc. from profit or loss because capital employed consists only of
trading asscts. But, in case of income received from trading investments, needs no
adjustment. :

(4) In case of increase or decrease in the value of [fixed asscts on account of
revaluation, under-charged or over-charged depreciation should be adjusted on the
increased or decreased values.

(5) In case of change in the corporate tax rate, tax charged at old rate should be
added back and tax should charge at new rate.

6y



(6) In case ol change in accounting policy, profit or loss should be so adjusted
to have profit or loss on the basis of uniform accounting policy.

2.9 “ormal Rate of Return

Invmal rate of return is the third important factor in valuing goodwill, It means
o ra2 of return that will satisfy an ordinary investor (not very reluctant or eager to
invest) in the industry concerned. Such a return differs from industry to industry, It
comprises of two components :

(a) Risk-free rate : It is the pure nterest rate prevailing in the concerned economy
(the rate of return on fixed deposit in bank or povernment securities may be considered
as risk-free rate). . ‘

(b) Risk premium : It is the premium in addition to risk-free rate for taking
business risk for the industry to which the company belongs.

It is relevant to state that, higher is the business risk, the higher is the normal rate
of return. In practice, industry average return is taken as normal rate of return.

TMustration 6 : _

From the following information, determine ;

(a) Capital employed;

(b) Average capital employed; and

(¢) Value of goodwill by (i) super profit method (on the basis of 5 years’ purchase
of average super profit); (ii) capitalisation method; and (iii) annuity method (on the
basis of super profit can be maintained for 5 years).

Balance Sheet of 7 Ltd. as on March 31, 2005

[iahilities Amount Assels Amount
Rs, Rs.
20,000 Equity Shares of Goodwill 30,000
Rs, 10 each 2,00,000| Fixed Assets 3,50,000
1,000 9% Preference Shares Investments :
of Rs. 1000 each 1,00,000 (6% Govt. Loan) 45,000
Reserve and Provision Current Assets 2,00,000
(Provision for taxation Share-selling commission 10,000
Rs, 20,000) 2,00,000 | Discount on issue of :
10% Debentures 90,000 debentures 15,000
Creditors 60,000
6,50,000 6,50,000
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The current market value of the plant included in fixed assets is Rs.15,000 more.
The average profit of the company (after deductions of interest and govt. taxes) is

Rs. 68,000, The normal rate of return is 12%. Tax rate is 40%.
Solution as per equity approach

(a) Capital Employed Rs.
Total Assets as per given balance sheet 6,50,000
Add : Increase in plant 15.000
6,65,000
Less : Goodwill 30,000
Investments 45,000
Share-selling commission 10,000
Discount on issue of debenlures 15,000 1.00.000
5,65,000
Less : 10% Debentures 90,000
Provision for taxation 20,000
Creditors 60.000 1.70.000
3.95.000
(b) Average Capital Employed Rs.
Capital Employed as in (a) above 3,95,000
Less ;Y of average trading profit after taxes (65,480 x ') 32,740
3.62.260
(c) Faluation of Goodwill
(i) Super Profit Method : Rs.
Average profit afler interest and tax 63,000.00
Less : Income from investments after tax (45,000 x 6% x 60%) 1.620.00
' 66,380.00

Less : Under-charged depreciation on increased value of plant,

say 10%, net of tax (1,500 x 60%) 900.00
Average trading profit or future maintainable profit after taxes  65,480.00
Less : Normal return @ 12% on average capital employed 43.471.20
Super profit : 22,008.80

Goodwill = Super profit x No. of years for which super profit can be maintained

= Rs.22,008.80 x 5 = Rs.1.10.044
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(ii) Capitalisation Method .

Goodwill = Capitalised value of net separable assets included in the capital

employed minus Capital employed

= (Average future maintainable profit after taxes)/12% — Capital

employed
= (Rs.65,480)/12% — Rs.3,95,000
= Rs.1.50.667
(iii) Annuity Method :

Goodwill = Super profit * Sum of present values at 12% for 5 years

= Rs.22,008.80 x 3.6048 = Rs.79.337
Solution as per long-term fund approach
(a) Capital Employed
Capital employed as per shareholders’ fund approach
Add : 10% Debentures

(b) Average Capital Employed
Capital employed as in (a) above

Less : 2 of average profit after taxes

(c) Valuation of Goodwill
(i) Super Profit Method :

Average trading profit after taxes as per
shareholders’ fund approach
Add-back Debenture interest
Average trading profit or fulure maintainable profit after taxes
Less : Normal return (@ 12% on average capital employed
Super profit

Rs.
3,95,000
50,000
4.85.000
Rs.
4,855,000 |
32,740 |
4.52.260

Rs.

63,480.00
_9.000.00
74,480.00
20.208.80

Goodwill = Super profit x No. of years for which super profit can be maintained

= Rs.20,208.80 = 5 = Rs.1.01.044
(i) Capitalisation Method :
Goodwill = (Rs.74,480)/12% — Rs.4.85,00 = Rs.1.35.667
- (iil) Annuity Method
Goodwill = Rs.20,208.80 » 3.6048 = Rs.72.849
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3.10 Need for Valuation of Shares

Shares of all public limited companies arc not quoted on the stock exchange.
Again, shares of private limited companics, in any case, will not be quoted. In casc
of change of hands of unquoted shares, valuc of such shares should be ascertained.
Moreover, need of valuation of shares arises in the following circumstances :

(1) Assessments under the estate duty, pift tax, wealth tax, ete.

(2) Purchase of a block of shares generally involving acquisition of controlling
interest in the company.

(3) Formulation of schemes of amalgamation, absorption, reconstruction, ctc.

(4) Acquisition of interest of dissenting sharcholders under a reconstruction
scheme. £

(5) Compensating shareholders on the acquisition of their shares, by the government
under a nationalisation scheme.

(6) Conversion of preference shares into equity shares.
(73 Advancing loan on the securily of shates.

(8) Purchasc of shares by the employees of the company where the retention of
such shares is limited up to the period of their refirement.

3.11 Methods of Valuation of Shares

Basically there arc two mcthods used for valuation of equity shares. They are
explaincd as below :

3.11.1 Net Asset Method :

This method is also known as asset backing method or intrinsic value method or
break-up value method or balance sheet method. The essence of this method is the

security, safety and asset cover of shares. Under this method, value per equity share

is ascertained as follows :

Value per equity share = (Net assets available for equity shares)/(No. of equity
shares)

The following important aspects should be considered while arnvmg at the ‘net
assets available for equily shares’

(1) A proper value should be placed on the goodwill of the business. Valuation
of goodwill should be made using any of the methods, as explained in the preceding
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pages. Since non-purchased goodwill is not shown in the balance sheet, it should not
be considered at all while caleulating the value of capital employed and valuing shares,

(2) Proper valuation should be made for other intangibles like patents, trademarks,
know-how, cte. They should be valued at their current cost. Current cost implies entry
price. Again, enltry price means the pricc to be paid by the company if it wants (o
acquirc any asset at its present condition.

(3) Fictitious assets like debit balance in the profil & loss account, preliminary
expenses, discount on debentures, underwriting commission, etc. should not be
considered at all and should be excluded as well.

(4) All tangible fixed asscts and non-trading investments should be taken  at their
market values. In the absence of information relating to the market values of assets,
balance sheet values may be taken as the market values.

(3) Stock of finished goods including stock of raw materials and work-in-progress
should valued at cost or market price, whichever is lower.

(6) Adequate provision for bad and doubtful debts should be made against sundry
debtors,

(7) Bills receivable in hand, prepaid expenses and accrued incomes should be
taken at their book wvalues.

(8) In case of cquity shares having same nominal value, but different paid up
values, it is advisable to make notional calls on unpaid shares in order to make the

partly paid up shares notionally fully paid up. Amount to be realised from notional
calls is taken as if cash in hand.

(9) In casc of equity sharcs having different nominal values and different paid
up values, it is advisable to distribute net assets available for equity shareholders before
making notional calls among different groups of share in proportion of paid up capital;
and then make notional calls on unpaid shares to make them notionally fully paid up.

Following liabilities should be deducted from the total assets arrived at as
discussed above, in order to find out the net assets available for equity sharcholders |

(1) All long-term debts including outstanding interest.

(2) Current liabilitics like bank overdraft, sundry creditors, bills payable, outstanding
expenses, pre-received incomes or provision for taxation.

(3) All liabilities not provided for in the accounts.
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(4) Preference share capital including arrear and proposed prefercnce dividends,

if any.

(5) When the management of a company wants lo know the ex-dividend value
per equity share, equity proposed dividend should also be deducted along with other

liahilities.

Valuation of shares under net asset method is useful for Jormulating scheme of
amalgamation or when a person (or, a company) wanis to acguire o controlling
interest in the company. This method is also suitable for those who are risk averse.

HMustration 7 :

The lollowing is the summarised Balance Sheet of X Ltd. as on March 31, 2005 -

Liabilities Amount Assets Amount
Rs. Rs, |
20,000 Equity Shares of Goodwill 10,000
Rs. 100 each fully paid | 2,00,000| Land & Building 2,10,000
LO0O Pref. Shares of Rs. 100 Plant & Machinery 1,50,000
cach fully paid 1,00,000 | Investment in National
General Reserve 30,000 Plan Certificates 10,600
Dividend Equalisation Reserve| 10,000 | Stock at cost 90,000
Staff Welfare Fund 15,000| Sundry Debtors 40,000
Employees® Provident Fund | 1,40,000| Bills Receivable 8.000
Employees’ Compensation Cash at Bank 1,37,000
Fund Cash in hand 10,000
(represented by investments) | 10,000 Preliminary Expensecs 10,000
Employeces’ Savigns A/ 20,000
Profit & Loss Afc 60,000
Provision for Taxation 40,000
sundry Creditors 50,000
6,75.,000 6,75,000

On April 1, 2005 all Preference Shares were redeemed at a premium of 10% out

of profits otherwise available for dividend.

You are required to ascertain the value of each Equity Share by Net Asset Method
on the basis of the Balance Sheet immediately after redemption of Prefercnce Shares
taking into consideration of the following information :

(a) Goodwill is valued at Rs.85.000.
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(b) 10% ol Sundry Debtors are o be considered as bad.

(¢) A claim for compensation to an employee has been admitted on April 1, 2005.
The amount involving being Rs.5,000,

(d) All other assets are to be taken at their book values.

Solution
Net asscts available for equity shareholders : Rs. Rs.
Total assets as per last balance sheet 6,75,000
Aded : Tnerease in goodwill 75.000
7,50,000
Less ; Decrease in bank balance for redemption
of prelercnce shares 1,10.000
6,40,000
Less : Deereasc in sundry debtors for bad debt 4,000
Preliminary expenses - 10.000 14,000
6,26,000
Less : Current habilities :
Stall” welfare fund® 15,000
Employees’ provident fund 1,40.000
Claim for compensation (o an employee 5.000
Employees’™ savings Alc 20,000
Provision for taxalion 40,000 _
Sundry Creditors 50.000 2,70.000
3.56.000

Value of cach share = (Net assets available for equity shares)/Number of shares
= Rs.3,56,000/2,000 = Rs.178

* Staff Welfare Fund is treated as current liability according to conservatism
concept.

3.11.2 Yield Method :

Yield refers to effective rate of return from similar types of investment. Tnvestors
arc interested in vield ol the company and ultimately in dividend. The essence of this
method is the return on investment. Hence, the valuation of shares should be based
on return on investment of the company concerned. This method is also known as
market value method or eaming capacity method. Again, this method may be divided
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Market value = [(Company dividend) x (Paid up value per share)]/(Market
dividend) Tn determining the company dividend, average of the immediate past of 3
to 5 years of actual dividend paid by the company may be taken.

This basis of valuation is preferred by investors who invest their funds with
speculative motive and who are risk taker and are less interested in asset cover of
their shares,

Mustration 8 :

From the following information, find out the value of cach equity share under yield
method : ‘

20,000 12% Preference shares of Rs.10 each fully paid Rs. 2,00,000
25,000 Equity shares of Rs,10 each fully paid Rs. 2,50,000
20,000 Equity shares of Rs.10 each, Rs.7.50 paid up Bs. 1,50,000
Expected profit per year before taxes Rs. 2,25,000

Rate of tax : 40%

Transfer to general reserve : 20% of profit afler taxes

Normal rate of return on equity capital : 15% _

Rate of equity dividends for last 3 years are 14% 13% and 15% respectively.
Similar companies pay dividend (@ 12.50% on paid up equity capital.

Solution

- On the basis of expected equily dividend (i.e. controlling interest) : Rs.
Expected profit before taxes per year 2.25,000
Less : Taxes @ 40% 90.000
Distributable profit after taxes per year 1,35,000
Less : Transfer to general reserve @ 20% 27.000
Profit available to shareholders _ 1,08,000
Less : Preference dividend @ 12% on Rs.2,00,000 24 000
Profit available for equity dividend 84.000

Paid up equity capital=(Rs.2,50,000 + Rs.1,50,000) = Rs,-‘-t_,ﬂ{},{](}{}

Company expectation= [(Profit available for equity div.) x 1001/ (Paid up equity
capital) = {Rs.ﬂ-‘-l,ﬂl_fl{} % 100)/Rs.4,00,000 = 21%:

Market expectation, i.e. normal rate of return on equity capital = 15%
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into two categories. They are : (1) on the basis of expected dividend and (2) on the
basis of actnal dividend; and they are discussed in the paragraphs that follow,

® On the basis of expected dividend :

This basis of valuation is most suitable to the holders of large block of shares
(i.c. controlling interest/majority holding) because they can dictate over the payment
of dividend. The formula for determining the market value per equily is :

Market value = [(Company expectation) * (Paid up value per share)]/(Market
expeclation), Here, company expectation is the ratc of dividend/yield expected from
the company while the market expectation is the normal rate of dividend/yield from
the market.

In view of finding out the recent company yield, it is advisable to take the average
of last 3 to 5 years’ earnings of the company. Moreover, it requires adjustment of
the following aspects :

(1) Abnormal losses due to fire, theft, burglary, etc. should be eliminated from
the figures of profit and loss.

(2) Non-trading incomes and losses should be eliminated.
(3) Capital profit or loss on account of sale of fixed assets should be eliminated.

(4) Compensation paid to employees due to accident or voluntary retirement
scheme (VRS) should be eliminated.

(5) Compensation received for acquiring land or property of the company by the
government, should be eliminated.

(6) Adequate provision for taxation should be made,

(7) In respect of transfer to general reserve due care should be given to strengthen
the future financial condition of the company as per the requirements of the Companies
Act, 1956.

(8) Preference dividend should be considered. '

@ On the basis of actual dividend :

This basis of valuation is highly suitable to the holders of small block of shares
(i.e., non-controlling interest/minority holding) because they cannot dictate over the
payment of dividend of the company. As a resull, expeetation of the minority
sharcholders should be confined to the payment of actual dividend. The lormula for
ascertaining the market value per share is |
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Market value per sharc = [Company expectation) x (Paid up value)]/(Market
expectation) : Fully paid up = (21% = Rs.10)/15% = Rs.14,00

® On the basis of actual equity dividend (i.c. non-controlling interest)

Since the rates of dividend paid are fluctuating during the last 3 years, simple
average is suitable in order to find out average company dividend.

Company dividend = (14% + 13% + 15%)/3 = 14%
Market dividend =12.50%

Market value per share = [(Company dividend) x (Paid up value)]/(Market
dividend) :

Fully paid up = (14% x Rs.10)/12.50% = Rs.11.20
Partly paid up = (14% x Rs.7.50)/12.50% = Rs.8.40

3.12 Preference Shareholders’ Claim

The claim of Preference Shareholders may be ascertained under the following
situations :
" (1) When preference shares have priority as to the payment of capital only (ie.

non-cumulative), then preference shareholders’ claim will be limited to paid up capital
only,

(2) When preference shares are redeemable at a premium, then preference
shareholders’ claim will be paid up capital plus arrear dividend plus premium payable
on redemption.

(3) When preference shares have priority as to the payment of capital and arrcar
dividend (i.e., cumulative), the preference sharcholders’ claim will be limited to paid
up capital plus arrear dividend.

(4) When preference shares are participating, then prefercnce shareholders’ claim :
will be paid up capital plus share of surplus of asscts, if any, after payment of both
preference share capital plus equity share capit.l,

The question arrear preference dividend does not arise al all in case of non-
cumulative preference shares, But when the shares are not specifically mentioned as
non-cumulaiive, they should be considered as cumulaiive,
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Illustration 9 :

The following is the Balance Sheet of Union Lid. as on March 31, 2005 :

Liabilities Amount Assels Amount |
Rs. Rs. i
6% Preference Shares of Fixed Assets 4,10,000
Rs, 10 each fully paid 2,00,000 | Current Assels 2,438,000
Equity Shares of Rs. 10 Preliminary Expenses 10,000
each fully paid 3.00,000| Discount on debentures 3,000
General Reserve 12,000 Profit & Loss Alc 27,000
Debenture Redemption Fund 18,000
Investment Fluctuation und 10,000
5% Debentures 50,000
Depreciation Fund 20,000
Sundry Creditors 90,000
7,00,000 7.00,000

Current assets included mvestments ol Rs.60,000, market price of which is
Rs.64,000. Debtors included in current assets are doubtful to extent of Rs.5,000 for
which no provision has been made so far. Stock includes obsolete items of Rs.6,000
and at the end of the year did not include a return of Rs. 1,000 though the transaction
was properly recorded and posted,

Dchenture interest owes for one year and preference dividends are in arrear for
two years. Other assets are worth book values.

You are required to find out the value of each cquity and preference share under
the following circumstances :

{a) When prefercnce shares have priority both as to the payment of capital and
arrear of dividend in the event of liquidation takes place;

(b) When preference shares have no priority as to the payment of capital and arrear
dividend. ' '

(¢) When preference shares have priority as to the payment of capital only; and

(e) When preference shares have priority as to the payment of arrear dividend
only.

80



Solution

1. Net Assets available for shareholders : Rs. Rs.

Total asscts as per last balance sheet 7,00,000
Add : Increase in the value of investments 4,000

Return of goods not included in stock 1,000 5.000

_ 7,05,000
Less : Depreeiation fund 20,000
Provision for doubtful debts 5.000
Obsolete items of stock 6,000
Preliminary expenses 10,000
Discount on debenture 5,000

Debit balance of profit and loss Alc 27,000 73.000

Revalued total assets 6,32,000

Less : Outside liabilities :

5% Debentures _ 50,000
QOutstanding debenture interest for one yéar 2,500

Sundry creditors 90,000 1.42.500

4.89.500

(a) When preference shares have priority both as to the payment of capital and
arrear of dividend (i.e., cumulative preference shares) in the event of liguidation
fakes place :

Rs
Net assets available for shares as in (1) above 4,89,500
Less : Preference shareholders’ claim :
" Paid up preference share capital 2,00,000
Arrear dividends for 2 years 24.000 2,24.,000
Net assets available for equity shares 2,65.500

Value of each share=(Nel assets available for shares)/number of shares :
Preference share = Rs.2,24,000/20,000 = Rs.11.20
Equity share = Rs.2,65,500/30,000 = Rs.8.85
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(b) When preference shares have no priority as to the capital and arrear
dividend (i.e., when preference shares are to be freated as equity shares) :

Value of each share (both preference and equity) = Rs. 4,89,500/(30,000 + 20,000}
= Rs.9.79 -

(c) When preference shares have priority as fo the payment of capital only (ie.,
non-cumulative preference shares) :

Rs.

Net assets available for shares as in (1) above 4.89.500
Less - Preference sharcholders’ claim : Paid up capital only 2.00.000
Net assets available for equity shares 2.89.500

Value of each share :
Prefercnce share = Rs.2,00,000/20,000 = Rs.10.00
_ Equity share = Rs.2,89,500/30,000 = Rs.9.65

(d) When preference shares have priovity as to the payment of arrear dividend

only :
Rs.
Nel assets available for shareholders as in (1) above 4.89.500
Less © Arrear preference dividend ' 24,000

Net assets available for shares after arrear preference dividend (1). 4.65.500

Distribution of assets as in (1) should be made between preference shares and
equity shares in the paid up capital ratio of 2,00,000 : 3,00,000, i.e., in the ratio ol

P
Net assets available for shares : Preference Equity
; Rs. Rs.
Share of net assets 1,86,200 2,79,300
Arrear preference dividend 24,000 —

2,10,200 2,79,300

Value of each share :
Preference share = IRS.Z,IH,EDWEU,UG{} = Rs.10.52 (cum-div)
Equity share = Rs.2,79,300/30,000 = Rs.9.31 (ex-div)
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3.13 Fair Value of Share

This is, of course, no valuation, but a compromise formula for bringing parties
to an agreement, The fair value is simply the average of the values obtained by net
assct method and yicld method. It often argued that the average of net asset value and
yield value incorporates the merits of both the methods. For this reason, such average
is called fair value. Thus, fair value per share = (Net assct value + Yield value)/2,

Mustration 10 :

Mr. Angik wants to buy 1,000 shares of Prosperous Ltd. on the basis of fair value
of shares. You are asked to determine the total amount lo be paid by Mr. Angik from
the under-noted Balance Sheet and additional information :

T iabilities

Amount Assels Amount
Rs. Rs.

Equity Shares (Rs. 10) 1,20.000 | Goodwill 15,000
Reserve Fund 1,00,000 | Building 1.50,000
Profit & Loss Alc 15,000| Machinery 60,000
8% Debentures 50,000 | Investments 30,000
Creditors 52,500 Stock 45,000
Debtors 30,000

Bank 7.500

3,37,500 3,37,500

Additional information :

(i) Market value of the asscts has been assessed as under :

Goodwill—Rs,37,500
Machinery—Rs.45,000

Building—Rs.2,25,000
Investments—Rs.22,500

(ii) Net profits after 40% taxation for the last three years were as under :
For the year ended 31.3.2002  Rs. 40,000
For the year ended 31.3.2003 Rs. 39,000
For the year ended 31.3.2004 Rs. 41,000

(iii) Fair return in the similar business is 12%.

(iv) Ignore depreciation on the increased value of asscts

(v) All investments are trading investments.
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© Solution

Net Asset Value

Net Assets available for equity sharcholdets : Rs. Rs.
Goodwill W 37,500
Building 2,25,000
Machinery 45,000
Investments 22,500
Stock | 45,000
Debtors 30,000
Bank 7.500
4,12,500
Less : Bxternal Liabilities :
8% Debentures 50,000
Creditors 52,500  1.02.500
3,10,000
Value per equity share = (Rs.3,10,000)/(12,000) = Rs.25.83 Approx.
Yield Method
Profit available for dividend : : Rs.
After tax average profit [(36,000 + 39,000 + 42,000)/(1 + 2 + 3)] 40,000
Less : ‘Transfer to reserve (as there is sufficient reserve) Nil
40,000

Company expectation = (Rs.40,000)/(1,20,000) x 100 = 33.33% Approx.
Market expectation = 12% (Given)
Value per equity share = (33.33%)/(12%) * Rs.10 = Rs.27.78 Approx.

Fair Value

Fair value per equity share = (25.83 + 27.78)/2 = Rs.26.80 Approx.

Thus, has to pay for acquiring 1,000 shares of Prosperous Ltd. = Rs.26.80 = 1,000
= Rs.26,800 Approx. el
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Mustration 11 :

The Balance Sheet of Sunflower Lid. as on December 31, 2005 15 as below :
Liabilities Amount Asgsets Amopunt
Rs. Rs,
Share Capital Fixed Assets
Equity shares of Goodwill 70,000
Rs. 100 each 7.50,000 Machinery 3,80.,000
Lesy ; Calls in arrear Factory Shed 4,10,000
(Rs. 20 for all Vehicles 1,05,000
final call) 30.000 | 7.20,000| Furniture 40,000
8% Preference shares of - | Investments 1,60,000
Rs. 100 each 3.00,000| Current Assers
Keserves and Surplus Stock-in-trade 3.00,000
General Reserve 2,80.,000| Sundry Debtors 5,25,000
Profit & Loss AJdc 2.00,000| Cash at Bank 80,000
Current Liabilities Miscellaneous Expenditure
10% Bank Loan 1,50,000| Preliminary Expenses 30,000
Sundry Creditors 4.,50,000 :
21,00,000 21,00,000

Additional information :

(1) Fixed assets are worth 20% above book value. Depreciation on appreciated
valuc of fixed assets not to be considered for valuation of goodwill.

(2) Of the investments, 70% iz non-trading and the balance is trading. All trade
investments are to be valued at 20% above cost. A uniform dividend @10% is catned
on all investments.

(3) For the purj}ase of valuation of shares, poodwill is to be considered on the
basis of 5 years’ purchase of super profit based on average profit of last 3 years, Profits
(after 40% tax) are as follows :

2003 : Rs.3,00,094; 2004 : Rs.3,54,148 and 2005 : Rs.3,87,162
In similar business, return on capital employed is 15%

(4) In 2003, new machinery costing Rs.20,000 was purchased but wrongly
charged to revenue. No effect has yet been given for rectifying the same. Depreciation
charged on machinery is @ 10% per annum under reducing balance method.
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(5) The rates of equity dividend for the last 2 years were 18% and 19%
respectively. For the year 2005, proposed dividend is 20%. Similar companics pay
dividend (@ 16% and the share is quoted on the stock exchange Rs.120 cach.

Find out the fair value of each fully paid and partly paid equity share,
Solution

Valuation of Equity Shares (Net Asset Method) : Rs.
Capital employed on 31.12.2005 [Working Note (2)] 15,02.096
Add ;: Goodwill [Working Note (3)] 7,95,130
Market value of non-trading investments (1,60,000 x 70% = 120%) 1,34,400
Calls in arrear 30,000
Net assets available for shares 24,61,626
Less : Preference share capital 3.,00,00

Net assets available to equity shares (a) 21.61.626
Number of shares (b) : 7.500
Value of each fully paid up share [(a)/(b)] Rs,288.22

Value of each partly paid up share (Fully paid up value — unpaid call) Rs.268.22
Valuation of Equity Shares (Yield Method) :

(a) On the basis of expected dividend : Rs.
Weighted average profit alter taxcs 3,55,880
Less : Transfer to General Reserve assumed (@ 20% 71176
Preference dividend (3,00,000 x 8%) 24,000 95,176
Profit available for equity dividend 2.60.704

Company expectation= (Profit available for equity div.) x 100]/Paid up cquity
capital = (Rs.2,60,704 = 100)/Rs.7,50,000 = 34.76%

Market expectation = [(Dividend per share) x 100}/(Market price per share) =
(Rs.16 = 100)/Rs.120 = 13.33%

Market value per share = [{(Company expectation) % (Paid up value)}/(Market
expeclation)] : '

Fully paid up = (34.76% x Rs.100)/13.33%] = Rs.260.77
Partly paid up = [(34.76% * Rs.80)/13.33%)] = Rs,208.61
Fair value per share :

Fully paid up = Rs.(282.22 + 260.77)/2 = Rs.271.50
Partly paid up = Rs.(268.22 + 208.61)/2 = Rs.238.42
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(b) On the basis of actual dividend :

As there is a clear upward trend in actual dividend paid, weighted average dividend
is desirable in order fo find out company dividend. Assuming weights arel, 2 and
3 for the years 2003, 2004 and 2005 respectively.

Company dividend = (18% X 1 + 19% x 2+ 22% x 3)/(1 + 3 43) = 1933%
Market dividend=13.33%

Market value per share = [{(Company dividend) x (Paid up value)}/(Market
dividend)

Fully paid up = [(19.33% x Rs.100)/13.33%)] = Rs.145.00

Partly paid up = [(19.33% x Rs.80)/13.33%] = Rs.116.00

Fair value of a share :

Fully paid up = Rs.(282.22 + 145.00)/2 = Rs.213.61

Partly paid up = Rs.(268.22 + 116.00) = Rs.192.11
Working Notes :

1. Average profit afier taxes of the last 3 years :

Particulars 2003 2004 2005

Rs. Rs. Rs.

Profit after tax @ 40% 3.00,094 | 3,54,148 | 3,87,162
Add ;  Purchase of mach. wrongly charged

o revenue, net of tax 12,000 — =

Less ; Depreciation at 10% on machinery
less tax 40% (1,200) | (1,080) (972)
Less © Income from non-trading investments,
net of tax @ 40%
(1,60,000 x 70% » 10% x 60%) (6,720) | (6,720) (6,72)

3.04,174 | 3,46,348 | 3,79.470

Since there is a sharp increasing trend in profit, weighted average profit is suitable.
Assuming weights are 1, 2 and 3 for the year 2003, 2004 and 2005 respectively,
weighted average profil after taxes will be :

[(Rs.3,04,174 % 1) + (3,46,348) x 2 + (3,79470 x /(1 +2+ 3) = Rs.3,55,880
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(2) Average capital employed on 31,12.2005 : ; Rs.

Machinery (3,80,000 + 20,000 = 90% x 90% x 90%) 3.94,580
Factory Shed 4,10,000
Vehicles ' 105,000
Furniture 40,000
9.49,580
Add : Increase in fixed assets @ 20% 1.89.916
Current market value of fixed assets ' 11,39,49¢6
Trade Investments (1,60,000 x 30% x 120% 57,600
Stock-in-trade : 3,00,000
Sundry Debtors 5,25,000
Cash at Bank 80.000
21,02,096
Less © Current Liabilities :
10%; Bank Loan 1,50,000
sSundry Creditors 4.50,000 6.00.000
Capital employed on 31.12.2005 15,02,096
Less : V2 of current year’s trading profit after taxes (3,79.470 x %)  1.89.735
Average capilal employed on 31.12.2005 13.12.361
(3) Value of goodwill : Rs.
Weighted average profit after taxes : 3,55,880
Less : Normal return on average capital employed
(13,12,361 x 15%) 1.96,854
Super profit 1.59.026

Goodwill = Super profit x 5 years’ purchase = Rs.1,59,026 x 5 = Rs7.95.130

3.14 Summary

Valuation of shares demands valuation of goodwill. Valuation of goodwill and
shares are the most controversial issues in financial accounting. Determination of
capital employed, future maintainable profit, super profit, and the number of years
for which either future maintainable profit or super profit can be maintained requires
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subjective judgment. Thus, result of subjective judgment ol anyone may differ with
the result another; cven it may differ between attitudes of oneself at different
circumstances. Nevertheless, valuation of goodwill and shares are made using popular
methods and conventions so that the chance of variation of computed result is
minimum. :

3.15 Exercises

Problem 1 :
Following information of Eastern Ltd. are available :
I. Profils earned after taxes : 2001 Rs. 80,000; 2002 Rs. 88,000 and 2003 Rs. §4,000
2, Mormal rate of return : 10%
3. Capital employed : Rs. 7,50,000 including 8% debentures of Rs, I,SI_]',{]{]{}.
4. Present value of an annuity of rupee one for 5 years at 10% is Rs. 3.78
5

Profits included non-recurring profits on an average Rs. 4,000 out of which it was
deemed that even non-recwring profits had a tendency of appearing at the rate of
Rs. 1,000 per vear. i

6. Tax rate is 40%.

You are asked to ascertain the value of goodwill using :
(a) Super profit method, assuming super profit can be maintained for 5 years;
(b) Capitalisation of (i) future maintainable profit and (ii) supcr profit; and
{c) Annuity method.

- Answers ! Shareholders™ fund  Long term fund
Value of goodwill : approach (Rs.) approach (Rs.)
(a) Super profit method L 1E000 96,000
{b) Capitalisation method, for both (i) & (ii) 2,22,000 1,92,000
{c) Annuity method i 83916 72,576

Problem 2
The capital structure of Z Ltd. is made up as follows :
15,000 Equity Shares of Rs.100 each fully paid Rs. 15,00,000
9,000 iﬂ%lefereme Shares of Rs.100 each fully paid Rz, 9.00,000
The prefercnice sharcs are participating and they are entitled to a profit of 20% after
payment of preference dividend and an equity dividend of 15%. The balance of profit of will

a9



be available for equity shareholders. It is the practice of the company to transfer 10% of profit
after tax profit to general reserve.

Average profit after tax of the company is Rs.7,50.000. Normal rates of return for this
type of company are 12% for preference shares and 16% for equity shares.

On the basis ol above information, find out the value of cach share, preference and equity
using yield method.

Answer : Value of each share : preference Rs.150.00 and equity Rs.213.75
Froblem 3 !

The Balance Sheet of Blue Lid. as on March 31, 2003 was as follows ;

Liabilities Amount Assets Amount
Rs. Rs.
Share Capital Fixed Assets
1,000 6% Preference Shares Goodwill 22,000
of Rs. 100 each fully paid 1,00,000| Land & Buildings 5,40,000
3,000 Equity Shares of Plant & Machinery 1,000,000
Rs. 100 each fully paid 3,00,000| 8% Investments
4,000 Equity Sharcs of (Nominal value Rs, 60,000) 58,000
Rs. 100 each Rs. 50 per Stock-in-trade 180,000
share paid 200,000 Sundry Debtors 160,000
Reserves and Surplus Cash at Bank 20,000
General Reserve 50,000| Miscellaneous Expenditures
Profit & Loss Afc 90,000 Preliminary Expenses - 10,000
Secared Loans
7% Debentures 2.,00,000
Current Liabilities
Provision for Taxation 50,000
Sundry Creditors 1,00,000
I 10,90,000 10,90,000

Additional information :
1. The revaluation of assets were made as follows :

Land & Buildings Rs.5,80,000; Plant & Machinery Rs.1.,40,000 and Invesiments are
10% above the nominal value and current assets are to be taken at their book values,

3. Of the investments, 60% is trading and the balance is non-trading.
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3. For the purpose of valuation of shares, goodwill is to be considered on the basis
of 4 years” purchase of super profit based on weighted average profit after taxes of last
3 years. The weipghts are 1, 2 and 3 for the year 2000-01, 2001-02 and 2002-03 respectively.,
Profits afler 40% {axes are as follows

2000-01 : Rs. 99,000, 2001-02 : Rs. |,18,500 and 2002-03 : Rs. 1,34,100
In similar business, normal return on capital employed is 14%.
4. The rates of dividend paid for last 3 years were 16%, 18% and 20% respectively.

Similar companies pay dividend @ 16% and the shares are quoted on the stock
exchange at Rs 125 each.

5. Atthe beginning of 2000-01, a machine costing Rs.16,000 was purchased but wrongly
charged to revenue. Mo rectification has yet been made in the books of account,

Depreciation were charged on plant and machinery (@ 10% and on land and buildings
@ 5% under diminishing balance method.

Compute fair value of cach equity share,

Answer 1 Closing capital employed (using equity approach) Rs.7.81,264; Average capital
cmployed Rs. 7,16,979; Value of goodwill Rs. 81,936; MNet asset value per share :
fully paid Rs. 141.37, partly paid Rs. 91.37; Yield value per share : on the basis
of expected dividend (using weighted average)—fully paid Rs. 14172, partly
paid Rs. 70.86; on the basis of actual dividend (using weighted average)}—tully
paid Rs. 145.86, partly paid Rs, 72.93; Fair value per share : fully paid Rs. 141,55
and/or Rs, 143.62, partly paid Rs. 70.86 and/or Rs. 82.15.

3.16 Questions

Q.1 What is goodwill? Explain different methods of valuation of goodwill. Which
method of valuation of goodwill is considered (o be the best?

Q.2 Can goodwill be sold alone? State the special features of goodwill, What arc
the circumstances where the need for valuation of goodwill arises in case of a
company?

Q.3 Why is average capital employed preferable in valuing goodwill? Why is ‘Equity
Approach’ more acceptable over ‘Long Term Fund Approach™ in the light of
valuation of shares of a company?
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(.4 Explain different methods of valuation of shares. State the choice of the particular
method by equity shareholders who demand safety, sccurity and asset cover. Also
state the choice of the method by the holders of large block of shares for speculative
motive and by the holders of small block of shares for receiving regular -:iividend
and capital gain motive,

3.17 Suggested Readings

I. Chakraborty, H : ddvanced Accountancy, Oxford University P'ress.

2. Shukla, M.C; Grewal, T. 8. & Gupta, 8. C : Advanced Accounts, 8. Chand & Co,
(Pvt) Ltd. _

3.  Maheshwari, SN ; Advanced Accountancy, Vikas Publishing House Pyt Ltd.
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Unit 4 [] Cash Flow Statement

Structure

| 4.0 Objective

4.1 TIntroduction

4.2 Meaning of Cash Flow Statement

4.3 Difference between Fund Flow Statement and Cash Flow Statement
4.4 Benefits of Cash Flow information

4.5 Meaning of some important terms used in Cash Flow Statement
4.6 Presentation of a Cash Flow Statement

4.7 Operating Activities

4.8 Investing Activities

4.9 Financing Activities

4.10 Summary

4.11 Exercises

4.12 Questions

4.13 Suggested Readings

4.0 Objective

By the time you have read this unit you will be able to :

< highlight the benefits of preparing cash flow statement;
% prepare cash flow statement as per AS-3; and

% provide information aboul cash flows of an undertaking.

4.1 Introduction

To run an organisation smoothly the importance ol cash is highly recognised by
all concerned, Cash is required to meet obligations maturing on account of purchases
of raw materials, payment of wages and salaries, meeling other operating cxpenses,
payment of interest, taxes, dividends, repayment of borrowed funds, etc. But earning.
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of profit is unlikely to gencrate equal amount of cash to enable the firm to meet these
obligations. A firm may face scrious cash crisis in spite of huge amount of profit
reported by its profit and loss account adopting accrual accounting concept which is
incapable of highlighting the cash earning capacity of the lirm whercas a firm may
be flooded with cash in spitc of huge reported loss, Different interested parties such
as investors, prospeclive investors, creditors, bankers, etc. are highly interested in
cash earning capacity of the firm.

4,2 Meaning of Cash Flow Statement

Cash flow statement discloses the impact of all transactions over a period of time
on the cash position of the firm. It summariscs the causes leading to change of cash
and cash equivalents between two balance sheet dates. Tt provides information
regarding the amount of cash gencrated from different sources, their uses and finally
the net impact on the cash and cash equivalents during the period. Timely payment
of obligations requires the procurement of cash from different sources through
effective cash management. Moreover, by timely payment of obligations, a firm can
pain confidence of suppliers of goods and services on credit over the firm’s liquidity
and can retain its reputation and goodwill as well, Thus, both from firm and
ereditors’ point of view, cash flow statement can be considered as one of the
measures of liquidity. In this context, cash flow stalement can be defined as a
statement of measuring liquidity in which cash collections (i.e. cash inllows) and
cash payments (i.e. cash outflows) between two balance sheet dafes are shown in
such a systematic manner so that it can explain how is opening cash and cash
cquivalents converted into closing cash and cash equivalents.

4.3 Difference between Funds Flow Statement and Cash
Flow Statement

Both funds flow and cash flow statements are prepared with a view to showing
the changes in the financial position of the business usually between two balance
sheet dates, They have become important tools of management in linancial planning
and control, For preparation of both funds flow and cash flow statements, relevant
figures in the balance sheets and those in the profit and loss account for a period and
certain other information are required. As a matter of fact, funds flow and cash flow
statements arc complementary to each other. Thus, they should be prepared
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simultancously in order to make an in-depth analysis of the financial position of a
business. Nevertheless, they differ in respect of the following :

Funds flow statement deals with how working capital position or all
financial resources position using wider concept of fund, changes over a
period of time while cash flow statement deals with the change in cash
position ol a firm over the period of time.

Funds flow statement is based on “accrual basis’ of accounting whereas cash
flow statement is based on ‘cash basis’ of accounting. That is why, while
preparing the cash flow statement, operating profit or loss as per acerual
basis of accounting requires some adjustments in order to arrive at cash
operating profit or loss.

Funds flow statement is generally accompanied by a supplementary statement
showing changes in working capital over a period of time under consideration,
No such statement accompanies the cash flow statement,

Funds flow statement is helpful for immediate and long-range planning
while cash flow statement is suitable for short-tetm and long-range planning,

4.4 Benefits of Cash Flow Information

Benefits of cash flow information are as follows ¢

I;

A cash flow statement, when used in conjunction with the other financial
statements provides information that enables users to evaluate the changes in
net assets of an enterprise, its financial structure (including its liquidity and
solvency) and its ability to affect the amounts and timing of cash flows in
order to adapt to changing circumstances and opportunities. Cash flow
information is useful in assessing the ability of the enterprise to generate
cash and cash equivalents and enables users to develop models to asscss and
compare the present value of the future cash flows of different enterprises,
It also enhances the comparability of the reporting of operating performance
by different enterpriscs because it eliminates the effects of using differcnt
accounling treatments for the same (ransactions and events.

Historical cash flow information is often used as an indicator of the amount,
timing and certainty of future cash flows. It is also useful in checking the
accuracy of past assessments of future cash flows and in examining the
relationship between profitability and net cash flow and the impact of
changing prices.
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4.5 Meaning of Some Important Terms Used in Cash Flow
Statement

The following terms are used in the cash flow statement with the meanings
specified :

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks.

" Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value.

Cash flows arc inflows and outflows of cash and cash cquivalents,

Operating activifies are the principal revenue-producing activities ol the enterprise
and other activities that are not investing or {inancing activitics.

Investing activities are the acquisition and disposal of long-term asscts and other
investments nol included in.cash equivalents.

Financing activities are activitics that result in changes in the size and composition
of the owners’ capital (including preference share capital in the case of a company)
and borrowings of the enterprise.

4.6 Presentation of a Cash Flow Statement

Presentation of cash flow statement is made as under @

1. The cash flow statement should report cash flows during the period classified
by operating, investing and financing activitics.

2. An enterprise presents its cash flows from operating, investing and financing
aclivitics in a manner, which is most appropriate to its business. Classification
by activity provides information that allows users to assess the impact of
those activities on the financial position of the enterprise and the amount of
its cash and cash equivalents. This information may also be used to evaluate
the relationships among those activities.

3. A single transaction may include cash flows that are classified differently.
For example, when the instalment paid in respect of a fixed asset acquired
on deferred payment basis includes both interest and loan, the interest
clement is classified under financing activitics and the loan element is
classified under investing activities.
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4.7 Operating Activitics

Operating activities include the following :

1.

The amount of cash flows arising from operating activities is a key indicator
of the extent to which the operations of the enterprisc have penerated
sufficient cash flows to maintain the operating capability of the enterprise,
pay dividends, repay loans and make new investments without resourse to
external sources of financing. Information about the specific components of
historical operating cash flows is useful, in conjunction with other infnnnﬁtiun,
in forecasting fulure operating cash Mows.

Cash flows from operating activities are primarily derived from the principal
revenue-producing activities of the enterprise. Therefore, they generally
result from the transactions and other events that enter into the determination
of net profit or loss. Examples of cash flows from operating activities are :

(a) cash receipts from the sale of goods and the rendering services;
(b) cash receipts from royalties, fees, commissions and other revenue;
(¢) cash payments to suppliers for goods and services;

(d) cash payments to and on behalf of employees;

(e) cash receipts and cash payments of an insurance enterprise for premiums
and claims, annuities and other policy benefits;

(f) cash payments or refunds of income taxes unless they can be specifically
identified with financing and investing activities: and

() cash receipts and payments relating to future contracts, forward contracts,
option contracts and swap contracts when the contracts are held for
dealing or trading purposes.

Some transactions, such as the sale of an item of plant, may give rise to a
gain or loss which is included in the determination of net profit or loss.
However, the cash flows relating to such transactions are cash flows from
investing activilies.

An enterprise may hold securities and loans for dealing or trading purposes,
in which case they are similar to inventory acquired specifically for resale.
Therelore, cash flows arising from the purchase and sale of dealing or
trading securities are classified as operating activitics. Similarly, advances
and loans made by financial enterpriscs are usually as operating activitics
since they relate to the main revenue-producing activity of that enterprise,

97



4.8 Investing Activities

These include the following :

1.

The scparate disclosure of cash flows arising from nvesling activities is
important because the cash flows represent the extent to which expenditures
have been made for resources intended to generate future income and cash
flows. Examples of cash flows arising from investing activilies arc :

(a) cash payments to acquire fixed assets (including intangibles). These
payments include those relating to capitalised research and development
costs and sclf-constructed fixed assets;

(b) cash receipts from disposal of fixed assets (including intangibles);

(c) cash payments to acquire shares, warrants or debt instruments of other
enterprise and interests in joint ventures (other than payments for those
instruments considered to be cash equivalents and those held for dealing
or trading purposes);

(d) cash receipts from disposal of shares, warrants or debt instruments of -
other enterprises and interests in joint ventures (other than receipts for
those instruments considered to be cash equivalents and those held for
dealing or trading purposes); 1

(e) cash advances and loans made to third parties (other than advances and
loans made by a financial enterprise);

() cash receipts from the repayment of advances and loans made to third
parties (other than advances and loans of a financial enterprise);

(g) cash payments for future contracts, forward contracts, option contracts
and swap contracts except when the contracts are held for dealing or
trading purposes, or the payments are classified as financing activities;
and

(h) cash receipts from future contracts, forward contracts, option contracts
and swap contracts except when the contracts are held for dealing or
trading purposes, or the receipts are classified as financing activities,

When a contract is accounted for as a hedge of an identifiable position, the
cash flows of the contract are classified in the same manner as the cash flows
of the position being hedged.

o8



4.9 Financing Activities

These activities include the following :

1. The separate disclosure of cash flows arising from flinancing activities js
important because it is useful in predicting claims on future cash flows by
providers of funds (both capital and borrowings) to the enterprise. Examples
of cash flows arising from financing activities are
(a) cash proceeds from issuing shares or other similar mstruments;

(b) cash proceeds from issuing debentures, loans, notes, bonds, and other
short or long-term borrowings: and

(c) cash repayments of amounts horrowed.
Miustration 1 : Preparation of Cash Flow Statement under Direct Method

From the following Balance Sheets and Profit & Loss Account of Venus Lid,
prepare a Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2005 :

Liabilities 31.3.04 | 31.3.05 | Assefs : 31.3.04 | 31.3.05
Rs. Rs. Rs, Rs,
Share Capital 1,25,000 | 1,50,000 | Fixed Assets 1,00,000 | 1,60,000
10% Debentures —| 50,000 | Inventorics 25,000 | 45,000
Reserve & Surplus 20,000 | 28,000 | Accounls Receivable 40,000 | 55,000
Accounts Payable 33,000 | 40,000 | Prepaid Expenses 6,000 5,000
Outstanding  Expenses 4,000 3,000 | Cash at bank 13,000 6,000
1,84,000 | 2,71,000 1,84,000 | 2,71,000
Profit & Loss Account for the year ended March 31, 2005
Rs. Rs.
Sales 2,50,000
Less : Cost of goods sold 85,000
Gross Profit 65,000
Less ; Other Expenses :
Employees remuneration 10,000
General expenses 25,000
Depreciation 10,000 45,000
Met Profit . 20,000
Less : Dividend ' 12,000
8,000
Add : Reserves & Surplus (1.4.2004) 20,000
Reserves & Surplus (31.3.2005) : B.00
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Solution
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2005 (Direct Method)

1. Cash flows from operating activities :

s, Rs.
Collections from customers 2.35,000
Less * Cash paid to suppliers 2,00,000
Payment for expenses _ 35,000 | 235.000
Net cash from operating activities Wil
2. Cash flows from investing activities :
Purchase of fixed assets 70.000
Net cash used in investing activitics (70,000)
3. Cash from financing activities .
Proceeds from issue of shares 25,000
Procecds from issue of 10% debentures 50,000
75,000
Less : Payment of dividend 12,000
Net cash from financing activities 63.000
Net decrcase in cash over the year (?,ﬂﬁl]}
Add - Cash and cash eguivalents on 1.4.2004 13.000
Cash and cash equivalents on 31.3.2005 ] 6,000
Working Notes :

1. Payment to Suppliers : Rs. | 3. Payment for Expenses : Rs.
Cost of goods sold 1,585,000 Employees remuneration 10,000
Add : Closing inventorics 45,000 General expenses 25.000

2,30,000 35,000
Less :Opening inventories 25.000 Add : Op. outstanding exp. 4,000
Purchases 205,000 Cl. prepaid exp. _5.000
Add : Op. Accounts payable 35,000 _ 44,000
2,40,000 Less :Op. prepaid exp. 6,000
Less :Op, Accounts payable 40,000 Cl. outstanding exp. 3,000 2,000
-2,00.000 35,000

2. Collection from Cusioners ; Rs. | 4. Purchase of Fixed Assefs Rs,
Total sales 2,50,000 Closing balance L, 60,000
Add : Op. Accounts receivable 40,000 Add : Depreciation 10,000

_ 2,90,000 1,70,000
Less :Cl. Accounts receivable 55,000 Less {Opening balance _1.0p.000
| 2,35,000 ' 70,000
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Ilustration 2 : Preparation of Cash Flow Statement under Indirect Method from
financial statements of Hlustration 1.

Solution
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2005 {(Indirect Method)
r 1. Cash flows from operating activities : Rs. Rs.
Operating profit (Working Note 1) 30,000
Add : Decrease in Current Assets and
increase in Current Liabilities
except Cash & Bank :
Decrease in Prepaid Expenses 1,000
Increase in Accounts Payable 5,000 6,000
36,000
Less : Increase in Inventories ' 20,000
Incrcase in Accounts Receivable 15,000
Deerease in Outstanding Expenses 1,000 36.000
Net from operating activities Nil
. Cash flows from investing activities :
Purchase of Fixed Assets © 70,000
Met cash used in investing activities (70,000)
. Cash flows from financing activifies :
Proceeds from issue of Shares 25,000
Proceeds from issue of 10% Debentures 50,000
75,000
Less : Payment of dividend 12.000
Net cash from financing activities 63.000
Met decrease in cash over the year (7,000)
Add : Cash and cash cquivalents on 1.4.2004 13.000
Cash and cash equivalents on 31.3.2005 000
Working Note :
(1) Profit & Loss Alc
Rs. Rs.
To Depreciation 10,000 | By Operating profit 30,000
To Dividend 12,000 (Balancing figurc) :
To Reserves & Surplus 8,000
30,000 30,000
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Hlustration 3 : Preparation of cash flow statement when there iy a punhme of
running business,

From the following Balance Sheets and other information of Iind Ltd., prepare
a cash flow statement for the year ending on March 31, 2005 :

Liabilities 1.4.04| 31,3.05 | Assels 1.4.04 31.3.058
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Share Capital (Rs.10)| 5,00,000| 6,00,000 | Goodwill 20,000 30,000
Profit & Loss Alc 1,32,500 | 60,000 Land & Building
8% Debenture 1,50,000| 2.00.000 and Machinery 6,20,000 | 6,90,000
Debenture Int. Due 3,000 4,000 | Advance 40,000 60,000
Proposed Dividend 50,000 60,000 | Inventories 1,70,000 | 1,81,000
Unclaimed Dividend 6,000 4,000 | Debetors 1,50,000 | 1,80,000
Depreciation Fund 1,25,000( 1,75,800 | Cash at Bank 10,000 15,000
Inventory Provision 8,000 9,500 | Debenture Discount 4,000 5,000
Provision for Tax 19,500 17,600
Creditors 20,000 30,100

1014000 1161000 1014000 | 1161000

Other relevant information :

(a) Debentures were issued at 5% discount on April 1, 2004,

(b) Machine costing Rs.20,500 (accumulated depreciation Rs,16 .000) has been
discarded and written off. At the end of March 2005, however, the scrap was
sold for Rs.500.

(e) A running business was purchased in the year by issue of 10,000 shares at
par. The business had Machinery Rs.30,000, Stock Rﬁ4ﬂ 000, Debtors
Rs.40,000 and Creditors Rs.35,000.

(d) A Machine was purchased for RsAﬂ,Dﬂﬂ in cash.

Solution :

Cash Flow Statement for the year ending on
March 31, 2005 (Indirect Method)

L. Cash flows from operating activities :
Operating profit (Working Note 10) 03.000
Add : Debenture interest 16.000
Operating profit before interest 1,09,900
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s, e Rs,
Add ¢ Decrease in Current Assels and
increase in Current Liabilities
except Cash & Bank :
Decrease in Inventories
[1,70,000 — (1,81,000 — 40,000)] 29,000
Decrease in Debtors
[1,50,000 — (1,80,000 — 40,000] 10.000 39,000
1,48,900
Less ; Increase in Current Assels and
decrease in Current Liabilitics
except Cash & Bank :
Increase in Advance (60,000 — 40,000) 20,000
Decrease in Creditors ’
[20,000 — (30,100 = 35,000)] _24.900 44 900
104,000
Less : Payment of income tax 19,500
Net cash from operating activities 84,500
. Cash flows from investing activities .
Sale of scrap 500
Less : Addition to Land & Building 20,500
Purchase of Machinery for cash 40,000 | (60,500}
Net cash used in investing activities (60,000)
. 3. Cash flows from financing activities .
Proceeds from issue of 8% Debenture (Net of discount) 47,500
Less : Payment of Debenture interest 15,000
Payment of Dividend _52.000 _67.000
Net cash used in financing activities (19.500)
Met increase in cash over the year 5,000
Add @ Cash and cash equivalents on April 1, 2004 _10.000
Cash and cash equivalents on March ?1, 2005 15,000
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Working Notes ;

(1) Land & Building and Machinery A/c
Rs, . Rs.
To Balance b/d 6,20,000 | By Machinery Discarded 20,500
To Sundries (Machinery 30,000 By Balance ¢fd 6,90.000
purchascd by shares) i
To Bank (Machine purchased 40,000
for cash)
To Bank (Addition to Land & 20,000
Building—Balancing figure)
7,10,500 7,10,500
(2) Machinery Discarded A/c
; Rs. Rs.
To Land, Building & By Depreciation Fund 16,000
Machinery 20,500 {Accumulated depreciation
on machine discarded)
By Bank (Sale of scrap) 500
By Profit & Loss
{Loss on scrap) 4,000
20,500 20,500
(3) Depreciation I'und A/c
Rs. Rs.
To Machinery Discarded 16,000 | By Balance b/d 1,25,000
To Balance c/d 1,75,800 | By Profit & Loss 66,800
(Depreciation charged—
Balancing figure)
1,91,800 1,91,800
(4) Goodwill Afc
Rs. Rs.
To Balance b/d 20,000 By Profit & Loss (Written 15,000
To Sundries 25,000 off—Balancing [ligure)
By Balance c/d 30,000
45,000 45,000
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()

Share Capital Alc

Rs. Rs.
To Balance ¢/d 6,00,000 | By Balance b/d 5,00,000
By Sundries (Bus. purchase) 1,000,000
60,000 60,000 |
(6) Debenture Discount Afc
Rs. Rs.
To Balance bid 4,000 | By Profit & Loss 1,500
(Written off)
To 8% Debenture 2,500 | By Balance ¢/d 5,000
6,500 6,500
(7) Debenture Interest Alc
Rs. Rs,
To Bank (Balancing figure) 15,000 By Balance bid 3.000
' To Balance o/id 4,000 By Profit & Loss (current 16,000
year's intercst)
19,000 19,000
(8) Provision for Tax Alc
Rs. Rs.
To Bank (payment) 19,500 | By Balance b/d 19,500
To Balance c/d 17,600 | By Profit & Loos (current 17,600
Year's provision)
37,100 37,100
(] Proposed Dividend Alc
Rs. Rs.
To Bank 52,000 | By Balance bid 56,000
[50,000 + (6,000 — 4,000)] (50,000 + 6,000)
To Balance c/d 64,000 | By Profit & Loss (current 60,000
(60,000 + 4,000) year's provision ,
1,16,000 1,16,000
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(10) Profit & Loss Alc

Rs. ' Rs.
To Depreciation 66,800 By Balance bid 1,32,500
To Inventory provision 1,500 | By Operating profit 1,93,900
To Machinery scrapped (loss) 4,000 {Balancing figure)
To Debenture discount (w/o) 1,500
To Goodwill (w/o) 15,000
To Provision for tax 17,600
To Proposed dividend 60,000
To Balanee cfd 60,000
11. Payment for Goodwill in purchasing business : Rs.
Paid up value of 10,000 shares issued at Rs.10 cach 1,00,000
Less : Net value of assets acquired :
Machinery 30,000
Stock 40,000
Debtors 40,000
1,10,000
Less : Creditors 35,000 - _75.000
25.000

12. Unclaimed dividend is treated with proposed dividend in order to find out
the total payment of dividend.

Mustration 4 :

The following are the summarised Balance Sheets of X Ltd. as on March 31,
2004 and March 31, 2005 :

Liabilities | 313.04| 31.3.05 | Assets 31.3.04 | 313.05
Rs. Is. Rs. Rs,

Tquity Share Capital | 3,00,000} 4,00,000 | Goodwill ' 1,00,000 | 80,000

{Rs.10 cach) Land & Building 2.,00,000 | 1,70,000

| 10%Pref, Share Cap. | 1,50,000| 1,00,000 | Plant 80,000 | 2,00,000

' Capital Reserve — 1 20,000 | lnvestment 20,000 | 30,000

General Reserve 40,000 50,000 | Stock 77,000 | 1,09,000
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Additional Information :
(a) A picce of land has been sold out during 2004-05 and the profit on sale has

been credited to Capital Reserve. -

Profit & Loss Alc 30,000 48,000 | Deblors 1,40,000 | 1,70,000
Creditors 25,000 | -47.000 | Bill Receivable 20,000 30,000
Bills Payable 20,000 16,000 10,000 8,000
Outstanding Exp. 30,000 36,000 15,000 10,000
Prov. for Taxation 40,000 |- 50,000 | Preliminary Expenses| 15,000 10,000
Proposed Dividend 42,000 | 50,000

6,777,000 | §,17,000 6,77,000 | 8,17,000

(b) A Plant has been sold for Rs.10,000, The W.D.V. of the Plant was
Rs.12,000. Depreciation of Rs.10,000 is charged on Plant during 2004—05,

(c) A dividend of Rs.3,000 was received on Investment out of which Rs.1,000
was pre-acquisition profit which has been credited to Investment Alfe.

(d) An interim dividend of Rs.20,000 has been paid on October 31, 2004.
(¢) Bonus Shares at 1 for every 3 Equity Shares held were issued out of Capital

Reserve.

You arc required to prepare Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31.3.2005.

Solution :

Cash Flow Statement for the year ending on March 31, 2005 (Indirect Method)

Rs. Rs.
1. Cash flows from vperating activities :
Operaling profit (Working Note 14) 1,883,000
Add : Decrease in Current Assets and increase in
Current Liabilities except Cash & Bank :
Increase in Creditors 22000
Increase in Outstanding Expenses _ 6,000 28.000
2.11.000
Less : Decrease in Bills Payable 4,000
Increase in Stock 32,000
Increase in Debtors 30,000
Increase in Bills Receivable __ 10,000 76.000
1,35,000
Less : Income tax paid _ 40,000
Net cash from operating activitics 95,000
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2. Cash flows from investing activities

Sale of Land & Building 1,50,000
Sale of Plant - 10,000
Dividend received on Investment 3.000
1,63,000
Less : Purchase of Plant 142,000 ;
Additional Investment 11.000 1.53.000
Met cash from investing activitics 10,000
3. Cash flows from financing uctivifies
Redemption of 10% Preference Shares 50,000
Dividend paid 62.000
Net cash used in financing activities ' (1.12.000)
MNet decrease in cash over the year (7,000)
Cash and cash equivalents on 1.4.2004 (15,000 + 10,000) 25000
| Cash and cash equivalents an 31.3.05 (10,000 + §.000) 18,000
Working Notes :
(1) Capital Reserve Alc
[ Rs. Rs.
To Bonus to Shareholders 1,00,000 | By Land & Building (Profit | 1[,20,000
(3,00,000 = 7) on sale—Balancing figure)
To Balance c/d 20,000
1,20,000 1,20,000
(2) Land & Building Alc
. Rs. Rs.
To Balance b/d 2,00,000 | By Bank (Sale proceeds— | 1,50,000
To Capital Reserve : 1,20,000 Balancing figurc)
By Balance o/d 1,70,000
3,20,000 3,20,000
(3) Plant Afc
Rs. Rs.
To Balance b/d 80,000 | By Depreciation 10,000
‘To Bank (Purchase of Plant 1,42,000 | By Bank (Sale) 10,000
—Balancing figure By P & L (Loss on sale) 2,000
By Balance c/d 2,00,000
2,22,000 | 2,22,000
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(4 Dividend of Investment Afc
Rs. Rs,
To Investment (Pre- 1,000 | By Bank 3,000
~acquisition dividend)
To Profit & Loss (Post- 2,000
acquisition dividend)
3,000 3,000
(5) Investment Alc
Rs, Rs.
To Balance b/d 20,000 | By Dividend on Investment 1,000
To Bank (Further Investment 11,000 | By Balance e/d 30,000
—Balancing ligure)
31,000 31,000
(&) Goodwill Afc
Rs. Rs.
To Balance b/d 1,00,000 By Profit & Loss (Writlen 20,000
off—Balancing figure)
By Balance ¢fd 80,000
1,00,000 1,00,000
(") Preliminary Expenses Alc
' Rs. Rs.
To Balance b/d 15,000 | By Profit & Loss (Written 5,000
off—Balancing figure)
By Balance c/d 10,000
15,000 15,000
(8) Lguity Share Capital Alc
Rs. Rs,
To Balance ¢/d 4,00,000 By Balance b/d 3.00,000
' By Bonus o Sharcholders 1.00.000
4,00,000 4,00,000
(9) 10% Preference Share Capital Afc
Rs. Rs.
To 10% Pref Shareholders 50,000 By Balance b/d 1,50,000
To Balance e/d 100,000
150,000 1,50,000 |

10¢
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(10) 10% Preference Shareholders Ale
Rs. Rs.
Te Bank 50,000 By 10% Pref. Share Capital 50,000
50,000 50,000
(11) General Reserve Alc
Rs. Rs.
To Balance cfd 40,000 By Balance b/d 30,000
By Profit & Loss (Transtfer— 10,000
Balancing
—
40,000 40,000
(12) Provision for Taxation A/c
Rs. Rs.
To Bank 40,000 By Balance b/'d 40,000
To Balance ofd 30,000 | By Profit & Loss (Transfer—| 50,000
_ Balancing figure)
90,000 | 90,000
(13) Proposed Dividend Afc
! Rs. Rs.
To Bank (42,000* + 20,000) 62,000 | By Balance b/d 42,000
To Balance c/d 50,000 | By Profit & Loss (Transfer—{ 70,000
Balancing figure)
1,12,000 1,12,000
* Includes Preference Dividend.
(14) Profit & Loss Alc
Rs, Rs.
To Depreciation 10,000 | By Balance b/d 30,000
To Plant (Loss on sale) 2,000 | By Dividend on Investment 2,000
To Goodwill {Written off) 20,000 By Operating profit before 1,483,000
To Preliminary Exp. (W/o) 5,000 tax (Balancing figure)
To Provision or Taxation 30,000
To Proposed Dividend 70,000
To General Reserve (Transfer) 10,000
To Balance cfd 48,000
2,15.400 2.15.400
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Hlustration 5 : Cash Flow Statement with comment on the financial position.

The Balance Sheets of Typhoon Lid. as on December 31, 2004 and December

31, 2005 are as follows

Balance Sheets (Rs. in lakh)
Liabilities 2004 2008 Assets 2004 2005
Rs. Rs. Hs. Hs.
Share Capital 300.00 | 300.00 | Frechold Property at cost| 225.00 | 240.00
Reserves 22500 | 240.00 | Plant & Machinery
6% Debeontures (at cost less depreciation)| [35.00 165.00
(unsecured) T3.00 | 7500 | Investments in shaves
Mortgage on Freehold of companies under the
Property at 8% 27.000 | 14.25 | same management
Creditors 45.00 | 45.00 | (unquoted) 130,00 | 150,00
Proposed Div. (subject Investments in sharves
to deduction of fax 22,50 | 23.25 | of other companies
Provision for Taxation 21.00 | 37.50 | (quoted) [Market 112,50 | 112.50
Secured Overdraft (by a value : 2002—120 lakh
floating charge on 2003—150 lakh]
| assets) 15.00 | 82.50 | Stock 52.50 | 75.00
Debtors 45.00 | 75.00
Bank 10.50 —
730.50 | 817.50 730.50 | §17.50

The following additional information for the year 2005 is relevant :

(1) Credit Sales Rs. 675.00 lakh
(2) Credit Purchases Rs.520.00 lakh
(3) Overheads Rs. 83.75 lakh
(4) Depreciation on Plant & Machinery Rs. 17.50 lakh
(5) Dividend for 2004 was paid in full

(6) Amount paid towards taxation for the year 2004  Rs, 21.50 lakh

In view of credit squecze, the company has been asked by the Bank to reduce
the overdraft substantially within 6 months, if possible 50%.

You are required lo prepare a Cash Flow Statement. Briefly comment on the
financial position of the company and suggest remedial measures to overcome the

financial crisis, if any.
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Solution :
Cash Flow Statement for the year ending on December 31, 2005
(Rs. in lakh)
e Rs. Rs, |
I. Cash flows from operaling uctivities
Operating profit (Working Note 7) 93175
Add : Interest paid (75 » 6% + 27 » §%) G.66
Operating profit before interest 100.41
Less @ Increase in Stock (75.00 — 52.50) 22.50
Increase in Debtors (75.00 — 45.00) _30.00 S
47.91
Less @ Income tax paid _21.50
Met cash [rom operating activities 2641
2. Cash flows from investing activities : :
Purchase of Freehold Property 15.00
Purchase of Plant & Machinery _47.50
Met cash used in investing activities (62.50)
3. Cash flows from financing activities .
Repayment of Mortgage Loan 12:75
Payment of interest 6.66
Payment of dividend 22,50
Met cash used in financing activities (41.91)
Met decrease in cash over the year (78,00}
Add : Cash and cash equivalents on
1.1.2005 (10.50 — 15.00) {4.50)
Cash and cash equivalents on 31.12.2005 [Bz,iﬁj

Comment on the financial position of the company in the conlext of credif
sgueeze.

Once again a brief summary of cash flow statement with its percentage distribution
is prepared to show why overdraft of the company has increased by Rs.78.00 lakh
during current year as under :

Capital expenditure Rs, 62.50 lakh  80.13%
Repayment of loan Rs. 12,75 lakh  16.34%

Payment of interest and dividend in excess of _
operating cash inflow [26.41 — (6.66 + 22.50)] Rs. 2.75 lakh 3.53%

Rs. 78.00 lakh 100.00%
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In view of making comment on the financial position ol the company, suitable
ratios are calculated as below :

(1) Interest coverage ratio = (OCF before interest)/ (Interest payment)
=(100.41)/6,66 = 15.08 times

(2) Dividend ratio to operating cash flow = (Dividend payment)/(OCF) = 100
=(22.50)/(26.41) = 100 = 85.20%
(3) Cash earning flow ratio = (OCF)/(Operating profit before inlerest) x 100
=(26.41)/(100.41) = 100 = 26.30%
(4) Debt equity ratio = (Long term debt)/(Long-term fund)
= (89.25)/(629.25) = 0.14 : 1

(5) Cash return to nel-worth ratio = (OCF — Interest)/ (Net-worth)
= (26.41 — 6.66)/(540) = 3.66%.

Summary of the cash flow statement discloses that overdraft has increased during
current year by 80.13%, 16.34% and 3.35% due to capital expenditure, repayment of
loan and payment of interest & dividend in excess of operating cash inflows
respectively. Only payment of dividend absorbs 85.20% of cash inflows from operating
activities. Cash earning flow ratio is 26.30%, which is pathetically low while cash
return to net-worth ratio, is 3.66%, which demands serious attention for financial
manager in particular, and the management in general. Again, the debt equity ratio is
(.14 : 1. In the favourable business economic condition, it is taken as 2 : 1. So there
is enough scope of using debt capital in the capital structure. But the interest coverage
ratio is significantly high, which is 15.08 times. It could be made low by further
long-term borrowings. )

In the above situation, Typhoon Ltd. is incapable of repaying its overdraft by
50% and must not go ahead with an expansion programme. With a view to increasing
the liquidity and to repaying the overdraft by 50% as well as to make capital
expenditure, the company could raise its required fund through long-term borrowings
in the form of issuing debentures so that the company can get advantage of financial
leverage as the debt equity ratio 18 low and interest coverage ratio is high. As an
alternative, the company could dispose of required number of unquoted shares of
companies under the same management. Nevertheless, working capital management
in general and cash management in particular require continuous effort to maintain
required liquidity and to attain adequate profitability,
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Working Notes :

(Rs.

in lakh)

(1) Freehold Property Alc
Rs. Rs.
To Bank (Purchase— 15.00 By Balance ¢/d 240.00
Ralancing figure)
To Balance ¢fd 225.00
240.00 240.00
" (2) Plant & Machinery A/c
Rs, Rs.
To Bank bfd [35.00 By Depreciation 17.50
To Bank (Purchase— 47.50 | By Balance c/d 165.00
Balancing figure)
P 182.50 182.50
(3) Provision for Taxation Afc
it Rs. Rs.
To Bank (Payment 21.50 | By Balance b/d 21.00
To Balance cfd 37.50 | By Profit & Loss 38,00
(Provision for the vear)
59.00 59.00
(4) Proposed Dividend Alc
Rs: Rs.
To Bank (Payment) 22.50 | By Balance bid 22.50
To Balance c/d i 23.25 | By Profit & Loss 23.25
{Provision for the year)
45.75 45,75
(3) Reserve Alc
Rs. Rs.
To Balance c/d 240,00 | By Balance b/d 225.00
By Profit & Loss Alc (Transfer) 15.00
240.00 240.00
(6) Mortgage on Freehold Property Afc
Rs. Rs.
To Bank (Repayment) 12,75 | By Balance b/d 27.00
To Balance c/d 14,25
27.00 27.00
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(7N Profit & Loss Afc

B Es. Rs.
To Depreciation 17.50 By Operating profit 03,75
To Provision for Taxalion 38.00 {Balancing figure)

To Proposed Dividend 23.25
To Reserve 15.00
' 93.75 | 9375

THustration 6 :

The sumnmarised Balance Sheets of Strong Ltd. as on March 31, 2004 and as on

March 31, 2005 are as below :

Liabilities 313,04 | 31305 | Assets 31.3.04 | 31.3,05
Rs. Rs. Rs, Rs.
Equity Share Capital | 3,00,000 | 3,50,000 | Freehold Property ;
Security Premium 40,000 50,000 At cost 1,62,000
Capital Reserve — | LO9.000 | As revalued — | 256,000
Provision Tor Plant & Machinery F
Depreciation 88,500 1,02,700 at cost - 2.58.000 | 3.05,000
Reserve for Replace- Stock 99,600 | 1,62.000
ment of Mach. 40,000 | 45,000 | Debtors 78,000 | 86,000
Profit & Loss Afc 40,000 | 35,000 | Cash 12,400 10,000
10% Debentures 40,000 | 60,000 ’
Creditors 61,500 [ 67,300
6,10,000 | 8,19.000 6,10,000 | 8,19,000
Additional information :
(1) Debentures were issued at 2% discount, The discount has been written off

to Profit & Loss Alfe.

(2) Certain items of Plant & Machincr}r were sold for Rs. 6,800, Thesc items had
been written down to Rs. 5,000 at a rate of 10% on cost over the past eight
years o March 31, 2004. The profit on sale was transferred to the Profit &

Loss Afc and ifcluded in the profit for ended March 31, 2005.

(3) Capital Reserve includes the amounts arising on revaluation of the freehold
properties plus the profit made on the sale of property which originally cost

Rs. 8.000,
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(a) From the above information provided, you are required to prepare a Cash
Flow Statement, clearly showing operating cash flow, financing cash flow
and investing cash flow and (b) Also on the basis of cash flow statement
preparcd by you, comment on the financial position of the company.

Solution :
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 3 1, 2005

l Rs. Rs.
I. Cash flows from operating aclivities :
Operating profit (Working Note 6)° 32,800
Add : Debenture interest 6,000
Operating profit before interest 38,800
Add : Increase in Creditors (67,300 — 61,500) 5,800
: 44,600
Less : Increase in Stock (1,62,000 ~ 99,600) 62,400
Increase in Debtors (86,000 — 78,000y 8,000 70.000
Net cash used in operating activities (25,800)
2. Cash flows from investing activities :
Sale of Frechold Propertly 15,000
Sale of Plant & Machinery 6.800
21,800
Less : Purchase of Plant & Machinery 72,000
Net cash used in investing activities (50,200)
3. Cash flows from financing activities :
Issue of Shares at a premium 60,000
[(3,50,000 + 50,000) — (3,00,000 + 40,000)]
Issue of 10% Debentures (Net of discount) _ 19,600
] 79,600
Less : Interest paid 6.000
Net cash from financing activities 73,600
Decrease in cash over the year (2,400) :
Add : Cash and cash equivalents at
the beginning of the year 12,400
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 10,000
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Comment on the financial position of the company

Since both the operaling cash flows and investing cash flows provide nepative
results, suitable ratios cannot be used in order to make comment on the financial position
of the company. As an alternative to the non-availability useful ratios, cash flow statement
may be reproduced showing cash sources and cash uses with its percentage distribution
in the form of a common size statement with a view to making comment on the financial
position of the company. The cash flow statement is reproduced as under :

Cash Flow Statement for the vear ended March 31, 2005 (Reproduced)

Cash sources Amount | % Cash uses Amount o
Rs. Rs.

Net cash inflows from Met cash outflows for

financing aclivitivs 73,600 | 96.84 | operating activities :

Deerease in cash Operaling profit 38,800 | 51.05

over the year 2,400 | 3.16 | (+) Increase in creditors 5,800 7.63

(=) Increase in stock (62,400) | (B2.10)
(=) Increase in debtors (8,000} | (10.53)

25,800 3595
Met cash outflows for
investing aclivities 50,200 | 66.05
76,000 [100.00 76,000 | 100.00

It is evident from the reproduced cash flow statement that net cash inflow from
financing activities (96.84%) is the main source of cash while the decrease in cash
provides the residue. On the other hand, huge blockage of cash in stock which alone
accounts for 82.10% of total cash sources and also capital cxpenditure absorbs 66.05%
of total cash sources. These two jointly make the cash sources almost eroded in spite.
of cash contribution by operating profit (51.05%) and by creditors (7.63%).

In view of arranging cash and for betler profitability, inventory management must
be improved and to take the benefit of {inancial leverage, additional debentures could
be issued.

Working Notes :

{1 Freehold Property Alc
Rs. Rs,
To Balance bid 1,62,000 By Bank (Sale— 15,000
‘I'o Capital Reserve (Profit) Balancing figure)
On sale 7.000 By Balance c/d 2.56,000
On revaluation  _L.02.000 1,09,000
2,71,000 | | 2,71.000
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(2)

Plant & Machinery AJc

Hs. Es:
To Balance b/d 2,58,000 By Bale of Machinery (Ori- 25,000
To Bank (Purchase— 72,000 ginal cost 5000x100/20)
Balancing figure) By Balance e/d 3,05,000
3,30,000 3,30,000
(3) Sale of Machinery A/fc
; Rs. Es.
To Plant & Machinery 25,000 By Provision for Deprecia- 20,000
To Profit & Loss 1,800 tion {Accumulated depre-
{Profit on salc) ciation on Machinery sold)
By Bank (Sale) 6,800
26,800 26,800
(4) Provision for Depreeiation Afc
Rs. Hs.
To Sale of Machinery 20,000 By Balance b/d 88,500
(25,000 — 5,000) By Depreciation (Current 34,200
To Balance c/d 1,02,700 year’s Depreciation) :
1,22,700 1,22.700
R ] 10% Debentures Aflc
Bs. Rs.
To Balance cfd 60,000 By Balance b/d 40,000
By Debenture discount 400
[(60,000 — 40,0007 = 2%]
By Bank (Balancing figure) 19,600
60,000 60,000
(6) Profit & Loss Alc
Rs. Rs.
To Depreciation 34,200 | By Balance b/d 40,000
To Reserve for replacement of By Profit on sale of 1,800
machinery (45,000 — 40,000} 5,000 machinery
To Debenture discount 400 | By Operating profit 32,800
To Balance c/d 35,000 (Balancing figure)
74,600 74,600
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4.10 Summary

Preparation of cash flow statement is made for showing effects of various cash
transactions classifying them distinctly how the financial position of a firm changes
over a period of time due to its operating activities, investing activities and finaneing
activities of an entity on cash and cash equivalents. It also establishes the relationship
between net profit and the change in the cash position of a firm. Thus, cash flow
staternent is considered as one of the measures of liguidity. Different interested
parties are highly interested in getting cash flow information rather than information
that are available in the funds flow statement. Moreover, AS-3 made the preparation
of cash flow statement mandatory for accounting period commencing on or after
1.4.2001 in respect of (a) listed companies or companies whose shares and debentures
are in the process of listing on a recognised stock exchange in India; (b) all other
commercial, industrial and business enterprises whose turnover for the accounting
period exceeds Rs.50 crore.

4,11 Exercises

Problem 1 :

Following arc the Balance Sheels of Piano Ltd. as on December 31, 2004 and as on
December 31, 2005 :

Liabilities 31.12.04 | 31.12.05 | Assels 31.12.04 | 31.12.05
Rs., Rs. Rs. “Rs.

Equity Share Capital | 1,00,000 | 1,50,000 | Frechold Property | 1,10,000 | 1,30,000
Security Premium 15,000 35,000 | Plant & Machinery | 1,20,000 | 1,51,000
Profit & Loss Afc 28,000 70,000 | Furniture 24,000 29000
8% Debentures 70,000 30,000 | Stock 37.000 51,000
Bank Overdraft 14,000 — | Debtors 43,000 A 000
Creditors . 34,000 48,000 | Bank — 16,000
Proposed Dividend 15,000 | 20,000 | Premium on redemp-
Prov. for Dep. on @ tion of Debentures — 1,000

Plant 45,000 54,000

Furniture 13,000 15,000 :

3,34,000 | 4,22,000 334,000 | 4.22,000
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Additional information :

I. There had been no disposal of Freehold Property in the vear.

2, The Machine which had cost Rs.8,000 and in respeet of which Rs.6,000 depreciation
had been provided was sold for Rs.3,000 and Furniture which cost Rs.5,000
in respect of which of Rs.5,000 had been provided were sold for Rs.1.000. The
profits or losses on thesc transactions had been dealt with through the Profit &
Loss Afc.

3. The actual premium on redemption of Debenture was Rs. 2,000 of which Rs. 1,000
had been written off to the Profit & Loss Alc.

4. Mo interim dividend has been paid.

You are asked to prepare a cash flow statement for the year ended December 31, 2005
and on the basis of the cash [low statement p[’Lpdl‘Ed by you, comment on the financial
position of the company.

Answer : Net cash from operating activities Rs.84,400: Net cash used in investing
activities Rs.65,000 and Net cash from financing activities Rs.10,600.

Problem 2 :

Following are the Balance Sheets of Patel Company Lid. as on March 31, 2004 and as
on March 31, 2005 :

Liabilities 31.3.04 | 31.3.05 | Assels 31.3.04 31.3.05
Rs. Rs. Hs, Rs,
Equity Share Capital | 3,00,000 | 3,50,000 | Goodwill 1,00,000 #9.000
1% Pref. Sh. Capital | 1,50,000 | 1,00,000 | Land & Building
Security Premium 20,000 25,000 | at cost 2,50,000 | 2.20,000
Capital Reserve \ —1| 20,000 | Plant & Machinery 80,000 | 2.00.000
General Reserve 40,000 | 75,000 | Investment 20,000 35.000
Profit & Loss Alc 30,000 | 73,000 | Stock 77,000 | 1,00,000
8% Debentures 50,000 50.000 | Debtors L,40,000 | 1,70.000
Creditors 55,000 | 83,000 | Bills Receivable 20,000 | 30,000
Bills Payable 20,000 | 16,000 | Cash at Bank 16,000 11,000
Provision for Tax 40,000 | 50,000 | Cash in Hand 9,000 ;_J",,DUU
Proposed Dividend 42,000 50,000 | Preliminary Exp. 35,000 30,000
7.47,000 | 8,92.000 7,47,000 | 892,000
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Additional information ;

l. One picee of land was sold at a profit and the profit was transferred to Capital
Reserve.

2. One Machine was sold for Rs.15,000 (written down value on the datc of sale was
Rs.18,000.

3. Depreciation charged on Plant & Machinery amounted to Rs. 16,000,

4. Dividend of Rs4,000 was received from Investment of which Rs.2.000 was
credited to Investment A/c being dividend declared from pre-acquisition profit,

5. Actual amount of dividend and taxes paid were Rs. 35,000 and Rs. 38,000
respectively,

You are required to prepare a Cash Flow Statement for the year ending on March 31,
2005 and comment on the financial pusition of the company.

Answer : Net cash from operating activities Rs.1,29.000: Net cash used in investing
activities Rs.1,02,000 and Net cash used in financing activities Rs.34,000.

4.12 Questions

I. What is cash flow statement? What does it convey? Why is it necessary?

2. Why is cash flow statement superior over the funds flow statement? Distinguish
belween cash flow statement and funds flow statement.

3. Do the preparation of cash flow statement is mandatory in Tndia ? How would you

prepare il as per AS-37 What special advanlages can be derived by preparing such a
statement? .

4, How can you comment on the financial position of a company on the basis of cash
flow slatement?

5. Merition the correct answer ;

i. Il the net operating profit of a busincss is Rs.90,000 and debtors have

decreased during the year by Rs.30,000, cash from operations equals
(a) Rs.90,000; (b) Rs.1,20,000; (¢) Rs. 60,000,

ii. Sale of long-term investments at a profil (a) increase the cash; (h) decrease the
cash; () has no effect on cash.

iii. Payment of income tax for which a provision has been made (a) increase the
cash; (b) decrease the cash; {¢) has no effect on cash.

Answers : 1. (c), ii. (a), iii. (b) %
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Unit 5 [ ] Liguidation of Companies

Struecture
5.0 Objective
5.1 Introduction
5.2 Meaning of Liquidation
5.3 Mode of Liquidation
5.3.1 Compulsory Winding Up
5.3.2 Voluntary Winding Up
5.3.3 Winding up Subject to the supervision of Court
5.4 Statement of Affairs
5.5 Procedure of the Preparation of Statement of Affairs
5.6 Deficiency or Surplus Account
57 Preferential Creditors
58 Overriding Preferential Payments
5.9 Liquidator's Final Statement of Account

5.10 Some important items

5.11 Summary
512 Exercises
513 Questions
5.14 Suppested Readings

5.0 Objective

" By the time you have gone through this unit you would be able to :

% understand the legal provisions of liquidation with its types according to the
Companies Act, 1956; and

% know the procedure of the preparation of Statement of Affairs (by the
company) and Liquidator's Final Statement of Account (by the liquidator).
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5.1 Introduction

Liguidation of companics is a legal process by which the corporate life of any
company comes to an end. The types ol liquidation arc compulsory. voluntary and
under the supervision of Court. The accounting for liquidation requires the preparation
of Statement of Affairs, Deliciency or Surplus Account and Liquidator’s Statement
of Account. The procedure of the preparation of these three statements along with
legal provisions is explained in the appropriate place. '

5.2 Meaning of liquidation

A company is an artilicial person, which is the creation of law. The life of a
company can come to an cnd only through the process of law. The process of law
undertaken to bring end the life of a company is known as liguidaiion or 11?fnding up.
It is not necessary that only solvenl company be liquidated. Sometimes, also it is
essential to liquidate solvent and prosperous company. The Companies Act, 1956
lays down the procedure by which a company can be liquidated, When the winding
up order is made or a provisional liguidator is appointed by the Court, the liquidator
will take into his custody or under his control all the property of the company and
its effects and actionable claims under section 450.The job of realising various asscls
and paying various liabilities through a legal way performed by a person is called
liquidator. The appointment of liquidator is dependent on the mode of liquidation,

5.3 Mode of liguidation

There are threc modes by which a company can be liniuidatﬁdi They are
discussed briefly in the paragraphs that follow.

5.3.1 Compulsory Winding Up

This is also called winding up by the Court, Section 433 of the Companies Act
provides that a company may be wound up by the Court (a) if the company passes
a special resolution to this effect; (b) if the company defaults in delivering the
statutory teport to the Registrar or in holding the statutory meeting: (g) it the
company does nol commence its business within a year from its incorporation or
suspends its business for a whole year; (d) if the number of its members falls below
7 in case of a public company and 2 in case of a private company; (¢) if the company
is unable to pay its debts; and (f) if the Court is of opinion that the company should
be wound up. :
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5.3.2 Voluntary Winding Up

There are two types of voluntary winding up, viz. (i) Mcmbers® voluntary
winding up—It takes place when a declaration of company’s solvency, verified by
an affidavit, is made by thc majority of the directors to the Registrar that the
company will pay its debts within 3 ycars from the commencement of winding up;
and (ii) Creditors’ voluntary winding up—when a declaration of solvency is not filed
to the Registrar and the creditors have the dominating control over the proceedings
of the winding up.

5.3.3 Winding up subjeet to the supervision of Court

When the Court orders that the voluntary winding up should continue under its
supervision and on tenns and conditions which the Court decides.

5.4 Statement of Affairs

When a company is wound up by the order of the Court or when the official
liquidator has been appointed by the Court as provisional liquidator, the officers and
the directors of the company must submit to the official liguidator within 21 days or
within such extended time, not exceeding 3 months, as the official liquidator or the
Court may allow from the date of winding up order a statement which is known as
Statement of Affairs. The statement of affairs has to be prepared cven in case of
voluntary winding up. It always remains open to inspection by any person, claiming
in writing to be a creditor or contributory. It must be properly verified by an affidavit
and should be prepared in Form 57 contained in the Companies (Court) Rules, 1956.
The Statement of Affairs discloses the estimated deficiency on account of expected
realisable value of assets and its possible disbursements towards various liabilities on
the basis of priority of receiving payments within stipulated date not exceeding 3
" months from the date of winding up order. Practically, the company prepares this
statement after the winding up order but before the actual disposal of assets and
payment of liabilities.

5.5 Procedure of the Preparation of Statement of Affairs

The procedure of the preparation of Statement of Affairs is furnished hereunder :

. Include all assets not specifically pledged (as per hist A). The amount
expected to be realised from individual asset including unpaid calls would be
extended to the *estimated realisable value™ column,
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2. Include all assets specifically pledged (as per list B). The amount expected to
be realised from individual asset would be compared with the amount due to
the secured creditor(s) concerned. Surplus, if any, is to be extended to both
the ‘surplus carried to last column’ and ‘estimated realisable value ' column.
A deficit arising out of the amount due to the secured creditors exceeding the
amount realisable from the asset is to be added to unsecured creditors.

3. The total of assets is available for all credilors excluding secured credilors
as alrcady covered by assets specifically pledged would be the sum of the
amounts as in paragraphs (1) and (2) above.

4. Tind the ‘Summary of Gross Assels’. The amount would be the total of
‘estimated realisable value of assets not specifically pledged’ and ‘other
assets (gross estimated realisable value of assets specifically pledged’. The
amount of the gross assets would be shown in the main body of the statement
of affairs but not in the ‘estimated realisable value' column.

5. Place the amount of secured creditors to the extent to which claims are
estimated to be covered by assets specifically pledged in the 'Gross Liabilities'
column only (as per list B).

6. From the total assets available, the following should be placed in the ‘Gross

Liabilities’ column and also should be deducted one by one and struck the
balance at each stage :

Preferential creditors (as per list C);

Debenture-holders having a floating charge (as per list D),
Unsecured creditors (as per list E);

Paid up Preference share capital (as per list F); and

Paid up Equity share capital (as per list G).

LG = S

In case of minus balance, there would be deficiency as rcgards members,
otherwise there would be surplus (as per list G).

5.6 Deficiencies or Surplus Account

A Deficiency or Surplus Account (as per list G) is prepared, which explains in
brief how the deficiency or surplus as shown in the statement of affairs has arisen.
The period covered by this account must commence on a daic not less than 3 years
before the date of winding up order or from the date of formation of the company
if the life of its existence is less than 3 years unless the official liquidator otherwise
agrees.
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5.7 Preferential Creditors

Section 530 mentions that some creditors are to be paid in priority to unsecured
creditors or creditor having floating charge. These creditors are called Preferential
Credifors and include the following :

I. All revenues, taxes, cesses and rates due and payable by the company within
12 months next before the commencement of the winding up;

2, All wages or salaries of any employee due for the period not exceeding 4
tnonths within 12 months next before the commencement of winding up and
any compensation payable to any workmen under the Industrial Dispute Act,
1947. The amount payable (relating to lay off and discharge of workers) to
an employee should not exceed Rs.1000;

3. All accrued holiday remuneration becoming payable to any cmpinyee on
account of winding up;

Note : Where a person advances money for the purpose of making preferential
payments under (1) and (2) above, he will be treated as preferential creditor, provided
the money actually used.

4. All sums due in respect of any cﬁmﬁensatiﬂn or liability under the Workmen’s
Compensation Act, 1923;

5. Unless the company is being wound up voluntarily for the purpose of
reconstruction, all contributions payable during 12 months next before the
commencement of winding up under the State Insurance Act, 1948, or any
other law for the time being in force; j

6, All sums due to any employee from a provident fund, pension fund, gratuity
fund or any other fund for the welfare of the employces maintained by the
company;

6. The expenses of any investigation held in accordance of section 235 or 237
in so far as they are payable by the company.

5.8 Overriding Preferential P.ayments

As per amendment of the Companies Act, a new category of preferennal
payments is to be made in priority to all other debts. These include :

1. Dues to workmen, and

2, Debts to secured creditors to the extent such debts rank pari passu with such
dues.
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e Preparation of Statement of Affuirs
Ilustration 1 :

Metal Ltd. went into liquidation on March 31, 2005. The following balances are
extracted from the books on that date : :

Liabilities Ras, Asscts Rs.
Capital : Buildings 1,50,000
50,000 Equity Sharcs of Plant & Machinery 210,000
Rs. 10 each 5,00,000 | Stock-in-trade 05,000

Debentures (secured by Book Debts 75,000

floating charge) 200,000 | Less : Provision 10,000 65,000
Bank Overdrafl 30,000 | Calls in Arrears 1,00,000
Creditors 40,000 | Cash on hand 10,000
Profit and Loss Account 1.40,000
7,70,000 7,70,000

Plant & Machinery and Buildings are valued at Rs.1,60,000 and Rs.1,20,000
respectively. On realisation, losses of Rs.25,000 are expecled on stock, Book Debts
will realise Rs.70,000. Calls in arrears are expected to realise 90%. Bank overdraft
is secured against Buildings, Preferential Creditors for taxes and wages are Rs.6,000
and Miscellaneous Expenses outstanding Rs.2,000,

Preparc a Statement of Affairs to be submitted to the meeting of creditors.
Solution : As per Form 57
Metal Ltd. (in liquidation)
Statement of Affairs as on March 31, 2005

Estimated
realisable
value
Rs.
Assets not specifically (as per list A) :
Plant & Machinery 1.60,000 |
Stock-in-trade 70,000
Book Debts , 70,000
Unpaid Calls (Calls in Arrear) 90,000
Cash on hand 10.000
- 4,00,000
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Assets specifically pledged (as per list B) :

(a) (b) (€) ()
Estimated  Due to  Deficiency Surplus
Realisable  secured  ranking as  carried to
value creditors  unsecured  last column
Ks. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Buildings 1,.20,000 30,000 - 90,000
Estimated surplus from asscts specifically pledged _90.000
Estimated tolal assets available for Preferential Creditors,
Debenture-holders secured by floating and unsecured ereditors | 4,90,000
Summary of Gross Assets (e) :
Gross realisable value of assets specifically
pledged 120,000
Other assets 4,00.000
Gross Assets 5,20,000
(H Liabilities
Gross | (to be deducted from surplus or added to deficiency as the
Liabilities | case may be) |
Rs, Secured Creditors (as per list B) to the extent to which claims
30,000 | are estimated to be covered by assets specifically pledged
Preferential Creditors (as per list C) :
6,000 | Creditors for taxes and wages 6.00
Estimated balance of assets available for Debenture-
holders secured by a floating charge and unsecurcil creditors 4.84,000
2,00,000 | Debenture-holders secured by a floating charge (as per list D) | 2.00,000
Estimated surplus as regards Debenture-holders 2,84,000
34,000 | Unsecured Creditors (as per list E) _.34.000
2 00 | Estimated surplus as regards creditors [(f) = (&)] 2,50,000
Issued and Called up Capital :
Preference Shares (as per list F) Nil
5,000 Equity Shares of Rs.100 each fully paid
(as per list G) 5.00,000 5.00.000
Estimated deficit as regards members 2,50,000
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Preparation of Statement of Affairs and Deficiency Account
Hlustration 2 :

The following particulars were extracted from the books of Silver Ltd. as on
March 31, 2005 on which date a winding up order was made :

Equity Share Capital : Rs.
2,000 Shares of Rs.100 each, Rs.50 paid up 1,00,000

6% Preference Share Capital ;
2,000 Shares of Rs.100 ecach fully paid - 2,00,000

6% First Mortgage Dcbentures, secured by a floating
charge on the whole of the assets of the company,

exclusive of the uncalled capital ' 1,50,000
Fully Secured Creditors (value of securities, Rs.35,000) 35,000
Partly Secured Creditors (value of securities, Rs.10,00) 20,000
Preferential Creditors for rates, taxes, wages etc. 6,000
Unsecured Creditors 70,000
Bills Payable 1,00,000
Bank Overdraft : 10,000
Bills Receivable in hand 15,000
Bills Discounted (one bill for Rs.10,000 known to be bad) 40,000
Book Debts—Good 10,000

—Doubtful (estimated to produce 40%) 7,000

—Bad 6,000
Land & Building (estimated to produce Rs.1,00,000 1,50,000
Stock-in-trade (estimated to produce Rs.40,000) 50,000
Machinery, Tools etc. (estimated to produce Rs.2,000) 5,000
Cash in hand 2,100
Prepare Statement of Affairs and Deficiency Account
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Solution :

In order to find out the position of Reserve and Surplus as on March 31, 2005
the following Trial Balance is prepared :

Debit balances Amount | Credit balances Amount
Rs. Rs,

Land & Building 1,50,000 | Equity Share Capital 1,00,000
Machinery, Tools ete. 5,000 | 6% Pref. Share Capital 2,00,000
Investments 45,000 | 6% Mortgage Debentures 1,50,000
Stock-in-trade 50,000 | Fully Secured Creditors 30,000
Book Debts 23,000 | Partly Sccured Creditors 20,000
Bills Receivable 15,000 | Preferential Creditors 6.000
Cash in hand 2,100 | Unsecured Creditors 70,000
Profit & Loss (Balancing 3,95.900 | Bills Payable 1,00,000
figure) Bank Overdraft 10,000
6,586,000 ’ 6,86,000

Silver Ltd. (in ligquidation)
Statement of Affuirs as on March 31, 2005

Estimated
to realise

Assets not specifically pledped (as per list A) ; Rs,
Cash in hand 2,100
Land & Building l,ﬂﬂ,ﬂm
Machinery, Tools ete. 2,000
Stock-in-trade 40,000
Book Debts 12,800
Bills Receivable 15,000
Assets specifically pledged (as per list B) : 1,71,900

(a) (b) () (d)
Estimated Due to  Deficiency Surplus
Realisable  Secured ranking as  carried to

value creditors  unsecured  last column
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Investments 35,000 30,000 — 5,000
Investments: 10,000 20,000 10,000 —_—
45,000 50,000 10,000 5.000
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Estimated surplus from assets specifically pledged

Estimated total assets available for Preferential Creditors,
Debenture-holders secured by a floating charge and
unsecured creditors -

Summary of Gross Assets (¢) :
Gross realisable value of assets specifically

pledged 45,000
Other assets 1.71.900
Gross Assets 2,16,900
[§4] Liabilities
Gross (to be deducted from surplus or be added to deficiency
Liabilities | as the case may be)
Rs. Secured Creditors (as per list B) to the extent to
which claims are estimated to be covered by assets
40,000 | specifically pledged
6,000 | Preferential Creditors (as per list C) :
Estimated balance of assets available for Debenture-
holders secured by a floating charge and unsecured
creditors
1,50,000 | Debenture-holders secured by a floating charge
{as per list D)
Estimated surplus as regards Debenture-holders
Unsecured Credilors (as per list E) :
10,000 | Unsecured balance of partly secured creditors 10,000
70,000 | Unsecured Creditors 70,000
1,00,000 | Bills Payable 1,00,000
10,000 | Bank Overdraft 10,000
10,000 | Bills Discounted 10,000
_3.96,000 | Deliciency as regards creditors
Issued and Called up Capital :
2,000 6% Pref. Shares of Rs. 100 each
fully paid (as per list F) 2,00,000
2,000 Equity Shares of Rs, 100 each,
Rs. 50 paid up (as per list G) _1.00.000

I'stimated deficiency as regards members
(as per list 1)

5,000 |

1,776,900

6,000

1,770,900

150,000
20,900

2,00,000
1,79,100

3.00.00

4,79,100
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List H-Deficiency Account

A. Items contributing to deﬁcicncy (or reducing surplus) : Rs,
1. Excess of capital and liabilities over assets on 1.4.2002
(at least 3 years belore the date of winding up order) il
2. Net dividends and bonuses declared during the period
from 1.4.2002 to 31.3.2005 Nil
3. Net trading losses after charging depreciation, taxation,
interest on Debentures, etc. for the same period 3,95,900
4. T.osses other than trading losses Nil

5. Estimated losses now written off or for which provision
has been made for the purpose of preparing the statement :

Land & Building (1,50,000 — 1,00,000) 50,000
Machinery, Tools ete. (5,000 — 2,000) 3,000
Stock-in-trade (50,000 — 40,000) 10,000
Book Debts (23,000 — 12,800) 10,200
Bills Discounted 10,000 EE;ZI}D
6. Other items contributing to deficiency Mil
' Total (A) 4,79,100

B. Items reducing deficiency (or contributing to surplus) :
7. Excess of assets over capital and liabilitics on 1.4.2002 Nil

8. Net trading profits after charging depreciation,
taxation, interest on Debentures, etc. during the
period from 1.4.2002 to 31.3.2005 Nil

9. Profits and income other than trading profits

during the same period il

10. Other items reducing deficiency Mil
. Total (B) o L
Deficiency as shown by the Statement of Affairs (A — B) 4,79,100_

Ilustration 3 :

From the following particulars prepare a Statement of Affairs and Deficiency
Account for submission to the Official Liquidator of Copper Ltd. which into
liquidation on December 31, 2005.
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Rs,
30,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each, Rs.8 paid 2.40.000

10,000 6% Preference Shares of Rs.10 each fully paid 1,00,000

Less : Calls in Arrear (expecied to produce) __5.000 95,000
6% Debentures having a floating charge on the assets

(interest paid up to June 30, 2005) 1,00,000
Mortgage on Land & Buildings 80,000
Trade Creditors 2.44.500
Owing lor wages 20,000
Secretary’s salary @ Rs.15,000 p.m. owing 30,000

Estimated to| Book value
Assels produce
Rs. Rs.

Land & Building 1,30,000 1,20,000
Plant : 1,30,000 2,00,000
Tools 4,000 2,00,000
Patents 30,000 50,000
Stock 74,000 B7.000
Investments (in the hands of bank for an
overdralt of Rs. 1,90,000) 1,70,000 1,80,000
Book Debis 60,000 90,000

On December 31, 2000 the Balance Sheet of the company showed a General

Reserve of Rs. 40,000 accompanied by a debit balance of Rs. 25,000 in the Profit
& Loss Account. In 2001 the company made a profit of Rs. 42,000 and declared a
dividend of 10% on Equity Shares. The company suffered a total loss of Rs. 1,09,000
besides loss of stock due to fire of Rs. 40,000 during 2002, 2003 and 2004. For
2005 accounts were not made up. The cost of winding ap is expected to be
Rs. 15,000,

134



Solution :

| To find out the position of Reserve and Surplus on December 31, 2005 a Trial
| Balance is prepared as below :

Trial Balance as on December 31, 2005

Dr. Cr.
Particulars Amount |  Amount
Rs. Rs.

Equity Share Capital 2,40,000

6% Preference Share Capital 1,00,000
Calls in Arrear 5,000

Mortgage on Land & Building 80,000
Land & Buildings 1,20,000

6% Debentures including interest of Rs. 3,000

(from 1,7.2005 to 31.12.2005) 1,03,000

Trade Creditors 244,500

Owing for wages o 20,000

Secretary’s salary owing 30,000

Bank Overdraft (secured against investments) 1,90,000
Investments 1,80,000
Stock : 87.000
Rook Debts 90,000
Plant 2,00,000
Tools 20,000
Patents 50,000
Profit & Loss Account (Balancing figure) 2,55,000

| 10,07,500 10,07,500
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To determine the trading loss for the year 2005, Reserve and Surplus Account

is prepared as below :

Dy, Reserve and Surplus Account Cr.
Particulars Amount Particulars Amount
(Rs.) (Rs.)
To Balance b/d (Dr. balance By Balance b/d (General
in the Profit & Loss Alc Reserve on 1.0.2001 40,000
on 1,1.2001 25,000 | By Profit belore tax
To Incorne-tax for 2001 for 2001 :
% {assume 30%) 18,000 | Afier fax profil 42,000
To Dividend for 2001 [ncome-tax 30% 18.000 60,000
Preference 5,700 By Balance ¢/d (Dr. balance '
Equity 24.000 29,700 in-the Profit & Loss Afc
To Loss of stock by fire for on 31.12.2005 2,55,500
2002, 2003 and 2004 40,000
To Trading losses for 2002 .
2003 and 2004 1,089,000
To Trading loss for 3{]{15 1,33,800
(Balancing figure)
3,55,550 3,55,550
Steel Lid. (in liguidation)
Statement of Affairs as on December 31, 2005
Estimated
realisable
value
Assets not specifically pledged (as per list A) . Rs.
Plant 1,30,000
Tools 4,000
Patents 30,000
Book Debts 60,000
Stock 74,000
Unpaid Calls 5,000
3,03,000
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Assets specifically pledged (as per list H}d:

(a) (b) (c}) (d)
Estimated Due to  Deficiency Surplus
Realisable  Sccured ranking as  carried to
value creditors  unsecured  last column
Ks. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Land & Building
1,30,000 80,000 — 30,000
Investments  1,70.000 190,000 20,000 —
3,00,000  2,70,000 20,000 50,000

Estimated surplus from assets specifically pledged
Estimated total assets available for Preferential Creditors,
Debenture-holders secured by a floating charge and
unsecured creditors :

Summary ol Gross Assets (g) ;

Gross realisable value of assets specifically pledged
3,00,000
3.03.000
6,03,000

Other assets

Giross Assecls

()
Gross
Liabilities

Liabilities
(to be deducted trom surplus or added to deficiency
as the case may be)

2,50,000

20,000

1,03,000

Secured Creditors (as per list B) to the extent to
which claims are estimated to be covered by assets
specifically pledged

Preferential Creditors (as per list C)—

Owing for wages (assuming there were 20 workers

whose wages are duc for 4 months preceding the date

of this statement but after 31,12.2004)

Estimated balance of assets available for Debenture-

holders secured by a floating charge and unsecured creditors
Debenture-holders secured by a floating charge

{as per list D)

Estimated surplus as regards Debenture-holders

50,000

3,53,000

20,000

3,33,000

1,03,000

2.30,000
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Unsecured Creditors (as per list E) :
20,000 | Unsecored balance of Secured Creditors 20,000
30,000 | Sccretary’s salary owing 30,000
244,500 | Trade Creditors 2.44.500 2.94.500
6,67.500 | Estimated deficiency as regards creditors [(f) — (e)] 64,500
Issued and Called up Capital :
10,000 6% Preference Shares of Rs.10 each
" (as per list F) 1,00,000
30,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each, Rs. § paid
{as per list 3) 2.40.000
3,40,000
|- Estimated defliciency as regards members "T,Sﬂﬂ
List H-Deficiency Acconnt
A. Ttems contributing to deficiency (or réducing surplus) : Rs.
1. Excess of capital and liabilities over assets on 1.1.2001
~ (Debit balance in the Profit & Loss Afc on 1.1.2001) 25,000
2. Nel dividends and bonusecs declared during the period
from 1.1.2001to 31.12.2005 29,700
3. Net trading losses after charging depreciation, taxation,
interest on Debentures, cte. (1.09,000 + 1,33,800) 2,42.800
4. lLosses other than trading loss or for which provision
has been made during the same period (loss of stock
destroyed by fire) 40,000
5. Estimated losses now written off or [or which provision
has been made for the purposc preparing this statement :
Plant (2,00,000 — 1,30,000) 70,000
Tools (20,000 — 4,000) 16,000
Patents (50,000 — 30,000) 20,000
Stock (87,000 — 74,000) 13,000
Investments (1,80,000 — 1,70,000) 10,000
Book Debts (90,000 — 60,000) 30,000 1,59,{11*,\[}
6. Other ilems contributing deficiency Ea Nil
Total (A) 4,96,500
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B. Ttems reducing deficiency (or contributing to surplus) :
7. Excess ol assets over capital and liabilities on 1.1.2001
(General Reserve on 1.1,2001) 40.000

8. Net trading profits afler charging depreciation, taxation
interest on Debentures, etc. during the period from
1.1.2001 to 31.12.2005 42.000

9. Profits and income other than trading profits during the
same period (expecled profit on realisation of

i

Land & Buildings) 10,000

10. Other items reducing deficiency Nil
Total (A — B) 92,000

Deficiency as shown by the Statement of Affairs (A — B) 4,04.500

3.9 Liquidator’s Final Statement of Account

The functions of the liquidator arc to realise the assels of the company and to
distribute the amounts among those who have a rightful claim to it. In order to
discharge his duties as laid down in the Companies Act, 1956 he has to prepare a
summary Cash Book showing therein realisation of assets and payment to those who
have a rightful claim on the disbursements of the amounts. The summary Cash Book
prepared by the liquidator after the liquidation started is known as “Liguidator’s
Statement of Account or Liquidator's Final Statement of Account”. Moreover, he has
to submit the statement to the Court in case of compulsory liguidation and to the
company in case of voluntary liquidation, Tt is only a statement although presented
in the form of an account. Naturally, no double entry is involved in its preparation,

In view of carrying out the disbursements, the following is the order, which will
be followed by the liquidator :

1. Sceured Creditors— They should be paid up to their claim or up fo the
amount realiscd by. the sale of assets held by them, whichever is lower.
Again, creditors themselves may sell the assels held by them and return the
surplus, if any, to the liquidator afler meeting their claim. In this situation,
only the surplus is shown as receipt without showing the payment to securcd
creditors in the Liquidator’s Statement of Account.

2. Legal Charges.

3. Liguidator's remuneration.

4. Cost of winding up.
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5. Preferential Creditors.

Debenture-holders or other Lredltors having a floating charpe on the assels
of the company.

7. Unsecured Creditors—This may include liability for dividend or amounts
due to shareholders on account of profits. In this case, dividend is to be paid
afier the outsiders are completely paid off.

8. Preference Shareholders.
9. Equity Shareholders.

5.10 Some Important Items

Necessary allention is required to be given for the following items :

1. Liguidator’s Remuneration—In case of compulsory liquidation, the
remuneration of the liquidator is fixed by the Court, while the remuneration of the
liquidator is fixed by the meeting which appoints the liquidator in case of voluntary
winding up. The remuneration once fixed cannot be increased. Liquidator’s
remuneration usually consists of a commission on assets disposed ol plus a commission
on the amounts paid to unsecured creditors.

2. Debenture Interest—Where the company is solvent, debenture intercst should
be paid up to the date of payment. But, debenture interest should be paid up to the
date of liquidation when the company is insolvent. The same rule is also applicable

to other creditors as to the payment of interest. A cnmp;my is treated as insolvent if
it cannot pay all its creditor.

3. drrear Preference Dividend—The position of arrear preference dividend is
summarised as below :

(a) The question of arrear does not arise in case of non-cumulative Preference
Shares. But, in case of shares are not specifically mentioned as non-
cumulative, they should be treated as cumulative.

{b) No dividend is payable for any period [alling after the commencement
of liquidation,

(c) If prefercnce dividend has been declared but not paid, then that should
be paid as debt and not as an arrear.

{(d) T the preference dividend has not been declared for one or more years,
then arrear preference dividend will be paid provided there is a surplus
after payment of preference share capital first and then equity share
capital, unless otherwise specifically stated in the Articles of Association
of the company.
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Preparation of Liguidator’s Statesment of Account
Hlustration 4 :

The following particulars relate to Copper Ltd., which has gone into voluntary
liquidation on March 31, 2005. You are required to prepare the Liquidator’s
Statement of Account, allowing for his remuneration @ 3% on the amount realised,
and 2% on the amount distributed to unsecured creditors :

Rs.
Preferential Creditors 10,000
Unsecured Creditors 32,000
Debentures 10,000
The assets realised the following sums :
Land and Building 20,000
Plant and Machinery 18,670
Fixtures and Fittings 1,000

The liquidation expenses amounted to Rs.1,000.

Solution :

Liquidator's Statement of Account for the period ending on March 31, 2005

Receipts Amuount ' Payments Amount

To Assets realised : Rs, Rs.
Land & Building 20,000 | By Liquidator’s Remuneration 1,534
Plant & Machinery 18,700 | By Liquidation Expenscs 1,000
Fixtures & Fillings 1.000 | By Preferential Creditors 1.00,000

By Debenture holders (assume
having a floating charge) 10,000

By Unsecured Creditors 17,166
39.700 39,700
Working Nete :
1. Liguidator’s Remuneration Rs.
Assets realised 39,700
Lesa : 3% on assets realised . 1.191
Liguidation Expenses 1,000
Preferential Creditors 10,000

Debenturc-holders having a floating charge  10.000 2o
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Amount available for unsecured creditors subject to remuneration 17,509
|

Less : Payment to Unsecured Creditors (17,509 = 100/102) 17.166
Remuneration on Unsecured Creditors 343
Total remuneration (1,191 + 343) 1.534

Hiustration 5 :

The Balance Sheet of Picture Ltd, as on March 31, 2005 is given below :

Liabilities Amount Assets Amount

Share Capital - Rs. Es,

3,000 6% Pref. Shares of : Land & Buildings 1,50,000

Rs.100 each fully paid 3,00,000 | Plant & Machinery 3,75,000

1,500 Equity Shares of Patents 60,000

Rs.100 each, Rs.75 paid 1,12,500 | Stock 82,500

4,500 Equity Shares of Sundry Debtors 1,65,000

Rs, 100 each, Rs.60 paid 2,770,000 | Cash at Bank 45,000

5% Debentures (having a Profit & Loss Account 1,580,000
floating charge on all assets) 1,50,000
Interest Due on Debentures 7,500
Credilors : 2,17,500

10,57,500 10,57,500

The preference dividends were in arrear for two years. Creditors include a loan
of Rs.75,000 on the morlgage of Land & Buildings. The asscts were realised as
follows :

Land & Buildings Rs.1,80,000; Plant & Machinery Rs,?:,ﬁﬂ,i}ﬂﬂ; Patents Rs.46,000;
Stock Rs.89,000 and Sundry Debtors Rs,1,20,000,

‘The expenses of liguidation amounted to Rs.16,755. The liquidator is entitled to
a commission of 3% on all assets realised except Cash at Bank and a commission
of 2% on amounts distributed among unsecured creditors. Preferential credilors
amount to Rs.22,500. All payments were made on September 30, 2005.

Prepare the Liquidator’s Statcment of Account.
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Solution :

Liguidator’s Statement of Account from 1.4.2005 te 30.9.2005

Receipts Amount Paymenls Amount
To Realisation ol Assets : Rs. Rs,
Bank 45,000 | By Liquidator’s Remuneration 24,900
Sundry Debtors 1,20,000 (Note 3)
Stock 89,000 Liquidation Expenses 16,350
Plant & Machinery 3,00,000 Preferential Creditors 22,500
Patents 46,000 Debenture-holders (having
Surplus from Land and a floaling charge) :
Buildings {Note 1) 105,000 5% Debentures 1,50,000
Interest (Note2) 11,250 | 1,61,250
Unsecured Creditors 1,20,000
Pref. Shareholders :
Pref. Bh. Capital 3.00.000
Arrear Dividend 36,000 | 3,36.000
Eq. Shareholders (MNote 6) :
Rs.75 paid (1,500 = 15.25) 213?5
Rs.60 paid (4,500 = 0.25) 1,125
7,05,000 7.05,000
Working MNotes
1. Surplus from Land & Buildings 2. Interest on Debentures
Es. Rs,
Amount realised 1, 80,000 As per last Balance Sheet 7.500
Less : Mortgage Loan 75,000 Add : Interest from
1.4.05 to 30.9.05, ie.,
1.05.000 for 6 months @ 3%
on Rs.1,50,000 3,750
11.250
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3. Liguidator’s Remuneration
; Rs.
Realisation of assets excepl Cash al Bank 35.000
(1,20,000 + 89,000 + 3,00,000 + 46,000 + 1,80,000)
3% on assets realised (735,000 = 3%) 22,050
2% on payment to Unsccured Creditors including
Preferential Creditors [(2,17.500 — 75,000) x 2%] 2.850
2 24,900
4. Amount Available for Equity Shareholders
Rs.
Amount available for payments : 7,058,000
Less : Payments for ;
Liguidator’s remuncration 24,900
Liguidation expenses 16,350
Preferential Creditors 22,500
Debenture-holders including interest 1,61.250
Unsecured Creditors 1.20.000 3.45.000
Amount available for Shareholders ' 3,60,000
Less : Amount to be returned to Pref Shareholders :
Paid up Pref. Capital 3,00,000
Arrear dividend for 2 years 36,000 3.36,000
Amount- Available 24,000
5. Deficiency for Equity Sharcholders
; Rs.
Paid up Equity Share Capital (1,12,500 + 2,70,000) 3.82,500
Less ; Amount available (Note 4) 24,000
Total Delicicncy 3,58,500
Yo Déﬁcienuy = (Total deficiency = 1000/ (Nominal value of shares)
= (Rs.3,58,500 % 100)/6,00,000 = 59.75%
6. Payment to Equity Shareholders
1 11
Net amount returnable per share : ; Rs. Rs.
Paid up value per share 75.00 60.00
Less : Deficiency per share @ 59.75% of
nominal value (Note 35) 59.75 59.75
15.25 0.25
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TMustration 6 :

Tron Lid. went into voluntary liquidation on December 31, 2005. On that day the
details relating to the liquidation arc as follows :

Share Capital : Rs.

4,000 6% Preference Shares of Rs.100 each fully paid 4,00,000

Class ‘A’ 4,000 Equity Shares of Rs.100 each, Rs.75 paid 3,00,000

Class ‘B” 3,200 Equity Shares of Rs.100 each, Rs.60 paid 1,92,000

Class “C’ 2,800 Equity Shares of Rs.100 each, Rs.50 paid 1,40,000
Assets excluding Machinery realised Rs.6,79,000. Liquidation expenses (including
liquidator’s remuneration Rs.21,000) amount to Rs.30,000. Iron Lid. has taken a loan
of Rs.1,00,000 from State Bank of India against the mortgage of Machinery which
realised Rs.1,61,000, In the books of the company salaries of 8 Clerks for 4 months
(@ Rs.300 per month and salarics of 8 Peons for 3 months @ Rs.150 per month, are

due for payment. In addition to this, the books of the company show the Creditors
worth Rs.1,74 800.

Prepare Liquidator’s Statement of Account,

Solution ;

Liguidator's Statement of Account for period ended 31 122003

Receipts Amount Payments Amount
Rs. Rs.
To Assets realised 6,79,000 | By Liquidator’s remuneration 21,000
Surplus from Machinery 61,000 Liquidation expenses 9,000
(1,61,000 — 1,00,000) Freferential Creditors 11,600
Eq. Shareholders (Wote) : (Note 1)
Proceeds of Call Unsecured Creditors 1,76.400
@ Re.l per share on (1,74,800 + 200 = §)
Class ‘C* shares Pref. Shareholders 400,000
(Re.l = 2,800) 2,800 Eq. Sharcholders (Note 4):
4.000 on Class ‘A’ shares 96,000
(Rs.24 x 4,000) '
3.200 on Class ‘B" shares 28,800
(Rs.9 x 3,200)
7,42,800 7,42,800
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Working Notes :

1. Payment to Preferential Creditors

Salary of Clerks : For 8 Clerks for 4 months at Rs.1,200 each, Rs.
limited to Rs.1,000 each (Rs.1,000 = 8) 8,000
Salary of Pcons : For 8 Peons for 3 months at Rs.450 3,600
(Rs450 x 8) . 11,600
2. Amount Available for Equity Shareholders
Es.
Assets realised (6,79,000 + 1,61,000) 8.40,000
Less : Payments for ;
Liquidator’s remuncration 21,000
Liquidation expenses 9,000
Secured Creditors 1.00,000
Preferential Creditors 11,600

Insecured Creditors

[1,74,800 + 200 % 8 (Salary of ClerkS)] 1.76.400 3,18.000

Amount available for Shareholders : 5,22.000

Less : Preference Share Capital 4,00,000

Amount Available 1,22,000
3. Deficiency for LEquity Shareholders

Paid up Equity Capital 6,32,000

Less : Amount available (Note 2) 1.22.000

Total deficiency 5.10.000

% Deficiency = (Lotal deficiency » 100)/Nominal value of sharcs
© =(Rs.5,10,000 % 100)/10,00,000 = 51%

4, Amount Receivable or Payable to Equity Shareholders

‘A’ shares ‘B* shares  *C’ shares

Rs, Rs. Rs.
Paid up value per share 75.00 60.00 50.00
Less : 51% deliciency of nominal
value per shares 51.00 51.00 51.00
Per share net payable/receivable (—) 24.00 9.00 (=) 1.00
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5.11 Summary

The legal process to bring an end of the corporate life of any company is known
as liquidation of company. The Statement of Affairs and Deficiency Account are
prepared by the company while the Liquidator’s Statement of Account is prepared by
the liquidator. For accounting purposes, the preparation of these statements, requires
knowledge over the legal provisions regarding liquidation of company in particular
and accounting knowledge in general, Actually, they are pro-forma based accounting
which must comply with the legal requirements,

5.12 Exercises

Problem | -

The following particulars were extracted from the books Alpha Limited as on March 31,
2005 on which date a winding up order was made

Equity Share Capital ; Rs.
4,000 Shares of Rs.100 each, Rs.50 called up ' 2,00,000
Calls in arrear (estimated to produce Rs.10,000) 12,000

6% Preference Share Capital :

4,000 Shares of Rs.100 each, fully called up 4,00,000

3% Debentures secured by first floating charge 3,00,000

Bank Overdraft secured by second floating charge : ED,I[IU[}

Fully Secured Creditors (secured on investments) 60,000

Partly Secured Creditors (secured on investments) 40,000

Investments with fully secured creditors (estimated
to produce Rs.70,000) 80,000

Investments with partly sccured creditors (estimated
to produce Rs.20,000) 50,000

Rate & Taxes 2,000

Wages & Salaries 4,000

Bills Payables 1,80,000

Sundry Creditors ' 1,60,000

Bills Receivable in hand 24,000

Sundry Debtors (estimated to produce Rs.33,000) 52,000
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ILand & Building (estimated to produce Rs.2,00,000) 2,80,000

Stock-in-trade (estimated to produce Rs.80,000) 1,20,000
Machinery (estimated to produce Rs.4.000) 6,000
Cash in hand 400
- Bills Discounted Rs,60,000, likely to be dishonoured 20,000
Contingent Liability Rs.20,000, likely to be paid 14,000

You are asked to prepare (i) Statement of Affairs and (ii) Deficiency Account assuming
that no journal entry was made for outstanding rent Rs.5,000.

Hints : Trial Balance is not given. It is necessary to prepare the Trial Balance. The
difference between and credit should be considered as either accumulated loss or profit
which will be taken to Deficiency Account.

Answer ¢ Total deficiency Rs.9,71,600.

Probfem 2 :

The Surprise Ltd. went into voluntary liquidation on January 1, 2006, The liquidator is
entitled to a commission of 3% on realisation of all assets and 2% on distribution to
shareholders. The following was the position of the company as on December 31, 2005 :

Rs.
Cash on realisation of assets ' 5,00,000
Expenses on liquidation 9,000
Unsecured Creditors (including salaries and wages for
one month prior to liquidation, Rs.6,000) 68,000
15,000 6% Preference Shares of Rs.10 each (dividend
paid up to December 31, 2002) 1,50,000
1,000 Equity Sharcs of Rs.100 each, Rs.90 per called
and paid up 90,000

Under the Articles of Association of the company the Preference Sharcholders have the
right to receive third of the surplus remaining after repaying Equity Share Capital.

Answer : Liquidator’'s remuneration Rs:23,000; Payment to sharcholders : Preference
SharcholdersRs.2,09.333; Equity Shareholders Rs.1,90,667.

5,13 Questions

|. What do you.mean by liquidation of companies? What are the effects of liquidation?
State different types of liquidation.

Q.2 What is Statement of Affairs? How is such statement prepared? Why is it prepared?
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Q.3 What is Deficiency Account? Whal arc the objects of its preparation?

Q.4 What is meant by Preferential Creditors? What are the items (hat are to be included
in preferential creditors?
Q.5 What do you mean by Liquidator’s Final Statement of Account? Can it be said Cash

Book? What are the orders of payments that are shown in this statement?

Q.6 Mention the correct answer .

|. A contributory is (a) a creditor; (b) a shareholder; (¢) a debenture-holder.

2. The wages of 3 workers for a period of 5 months prior to the date of liquidation
was in arrear. If the wages of each worker is Rs.1,400 per month the amount
to be included in preferential creditors will be (a) Rs.21,000; (b) Rs.16,800;
(¢) Rs.3,000.

3, Mr. X is the liquidator of company. He is entitled to a commission (@ 2% on assets
realised and 3% on the amount distributed to shareholders. The assets realised
Rs.2,00,000 including cash balance of Rs.6,000. The amount available for
distribution to shareholders before his commission was Rs.96,580. The commission
of Mr. X will be (a) Rs.6,280; (b) Rs.6,200; (c) Rs.6,580.

Answers : 1(b), 2{c}, 3(c).

5.14 Suggested Readings

1. Chakraborty, H . Advanced Accountancy, Oxtord University Press.

2, Shukla, M.C; Grewal, T. S. & Gupta, S. C : Advanced Accounts, 5. Chand & Co.
(Pvt.) Ltd.

3. Gupta, R. L. & Radhaswamy, M : ddvanced Accounts, Sultan Chand & Sons.
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6.0 Objective

By the time you have gone through this unit you would be able to :
< know the general and legal definitions of holding company;
& grasp the legal requirements of consolidated financial statements in India;

% prasp the disclosure requirements of the consolidated financial statements as per
AS 21: and

< know the principles of consolidation of balance sheets and profit & loss accounts
of holding company and its subsidiaries.

6.1 Introduction

A holding company is one, which controls one or more other compatiies and enjoys
control over them by means of holding majority of its shares or by having powers to
appoint directly or indirectly the majority or whole of the Board of Directors of those
companies, Holding company is also called parent company. A company controlled by a
holding company is known as subsidiary company. Legally a holding company and its
subsidiaries are distinct and separate entitics. However, in substance both the holding and
subsidiary companics work as group. Although preparation ol consolidated financial
statements is not compulsory in India under the Companies Act 1956, but users ol holding
company accounts need financial information of subsidiaries in order o evaluate the overall
performance and financial position of the holding company. Thus, with a view to satistying
the need of the users, it is desirable to prepare such consolidated financial statements for
the group of compames.

In the following sections, legal definition of holding company and requirements in
respect of consolidated financial statements under the Companies Act, 1956 and requirements
under AS-21 as prescribed by the ICAL are discussed.

6.2 Legal Definition

There is no legal definition of holding company in the Companics Act, 1956. Thus, the
definition of holding company could be understood from the legal definition of subsidiary
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company. But, according to Section 4(1) of the Act, a company shall be deemed to be
a subsidiary of another if and only if—

(a) that other controls the composition of its Board of Directors; or

(b) that other

(i) where the first mentioned company is an existing company in respect of which
the holders of preference shares issued before the commencement of this Act
have the same voting rights in all respects as the holders of equity shares,
exercises or controls more than half of the total voting power of such
Ccompainy;

(i) where the first mentioned company is any other company, holds more than
half in value of its equity share capital; or

(¢) the first mentioned company is a subsidiary of any company which is that
other’s subsidiary.
A company shall be deemed to be the holding company of another, if and only if, that
other is its subsidiary.

Llustration 1 :
Company B is a subsidiary of Company A and Company C is a subsidiary of
Company B, then Company C is a subsidiary of Company A. If Company D is a

subsidiary of Company C, then Company D will also be subsidiary of Company B and
consequently also of Company A.

6.3 Legal Requirements for Presentation of Information

Under Section 212, every holding company is required to attach to its balance sheet
the following documents in respect of its subsidiaries :

(a) acopy of the balance sheet of the subsidiary;
(b) acopy of its profit and loss account;

(c) a copy of the report of its Board of Dircctors;
(d) a copy of the report of its auditors;

(e) astatement of the holding company’s interest in the subsidiary as specified
in sub-section (3) of Section 212;

{f) the statement referred to in sub-section (5) of Section 212, if any; and
{g) the statement referred to in sub-section (6) of Section 212, if any.
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The interval between the close of the financial year of the subsidiary company and that
of the holding company shall not be more than 6 months for the purpose of Section 212.
The Central Government has the power to issue necessary instructions for this purpose in
cas¢ when the interval between the close of the financial year of the subsidiary company
and that of the holding company is longer than 6 months [Section 213(2)].

The statement referred to in (¢) above in sub-section (3) of Section 212 shall contain
the information noted below :

(a) the extent ol the holding company’s interest in the subsidiary as at the end
of the financial year of the subsidiary company;

(b) the net aggregate amount, so far as it concerns members of the holding company
and is not dealt with in the company’s accounts, of the subsidiary’s aller dedueting
its losses—

(1) forthe financial year or years of the subsidiary covered by the balance sheet
and profit and loss account;

(i) for the previous financial years of the subsidiary since it became the holding
company's subsidiary;

(¢) the net aggregate amount of the profits of the subsidiary after deducting its losses:

(i) for the financial year under report; and

(i) for the previous financial years of the subsidiary company since it became the
holding company’s subsidiary.
So far as those profits or losses have been dealt with in the holding company’s
accounts,

Profits and losses stated in paragraphs (b) and (¢) are only such amounts that may be
treated by the holding company as revenue profits or losses. From the point of view of the
holding company, a clear distinction must be made as to the allocation of profits or losses
between revenue profit (or loss) and capital profit (or loss) of the subsidiary. In the absence
of information, profits or losses of the subsidiary of'a year may be treated as accruing from
day to day [sub-section (4) of Section 212].

According to sub-section (5) of Section 212, where the financial years of the holding
company and subsidiary company do not coincide, a statement containing the following
particulars shall be attached fo the every balance sheet of the holding company :

(a) the change and the extent thereof, in the holding company’s interest in the

subsidiary between the end of the financial yecar or of the last of the financial
years of the subsidiary and the end of the holding company’s financial year; and
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(b) details of any material changes which occurred between the end of the financial
year or of the last of the financial years of the subsidiary and the end of the holding
company’s financial year in respect of :

(i) the subsidiary’s fixed assets; (ii) its investments; (iii) the moneys lent by it;
and (iv) the moneys borrowed by it for any purpose other than that of meeting current
liabilities.

In view of the amendment in the Income-tax Act, 1961, the Nnancial year of any
company must begin on 1 April and end on 31* March of the subsequent year. However,
there is no scope of the difference as lo the ¢lose of the financial year between the
subsidiary company and holding company. Thus, sub-scction (3) of Section 212 is not
relevant in the context of the amendment in the Income-tax Act.

6.4 Requirements of AS-21 on Consolidated Financial
Statements

In India, preparation of Consolidated Financial Statement (CF5) is not compulsory
under the Companies Acl, 1956. The Act also stipulates that a holding company should
provide in respect of each of its subsidiarics a few copy of documents and statements
that are to attached Lo its balance sheet. But, *45-21; Consolidated Financial Statement ',
as prescribed by the LCAI requires mandatory preparation of CESs for the parent
corporate entitics with effect from the accounting year commencing on or after 1.4.2001,
Such CI'Ss should consolidate all subsidiaries, domestic and foreign, other than a
subsidiary when :

(a) control is extended to be temporary because the subsidiary is acquired and held
exclusively with a view to its subseguent disposal in near future; or

(b) it operates under severe long-term restrictions which sigmificantly impair its ability
to transfer funds to the parent. -

The Standard also requires that the financial statement used in consolidation should be
drawn up to the same reporting date. If it is not possible for one or more subsidiaries to
draw up the financial statement to such dale, adjustments should be made for the effect of
significant transactions or other events that occur between the dates on which financial
statement of one or more subsidiaries are drawn and the date of the parent company’s
financial statement. Under no case, the difference between reporting dates should be more
than 6 months.
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6.5 Consolidated Balance Sheet

A consolidated balance sheet is the balance sheet of the holding company and its
subsidiary company or companies, which is prepared in order to show the assets and
liabilities of the group in a consolidated form. The object of preparing a consolidated
balance sheet is to provide the sharcholders of the holding company with a comprehensive
picture in respect of the state of affairs of the group,

6.6 Principles of Consolidation

The basic principle of consolidation is the apgregation of the assets and liabilities of the
subsidiary company or companies with those of holding company. Preparation of consolidated
balance sheet requires allocation of profits and reserves and surplus of the subsidiary
company into capital and revenue profits. It requires elimination of different items such as,
infer-company investments and share capital of subsidiary company, inter-company balances,
unrealised inter-company profits on stocks and other assets held at balance sheet date, elc.
Let us have a brief discussion on different items in the paragraphs that follow.

6.6.1 Capital and Revenue Profits

The date of acquisition of shares in the subsidiary company by the holding company
is the primary factor in determining capital and revenue profits, Profit earned by the
subsidiary company up to the date of acquisition of shares by the holding company is
known as capital profil or pre-acquisition profit. In other words, the profit including
reserves would have been standing in the balance sheet of the subsidiary company at the
time of acquisition of shares is régarded as capital profit. Also, profit or loss on revaluation
of fixed assets of the subsidiary company is taken as capital profit or capital loss
respectively. Capital profit to the extent of the share of holding company is to be adjusted
against cost of control or goodwill whereas the share of outside shareholdets in the same
should be adjusted against minority interest. Capital profit includes the following :

(a) Capital reserve and securities premium whether they arose in pre-acquisition or

post-acquisition period;

(b) Credit balance in the general reserve account or any other reserve account:

(c) Credit balance in the profit and loss account;
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(d) Bonus shares if issued out of either pre-acquisition profit or post-acquisition profit
and if not recorded in the books of subsidiary company;

(¢) Any dividend paid out of pre-acquisition profits;

() Profit on revaluation of fixed assets; and

() Increasc in the value of stock at the time acquisition of shares.

Profit earned by the subsidiary company after acquisition of shares by the holding
company is termed as revenue profit or post-acquisition profit or current profit. In
other words, profits including reserves carned subscquent (o the date ol purchase of shares
are {aken as revenuc profits. Revenue profits to the extent of the share of holding company
may be transferred cither to the profit and loss account only or, to the pencral reserve
account and profit & loss account of the holding company on the basis of proportionate
share in those accounts of subsidiary company by the holding company. But, the share of
the outside shareholders in the revenue profits may be transferred only to the *minority
interest account” and “proposed dividend for minority account” on the basis of proportionate
claim in those accounts of the minority sharcholders. 1t includes the following :

(a) Profits including transfer to rescrves and dividend paid or proposed, if any,
out of profits carned in the post-acquisition period by the subsidiary company;
and

Over-denreciation on fixed assets on account of revaluation will increase revenue
CP
profit while under-depreciation will reduce the same.

6.6.2 Elimination of Investment in Subsidiary Company

The shares of the subsidiary company which are acquired by the holding company is
shown in the assel side of the balance sheet of the holding company under the head
“Ipvestment’ and the same is shown in the liability side of the balance sheet of the
subsidiary company under the head ‘Sharc Capital’.

Where the holding company acquires all the equity shares of the subsidiary company
at par, in that case, for the purpose of conselidation, the investment account of the holding
company and share capital account of the subsidiary company should be climinated. This
is the essence of consolidation. Other assets and liabilities of the subsidiary company will
be apgregated with those of the holding company. The example given below will make the

principle clear.
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IMustration 2 ;

Balance Sheets of X Lid and Y Lid. as at March 31, 2005

Liabilitics X ILd. | Y L | Assets X L. | Y L. |
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Equity share capital Sundry Assels 2,50,000 | 160,000
(Rs. 10 each) 240,000 | 1,00,000 | Investment in 10,000
Creditors 110,000 60,000 | shares of Y Ltd. 100,000 Mil
3,50,000 | 160,000 3,50,000 | 1,60,000

Preparc a Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2005.

Solution

The elimination of both the investment of X Ltd. and the share capital of"Y Ltd. can
be shown by the following journal entry

Dr. Cr.
Rs. Rs,
Share Capital Account (Y Ltd.) Dr. 100,000
To Investment Account (X Ltd,) 1,00,000

[Investment in 10,000 share of ¥ Ltd. by X Ltd.
cancelled against Share Capital of Y Ltd.]

Consolidated Balance Sheet of X Ltd. and its subsidiary, Y Lid. as at March 31, 2005

Liabilities Amount Assets Amount
Rs. Rs.
Equity Share Capital
(Rs. 10 cach) 240,000 | Sundry Assets 4, 10,000
Creditors (1,10,000 + 60,000) 1,70,000 | (2,50,000 + 1,60,000)
4,10,000 4,10,000

6.6.3 Cost of Control/Goodwill or Capital Reserve

There may be a situation where the holding company acquires all the equity shares in
the subsidiary company at a premium or at a discount and, at the same time, the subsidiary
company may have some accumulated profit or loss on the date of acquisition of shares.
In that situation, the excess price paid by the holding company over the equity acquired
or net assets acquired is described as goodwill to be recognised as an assct. But, when
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the price paid is lower than the equity acquired, the difference should be treated as capital
reserve to be shown in the consolidated balance sheet under the head “Reserves and
Surplus’. The following example will make the principle clear.

Hlustration 3 :

Balance Sheets of P Ltd. and Q Ltd. as at March 31, 2005

Liabilities P Ld. | Q Ltd. Assets P Ltd. | Q Ltd.
Es. s, Rs. Rs,
Equiry Share Capital
{Rs. 100 cach) 2,00,000 | [,00,000 | Sundry Assets 166,000 | 1,62.000
General Reserve 40,000 | 12,000 | Investment (1,000
Profit & Loss Alc 20,000 10,000 | shares in Q Ltd.) 1,74,000 il
Creditors 80,000 40,000
3,40,000 | 1,62,000 3,40,000 | 1,62,000

P Ltd, acquired shares in @ Ltd, on April 1, 2004. Prepare a Consolidated Balance

Sheet.

Solution

To find out the amount of either goodwill or capital reserve atising on purchase of
shares in Q Ltd., a journal entry may be passed as below :

over equity acquired debited to Goodwill Account.]

[Investment of P Lid, cancelled against Equity Share
Capital and Reserves & Surplus and the excess payment

Dr. Cr.
Hs. Rs. |.
Equity Share Capital Account (O Ltd.) D, 1,00,000
General Reserve Account (Q Lid,) Dr. (2,000
Profit & Loss Account (Q Ltd.) Dir. 16,000
Goodwill Account (Balancing ligure) Dr. 52,000
To Investment Account (P Ltd) 1,74.000

MNote : Where the payment for purchase of shares is lower than the equity or net assets

acquired, the difference will be treated as Capital Reserve.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet ol P Lid. and its subsidiary, Q Ltd. as at March 31, 2005

Liabilitics Amount Assets Amount

i Rs. Rs.
Equity Share Capital Goodwill 52,000
(Rs. 100 each) 200,000 | Sundry- Assets
Cieneral Reserve 40,000 | (1,66,000+ 1,62,000) 3,28,000
Profit & Loss Adc 20,000
Creditors (80,000 + 40,000) [,20,000

3,820,000 3.80,000

6.6.4 Minority Interest

The collective interest of the outside shareholders in the subsidiary company is known
as minorify interest. Minority interest is treated as current liability and is shown as a
separate item in the consolidated balance sheet. The minority interest consists of the paid
up value of shares held by the outsiders plus their proportionate share in capital and
revenue profit minus their proportionale share of capital and revenue loss. The following
example will make the principle clear in respect of minority interest along with cost of
control, i.e., goodwill or capital reserve.

Hlustration 4 :

Balance Sheets of M Ltd. and N Ltd. as at March 31, 2005

Liabilities M Ltd, | N Ltd Assets M Ltd, | N Ltd.
Rs. Rs. Rs. Bs.

Equity Share Capital Sundry Assets L,90,000 | 1,70,000
(Rs. 100 each) 150,000 | 1,00,000 | Investments {in 800 '
General Rescrve 40,000 12.000| shares of N Ltd.) 90,000 Mil
Profit & Loss Alc 30,0001 28,000
Creditors 60,000 30,000

2,580,000 | L,70,000 2.80,000 | 1,770,000

M Ltd. purchased shares in N Lid, on July 1, 2004, On April 1, 2004 N Ltd, had
Rs.10,000 in General Reserve and Rs.8,000 in Profit & Loss Account (Credit balance).
Profits earnied by N Lid. acerue evenly throughout the year. No dividend was paid during
the year ended March 31, 2005.

Prepared a Consolidated Balance Sheet,
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Solution

In solving the problem, statement form of presentation is followed.

(1) Share of control in N Ttd.
M Ltd. = (800)/(1,000) = 4/5 or 80%
QOutsiders = (200)/(1,000) = 1/5 or 20%
(2) Analysis of Profits of N Lid.

[ Capital | Revenue | Revenue |
Profit |Gen. Res.| P & L
_Rs, Rs. Rs.
General Reserve on 1.7.2004 :
Balance in 1.4.2004 10,000
Add : Tnerease for first 3 months
[(12,000 — 10,000) = 3/12] 500 10,500
Increase in General Reserve for last 9 months
(12,000 — 10,500) 1,500
Profit & Loss on 1.7.2004
Balance on 1.4.2004 8,000
Add : Tncrease for first 3 months '
[(28,000 ~ 8,000 x 3/12)] 5,000 13,000
Increase in Profit & Loss for last Y months
(28,000 — 13,000) 15,000
: : 23,500 1,500 15,000
Less © Share of minority (20%) 4,700 300 3,000
Share of M Ltd. 18,800 1,200 12,000
(3) Cost of Control/Goodwill or Capital Reserve
Amount Amount
Rs. Rs,
Cost of Investment in Shares of N Ltd. 90,000
Less ; Paid up value of 800 shares of Rs.100 ea‘ch- 80,000
Share of Capital Profit 18,800 98,800
Capital Reserve 8,800
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(4) Minonty Interest

Amountl Amount
Rs. 1l Ry,
Paid up value of 200 shares of Rs, 100 cach held by
outsiders 20,000
Add : Share of Capital Profit 4,700
Share of Revenue Profit :
General Reserve 300
Protit & Loss 3.000 3,300
28,000
(5) Group Reserves and Surplus
Gen, Res. | P & I,
Rs. Rs,
Balance on 31.3.2005 (M Litd.) 40,000 30,000
Add : Share of Revenue Profit 1,200 12,000
; 41,200 42,000
Consolidated Balance Sheet of M Ltd. and its subsidiary, N Ltd, as at March 31,
2005
Liabilities Amount Assets Amount
Rs, Rs.
Equity Share Capital Sundry Assets 3,60,000
(Rs. 100 cach) 15,00,000 | (1,90,000+ 1,70,000)
Capital Reserve 8.800
General Reserve 41,200
Profit & Loss Ale 42,000
Minority Interest i 28,000
Creditors (60,000 + 30,000) 00,000
3,60,000 3,60,000

6.6.5 Treatment of Dividend

Dividends received or receivable by the holding company from its subsidiary are of
three types. They are pre-acquisition dividend, interim dividend and proposed dividend,
The treatment of dividend received must vary in the books of the holding company

16l



depending on (he nature of profits utilised by the subsidiary company lor its payment. The
accounting treatment in the books of the holding company for each type of dividend is
explained as follows : '

1. Pre-acquisition Dividend—Dividend received out of capital profits must be credited
to the *Investment Account’ since the cash received is against the price of shares paid at
the time of the acquisition. Thus, journal entry for receiving such dividend is to debit the
Cash Account and to credit the Investment Account. But, when il is wrongly credited to
the Profit and T.oss Account, a rectifying journal entry is required. The entry for rectilying
the mistake will to debit the Profit and Loss Account and to credit the Investment Account
ol the holding company.

1. Interim Dividend— Dividend paid by a company due to sufficiency of estimated
profit earned by it for an interim period usually for first six months of the accounting year
is known as interim dividend This dividend may be treated in accounting in the following
lines :

(a) No adjustment is required in the books of holding company when interim dividend
is paid out of post-acquisition profit and recorded as credit to the Profit and Loss.
Account for its share in the same.

(b) When interim dividend is paid out of pre-acquisition profit, the accounting
treatment will be the same as mentioned in sub-section (1) of Section 6.6.5.

(¢) When interim dividend is paid partly out of pre-acquisition profit and partly out of
post-acquisition profit, the accounting will be : :

(i) For portion of dividend paid out of pre-acquisition profit—same as mentioned
in sub-section (I) of Section 6.6.5.

(ii) For portion of dividend paid out of post-acquisition profit—same as mentioned
in sub-section [1I(a)] of Scetion 6.6.5.

111, Post-acquisition Dividend—No adjustment is required in the books of holding
company when dividend is paid out of post-acquisition profit by the subsidiary company
provided it is recorded at the time ol receipt of dividend.

TV. Proposed Dividend-—Proposed dividend of the subsidiary company may be given
in the problem either in the balance sheet or in the adjustment. The accounting freatment
may be made in the following lines : :

(a) When it is given in the balance sheet—i) add the share of the holding company
to its Profit and Loss Account and the share of minority is to be kept in a separate
account styled as ‘Proposed Dividend for Minority Account’ under the head
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*Current Liabilities and Provisions® in the consolidated balance sheet, or, (ii) it may
be added to the post-acquisition profit whose accounting treatment is already
known to you and deduct the share of minority from Minority Inlerest Aceount
with a view to showing it separatcly in the Proposed Dividend for Minority
Account.

(b) When it is given in the adjustment—(i) no accounting treatment is required for it
except the subtraction of the share o' minority in the amount of proposed dividend
from Minority Interest Account in order to show it in the Proposed Dividend for
Minority Account, or, (ii) it may be disallowed altogether, in that case, Minority
Intercst Account will represent usual claims plus the share of proposed dividend
of the minority.

6.6.6 Revaluation of Fixed Assets

Holding company may revalue the fixed assets of its subsidiary with a view to
determining the price to be paid for acquiring controlling interest. The profit or loss on
revaluation of assets should be taken as either capital profit or capital loss.

6.6.7 Under or Over-depreciation

Depreciation on revalued amount of fixed assets should be considered. Additional
depreciation should be provided on the increased value of fixed assets while excess
depreciation on decreased value of fixed assets should be added back. Both the additional
and excess depreciation, i.e., under-depreciation and over-depreciation should be adjusted
against post-acquisition profit.

6.6.8 Issue of Bonus Shares

Subsidiary company may issue bonus shares utilising either pre-acquisition profit or
post-acquisition profit—the amount involved in issuing bonus sharcs is always a part of
capital profit. ‘The issue of bonus shares may be dealt with in the following lines :

I. Where the issue of bonus shares is recorded in the books of subsidiary company—
no adjustment is required to be made in the preparation of consolidated balance sheet.

II. Where such issuc of shares is not recorded in the books of subsidiary company—
the amount of total bonus issue either may be shown as a separate item in the capital profit
or it may be lelt untouched with a note only against the item or items of profit from which
it would be utilised for that purpose.
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6.6.9 Prefercnce Shares of Subsidiary Company
The treatment of preference shares may be made in the following lines :

1. When all the preference shares are held only by outsiders—The entire amount of
paid up preference share capital should be included in Minority Interest Account along with
arrear dividend. Arrear preference dividend should be deducted first [rom existing prolits
before making allocation of it between holding company and minority.

11. When preference shares are held partly by the holding company and partly by the
outsiders— The accounting treatment will be the same as that of equity shares except the
arrear preference dividend which will be treated as in sub-section (1) of Section 6.6.9.

6.6.10 Debentures of Subsidiary Company

Where some debentures of subsidiary company are held by the holding company,
cancellation of such debentures to the extent of holding company’s sharc should be made
against both the total debentures issued by the subsidiary company and investment in
debentures of subsidiary company. The difference between the cost price and the paid up
value should be adjusted to cost of control/goodwill or capital reserve.

6.6.11 Unrealised Inter-company Profits

Where one company in the group holds unsold stock or fixed asset purchased from
another as at the date of consolidated balance sheet, an adjustment is required to eliminate
unrealised inter-company profit on stock or fixed assel. The argument for creating provision
for unsold stock or provision for fixed asset held is that the profit is not truly realised
because such stock or fixed asset is not sold out to the outside buyers, Full amount of
unrealised profit should be provided as provision as per AS-2.

6.6.12 Inter-company Transactions

There may be number of inler-company transactions between the holding company
and subsidiary company. These transactions may relate to any one or more of the
following :

(a) Sale of goods on credit by the holding company to the subsidiary company or
vice- versa. These transactions must create debtors and creditors in the books of
company concerned.

(b) Granting of loans and advances by the holding company to the subsidiary
company or vice-versa.

(¢) Drawing of bil} of exchange by the holding company on subsidiary company or
vice-versa.
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As a resull ol the abovementioned inter-company transactions, some accounts are
shown as asscts in the books of holding company and the same accounts are shown as
liabilities in the books of subsidiary company. In preparing consolidated balance sheet,
inter-company- assets and liabilities should be eliminated with the existence of common

minimum amounis of either company,

6.6.13 Contingent Liabilities

Contingent liabilities relating to external parties only on account of bills discounted,
claim for pending suit either against holding company or subsidiary company, unpaid calls
on investments, etc. should be shown as a note in preparing consolidated balance sheet.

Ilustration 5 :

Following are the Balance Sheets of I Ltd. and S Ltd. as at March 31, 2005 :

You are given following additional information :

(a) H Ltd. acquired 1,200 shares in 8 Ltd. on July 1, 2004,

Liahilities H Lid. | 5 Lid. Assets H Ltd. | 5 Ltd.
Rs. Rseal. Rs. Rs.

Equity Share Capital _ Sundry Fixed Assets | 340,000 | 2,60,000
(Rs. 100 each) 4,00,000 | 2,00,000 | Stock 1,60,000 70,000
General Reserve 1,50,000 60,000 | Sundry Debtors 110,000 80,000
Prolit & Loss Alc 140,000 1 1,20,000 [ Tavestments 1,70,000 ==
Sundry Creditors 1,00,000 40,000 | Bank 20,000 15,000
Bills Payable 10,000 5,000

800,000 | 4,25,000 8,00,000 | 4,25,000

(b) On April 1, 2004 S Ltd. had Rs.36,000 in General Reserve and Rs.48,000 in
Profit & Loss A/c (Credit balance).

(c) On July 16, 2004 H 1.td. received dividend for last financial year amounting to
Fs.12,000 from & Ltd. and credited the same to its Profit & Toss Afe.

(d) S Ltd. owed H Ltd. Rs.24,000 for purchase of goods, Hall of goods lying unsold

on March 31, 2005,

H Ltd. made a profit of 20% on sales.

(¢) During 2004-05 § Ltd. had purchased a fixed asset from H Ltd, for Rs.20.000
which had yielded a profit on selling price of 30% to that company. A depreciation ol 20%
on the asset had been charged in the accounts,

Preparc a Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2005.
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Solution

Consolidated Balance Sheet of H Lid. and its subsidiary, S Ltd. as at March i

2005.
pria Liabilities Amount Assets Atniotint
Ks. Rs.
Share Capital Fived Assets
Authorised Sundry Fixed Assets
.. Equity Shares of (3,440,000 + 2,60,000)
Rs. 100 each 2 6,00,000
{ssued and Subscribed Less : Provision for
Equity Share Capital (Rs. 100) | 4,00,000 unrealised profit 6,000
Reserves and Surplus 5,94.000
Capital Reserve 17,800 | Add : Over-depreciation 1,200
5,95,200
General Reserve 1LGOBOD | Favestments Mil
Profit & Loss Alc 165,080 | Current Assets, Loans and
Curvent Liabilities and Advances
Provisions Stock (1,60,000 + 70,000)
sSundry Creditors 2.30,000
(1,00,000 + 40,000) 1, 40,000 Less : Prov. for stock 2,400
2.27.600
Less : Inter-co, debt 24,000 | 1,16,000 | Sundry Debtors
Bills Payable (10,000 + 5,000) 15,000 | (1,10,000 + 80,000) 190,000
Minority Interest 149,120 | Less ¢ Inter-co, debt 24,000
1,66.000
Bank (20,000 + 15,000) 35,000
10,23 .800 10,23,800

Working Notes ;

(1) Proportion of holding in S Ltd, :
H Ltd. = (1200/(2000) = 3/5ths = 60%
Minority = (800)/(2000) = 2/5ths = 40%
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(2) Analysis of Profits of § Ltd.

Capital | Revenue | Revenue
Profit |Gen. Res.| P & 1,
Rs. Rs, Rs,_ &
General Reserve on 1.7.2004 :
Balance in 1.4.2004 36,000
Add : Increase during first 3 months
[(60,000 — 36,000) = 3/12] 6,000 42,000
Increase in General Reserve during last
9 months (6,000 = 3) 18,000
Profit & Loss on 1.7.2004
Balance on 1.4.2004 48.000
Less : Dividend for iﬂ::ﬁ-m (12,000 = 5/3) 20,000
28,000
Add : Profit for first 3 months
[(1,20,000 — 28,000) x 3/12)] 23,000 51,000
Increase in Profit & Loss during last
9 months (23,000 x 3) 69,000
Add : Over-depreciation on fixed asset 93,000 18,000 69,000
. (20,000 % 30% % 20%) K 14 1,200
93,000 18,000 70,200
Less : Prov. for fixed asset (20,000 x 30%) 6,000
Prov. for stock (24,000 x 1/2 x 20%) 2400 - — 3,4{1&
) 93,000) 18,000 61,800
Less : Share of minority (4n%j 37,200 7200 24,720
Share of H Ltd. 55,800 10,800 37.080
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(3) Cost of Control

Amount Aot

Rs. Rs,
Cost of 1,200 shares in 5§ Ltd. 1,70,000
Less : Share of pre-acquisition dividend wrongly credited
o the Profit & lLoss Afe, now rectified 12,000
True cost of investment 1,533,000
Less ;  Paid up value of 1,200 shares of Rs.100 cach 120,000
Share of capital profit 55,800 1,753,800
Capital Reserve 17,800

(4) Minority Interest

Amount Amount

Rs. Rs.
Paid up value of 800 shares of Rs.100 each 80,000
Add :  Share of capital profit 37.200
sharc of revenue profil
General Reserve 7.200
Profit & Loss ; 24,720 31,920
149,120

(5) Consolidated Reserves & Surplus

Gen. Res. | Amounts

P &L
; Rs. Rs.
Balance of H Lid. on 31.3.2005 | 1,50,000 |, 40,000
Less : Share of pre-acquisition divided wrongly credited
to the Profit & loss Alc, now rectified 12,000

1,350,000 1.28,000
Add : Share ol revenue profit 10,800 37.080

1,60,800 | 1.65,080
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Hustration 6 :

The following are the Balance Sheets of X Lid. and its subsidiary, Y Ltd. as at March

31, 2005 : —
Liabilities X Ld | Y Ltd, Assels XL | ¥ Lid

R, Hs. Rs. Rs.
Equity Share of Buildings 103,000 40,000
Rs. 10 ech 1,860,000 50,000 | Machinery 47,000 27.000
Reserve (1.4.2004) 95,000 12,000 | Furniture 5,000 3,000
Profit & Loss Afc 80,000 37,000 | Investments 90,000 g
Creditors 150001 16,000 | Stock-in-trade 34,000 18,200
Bills Payable —_ 10,000 | Debtors 38,000 | 26,000
(issued to X Lid.) | Bank 33,000 10,800
3,50,000 | 125,000 350,000 | 1,25,000

X Ltd. purchased 3,000 shares in Y T.td. on July 1, 2004 at a total cost of Rs.90,000.
The Profit & Loss A/c of X Ltd. includes interim dividend @10% from Y Ltd. declared
after July 1, 2004. Y Ltd. proposed a final dividend of 12% for the year 2004-05,

The balance in Profit & Loss A/c on April 1, 2004 in the books of Y L.td. was
Rs.17,000. The profit during the year 2004-05 has been carned uniformly throughout the
year. Interim was paid for first 6 months of the accounting year out of current year’s profit.

Machinery standing in the books of Y Ltd. at Rs.30,000 on the date of purchasc was
revalued at Rs.25,250. A fire was occurred in the Godown of Y Ltd. on January 14, 2005
destroying poods of the cost of Rs.8,000. The insurance company had paid a claim of

Rs.5,000.

Prepare a Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2005,

Solution

Consolidated Balance Sheet of X Ltd. and its subsidiary, Y Lid. as at March 2005.
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Liabilities Amount Assels Amount
Rs. Rs.
Share Capital : Fived Assets
Authorised 7 Goodwill 400,800
Tssued and Subscribed Buildings (1.03,000 + 40,000} 1,43,000 _



Liabilities Amount Assets Amount
Rs. Rs.
Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 160,000 | Machinery
Reserves & Swplus (47,000 + 27,0000 74,000
Reserve 95,000 [ Less : Revaluation Loss 4,000
Profit & Loss Alc 87,980 70,000
Current Liabilities & Prov. Add : Over-depreciation __ 300| 70,300
Creditors (15,000 + 16,000) 31000 | Furniture (5,000 + 3,000) - 8,000
Bills Payable 10000 | Investnienis Mil
Minority Interest 35,720 | Current Assefs, loans and
Praposed div. (minority only) 2,400 Advances
Stock-in-trade
(34,000 + 18,200) 52,200
Debtors (38,000 + 26,000) 64,000
Bank (33,000 + 10,800) 43,800
422,100 4.22.100
Working Notes :
(1) Proportion of holding in Y Ltd.:
X Ltd. = (3,000)/(5,000) = 3/5ths = 60%
Minority = (2,000)/(5,000) = 2/5ths = 40%
(2) Profit and Loss Account (Y Ltd.)
' Amount’ Amount
Rs. Rs.,
To Interim dividend (10% By Balance b/d (1.4.2004) 17,000
on Share capital of By Profit carned
Rs. 50,000) 5,000 (Balancing fligure) 28,000
To Loss of stock destroyed
by fire (8,000 — 5,000) 3,000
To Balance ¢/d (31.3.2005) 37,000
45,000 | 45,000
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(3) Loss on Revaluation of Machinery

Rs.
T’I.-"rittun down value on 1.7.2004
Balance on 1.4.2004 30,000
Less : Depreciation for first 3 months (30,000 » 10% 3H12) 750
29250 |
Less @ Revalued [igure 25,250
4,000

Note : Rate of depreciation = [(30,000—27,000) x 100]/30,000 = 10% p.a,

(4) Analysis of Profits of Y Lid.

Capital Revenue
Profit P &L
Rs. Rs.
Reserve on 1,4.2004 (As there on change
. during the year) 12,000
Prolit & Loss Afc on 1.7.2004 :
Balance on 1.4.2004 17,000
Add : Profit for first 3 months
(28,000 x 3/12) 7,000
Less ¢ Interim dividend for first 3 months 2,500 4,500 21,500
' 33,500
Less : Revaluation loss of Machinery 4,000
29,500
Profit for last 9 months (28,000 = 9/ 12} 21,000
Add : Over depreciation on Machinery for
last 9 months (4,000 = 10% = 9/12) 300
21,300
Less : Loss of stock during last 9 months 3,000
Interim dividend for next 3 months 2,500 5,500 15,800
29,500 15,200
Less : Share of minority (40%) 11,800 6.320)
Share of X Lid. 17,700 9,480
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(5) Cost ol Control

Amount Amounl
Rs. Rs,
Cost nf‘ invesiment 00,000
Less : Sharc of pre-acquisition interim dividend wrongly
credited to the Profit & Loss Ale (2,500 = 60%) 1,500
True cost of investment BR.500
Less : Paid up value of 3,000 shares of Rs.10 each 30,000
Share of capital profit 17,700 47.700
Goodwill a4 40,800
(6) Minority Interest
Amount Amount
Rs. Rs.
Paid up value of 2,000 shares of Rs.10 each 20,000
Add ;  Share of capital profit . 11,800
Share of revenue P & L including final
propused dividend 6,320 18,120
Less : Share of final proposed dividend for minority only
(50,000 = 12% * 40%) . 2.400
35,720
(7) Consolidated Profit & Loss A/c (X Ltd.)
: Amount
Rs.
Balance on 31.3.2005 20,000
Less @ Share of pre-acquisition interim dividend wrongly credited to
the Profit & Loss Ale (2,500 x 60%) 1,500
78,500
Add : Share of revenue Profit & Loss Alc 9,480
87,980
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Iusiration 7 :

On April 1, 2002 A Ltd. acquired shares and debentures in B Ltd. The Balance
Shecets of both the companies as at March 31, 2005 are given below

Liabilitics A Ltd | B Ltd. Assets ALl | B Ltd.
Rs, Rs. Rs. Rs,
Share Capital Fixed Assets
Eq. Shares (Rs. 100) | 1,00,000 50,000 | Sundry Fixed Assets 62,400 80,000
8% Pref. Shares Investments
(Rs. 100) 50,000 1 30,000 400 Eq.Sh. in B Lid.| 66,000
Reserves & Swrplus 180FPref ™ 7 1 B 18,000
Reserve 20,000 20,000 40 Deb. » ™ 3.600
Profit & Loss Afc 25,000 22,000)| 200 Eg. ” ™ X Ltd.| 19,000
Secured Loans (minority holding)
9% Debenlures Currernt Asseis
(Rs. 100) 20,000 | Loan to B Lid. 6,000
Current Liabilities Stock 15,000 23,000
Creditors 5,000 4,000 | Debtors 8,000 31,000
Loan from A Lid. 6,000 | Bank 2,0000 18,000
2,00,000 | 1,532,000 200,000 | 1,52,000
Additional information :

(1) At the time of acquiring shares and debentures, B Ltd. had Rs.16,000 in Reserve
and Rs. 14,000 in Profit & Loss A/c (Credit balance),

(2) In addition to preference dividend, B Ltd. paid equity dividend 10% in 2002-03,
12% in 2003-04 and 15% in 2004-05 for 2001-02, 2002-03 and 2003-04 respectively,
All dividends received have been credited to the Profit & Loss Afc of A Ltd.

(3) Proposed equity dividend of both the companies for 2004-05 is 10%.

(4) During 2002-03, a bonus dividend of one fully paid equity share for every 5
shares held has been declared by B Ltd. out of pre-acquisition reserve. No effect has been
given to that in the accounts.

(5) On April 1, 2002 Machinery of B 1.td. which stood in the books at Rs.50,000
was revalued at Rs.60,000, but no adjustment has been made in the books. Depreciation
has been charged @ 10% p.a. on reducing balance method.

Prepare Consolidated Balance Sheet as on March 31, 2005.
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Solution

Consolidated Balance Sheet
2005.

of A Ltd.

and its subsidiary, B Ltd. as on March 31,

=

Liabilities

Amount

Assets :}_{E:unt
ks, Rs.
Share Capital : Fixed Assets
Authorised 7 Sundry Fizcd Assets
Issued and Subscribed. (62,400 + 50,000) 142,400
Equity Shares (Rs. 100) 100,000 | Add : Rev. profil 10,000
§% Pref. Shares (Rs. 100) 30,000 1,52,400
Reserves & Surplus Less : Under-dep. 2,710 | 1,49.690
Capital Reserve 6,720 | Investments
Reserve 32,200:) (200 Equity Shares in X Lid.
Profit & Loss Alc 9,912 | (minority holding)] 19,000
Secured Loans Currvent Assets, Loans and
0% Debentures 20,000 advances
Less : Held by A Lid. 4,000 16,000 | Loan to B Ltd. 6,000
Current Liabilities & Less : Inter-co. debt 0,000 il
Provisions Stock (15,000 + 23,0007 38,000
Creditors (5,000 + 4,000) 9000 | Debtors (3,000 + 31,0007 39,000
Loan from A Litd. 6,000 Bank (2,000 + 18.000) 20,000
Less ; Inter-co. debt 6,000 il
Minority Interest 30,658
Proposed dividend :
A Litd. 10,000
B Ltd. (Eq.-minority) 1,200 11,200
' 2,065,690 2,65,690

Working Notes ;

(1) Proportion of holding (investment in equity sharss is the deciding factor) in B Lid.:
A Ltd. = 400/500 = 4/5ths = 80%

Minority = 100/500 = 1/5" = 20%
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(2) Pre-acquisition dividend (dividend paid in 2002-03 for 2001-02) ;

Preference Equit}r—
Rs. Ra. |
Dividend paid on pref. share capital (30,000 = 8% and
10% on equity share capital (50,000 = 10%) 2,400 5,000
Less : Share of minority ;
Preference = Rs. 2,400 = (120/300) 96
Equity = Rs.5,000 = 20% 1,000
Share of A Ltd. 1,440 4,000
(3) Proposed dividend of B Ltd. for 2004-05 :
Preference Equity
Rs. - Rs.
Equity share capital before issue of bonus shares on 1.4.2002 50,000
Add ; Issue of bonus shares (50,000 = 1/5) 10,000
Equity share capital after issue of bonus shares on 1.4.2002 60,000
Proposed dividend on pref. share capital ( 30,000 x 8%)
and on enhanced cquily share capital (60,000 x 10%) 2,400 6,000
Less : Share of minority [(2.400x120/300) and
(6,000 x 20%)] 960 1,200
Share of B Litd. 1,440 4,800
(4) Analysis of Profits of B Ltd.
Capital | Reverue | Revenue
Profit |Gen. Res.| P & L
Rs, Rs. Rs.
Reserve on 1.4.2002 (including issue of bonus
Shares, Rs.10,000) 16,000
Increase in Rescrve after acquisition of shares but
before issue of bonus shares (20,000—16,000) 4,000
Profit & lLoss Alec on 1.4.2002 14,000
Less : Pre-acquisition dividend
(1,440 + 5.000) 6,400 7.600
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Capilal | Revenue | Revenue
Profit |Gen. Res,| P & L

Rs. Es. Rz,
Increase in Profit & Loss Aflc afler acquisition
of shares (22,000—7,600) : 14,400
Profit on revaluation of Machinery
(60,000—50,000) 10,000

33,600 4,000 14,4{"]_&
Less ; Over-depreciation on Machinery

[(10,000—(10,000 x 90% % 90% x 90%)] 2710
' 33,600 | 4,000 | 11,690
Less : Share of minority (20%) 6,720 800 2,338
Share of B Ltd. 26,880 3,200 9,352
(5) Cost of Control :
Amount Amount.
Rs. Rs,
[nvestment in B Ltd, :
400 Equity Sharcs 66,000
180 Preference Shares 18.000
40 Debentures 3600 | 87,600
Tess :  Share of pre-acquisition dividend wrongly credited to
the Profit & Loss Afc (1,440 + 4,000) 5440
True cost of investment ; : 82,160 -
Less : Paid up value of Equity Shares 40,000
Paid up value of Prefercnce Shares 18,000
Paid up value of Dcbentures 4,000
Share of capital profit 26,880 HE_,S'SD.
Capital Reserve ; 6,720
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(6) Minority Interest

Pref, Equity | Total
Rs. Ks. —B:—
Paid up value of shares :
Preference (120 = 100) 12,000 12,000
Equity (100 = 10() 10,000 10,000
Add : Share of capital profit 6,720 6,720
Share of revenue profit :
Reserve 200 800
Profit & Loss (including equity proposed div.) 1378 1,378%
Proposed preference dividend 960 060
(as it is not subject to approval) 12,960 | 18890 | 31,858 |
Less : Share of equily proposed div. for minority 1,200 1,200
(since it is subject to approval) 12,960 17,698 | 30,658

preference dividend for outsiders, i.e., Rs, (2.3 38—960). :

(7) Consolidated Reserves & Surplus

" *Share of revenue profit & loss is arrived al after deducting current year’s proposed

Reserve P& L
Rs. Rs.
Balance in the respective accounts of A Ltd, on 31.3.2005 20,000 25,000
Less :  Share of pre-acquisition dividend wrongly credited '
to the Profit & Loss Afe previously 5,440
| 20,000 | 14,560
Add : Share of revenue profit 3,200 4,352
23200 | 23912
Less : Proposed dividend (preference & equity) of A Lid,
[(50,000 x 8%) + (1,00,000 x 10%)] 14,000
23,200 9912
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6.7 Consolidated Profit and Loss Account

The consolidated profit and loss account of the holding company and its subsidiaries
is prepared to show the comprehensive operating activities of the companies comprising the
group. All revenuc iteins, i.e., purchases, salcs, expenses, incones, etc. arc to be added
on line by line basis, on one hand and all inter-company revenue items should be eliminated,
on the other, Moreover, following adjustments are essential :

(1) The profit of the subsidiary company arising before the date of acquisition (of
equity shares in the subsidiary company) and belonging to the holding company should be
debited to the Consolidated Profit and Toss Account and credited either to Capital
Reserve or Goodwill as the case may be. In case of loss, the journal entry should be
reversed.

(2) Profits of the subsidiary company to the extent of the proportion of the outside
shareholders should be debited to Consolidated Profit and Loss Account and credited to
Minority Interest Account. In case of loss, the journal entry is reverse,

(3) Where the subsidiary company has passed entries for proposed dividend and the
holding company has also taken credit for its share of the dividend, cancellation from both
sides of the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account should be made. This will also affect
items in the Balance Sheet. Where the proposed dividend has not been passed in the
books of holding company, the debit in respect of proposed dividend should be reduced
to the extent of the share of holding company in the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account;
and the corresponding lability in the Balance Sheet be reduced.

(4) Provision for unrealised profit in respect of inter-company transactions, such as
purchase or sale of goods or assets will have lo be made by debit to the Consolidated
Profit and Loss Account and credit to Provision for Stock or Provision for particular Fixed
Asset Account.

(5) Debenturc interest or dividend received by the holding company from the
subsidiary company will have to be eliminated from both sides of the Consolidated Profit
and Loss Account, In case of interest outstanding or accruing, care should be taken to see
that both the holding company and subsidiary companies pass entries.

No adjustment is required in respect of tax on dividend or on interest on debentures
paid by the subsidiary company to the holding company. :

(6) In the case of Cumulative Preference Shares held by outsiders and in the case
where dividend is in arrear, the amount dug by way of dividend should be debited to the
Consolidated Profit and Loss Account and credited to the Minority Interest Account, This
will be shown as a liability in the Consolidated Balance Sheet.
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Hlustration § :

A Ltd. held 1,200 shares of B Ltd. which it acquired on April 1, 2004, Total capital

of B Ltd, comprised 1,500 equity shares of Rs.100 each. The Profit and Loss Accounts
of A Ltd. and B Ltd. for the year ended March 31, 2005 appeared as under :

A Lid. | B Ltd. AL | B Lud
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
To Proposed By Net profit 24,000 18,000
dividend il 15,000 | By Dividend receiv-
To Balance cofd 36,000 3,000 able from B Lid. 12,000 Wil
36,000 18,000 36,000 18,000

Solution

Prepare a Consolidated Profit and Loss Account for the year ended March 31, 2005,

Consolidated Profit and Loss Account for the year ended March 31, 2005

A Lid. B Lid, Total Adjust- Mel
ment Amount
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs, Rs,
Debit items
To Proposed dividend — 15,000 15,000 | (12,000) 3,000
To Minority Interest
(3000 > 20%:) 600 ol
Te Balance cfd 36,000 3.000 39000 | | (600) 38.400
36,000 18,000 54,000 | (12,000 42,000
Credit items
By Net profit 24,000 18,000 42,000 — 42,000
By Dividend receivable
from B Lid. 12,000 — 12,000 | (12,000) =
36,000 18,000 | 54,000 | (12,000) | 42,000

Note : Figures in parentheses indicate minus figure.

Mustration 9 :

X Ltd. holds 1.500 Equity Shares of Rs.100 each in Y Ltd. whose capital consists

of 2,000 Equity Shares of Rs.100 each and 6% 500 Cumulative Preference Shares of
Rs.100 each, Y Ltd. has also issued 7% Debentures to the extent of Rs.100,000 out of
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which X Ltd holds Rs.50,000. The following are the Profit and Loss Accounts of the two
companies for the year ended March 31, 2005 :

[ x| YL | X Ltd. | Y Lid.
" Rs, Rs. Rs. Es.
To Purchases . By Sales 9,50,000 | 7,50,000
(adjusted) 7.50,000 | 3,00,000
To Manufacturing
EXpEnses . — | 200,000
To Gross profit o/d | 2,00,000 | 2,50,000
9,50,000 | 7,50,000 9,50,000 | 7,50,000-
To Sundry expenses 75,000 1,1‘.]!],(!(&‘-[) By Gross profit b/d | 2,00,000 { 2,50,000
| To Deb. interest — 7,000 | By Deb. interest 3,500 .
} To Met profit c/d 1,49,500 | 1,43,000 | By Interim dividend 21,000 e
2,24,500 | 2,50,000 {gross) 2,24,500 | 2,50,000
To Tncome tax 70,000 | 60,000 | By Net profit b/d 1.49.500 | 1.43.000
To Pref. dividend — 3,000
To Interim dividend — | 28,000
To Proposed div. 50,000 | 42,000
To Balance ¢/d 49,500 | 10,000
149,500 | 143,500 1,49,500 | 1,43,000

Additional information is given as below :

(a) The shares were acquired by X Ltd. on July 1, 2004 but the debentures were
acquired on April 1, 2004. Y Ltd. was incorporated on April 3 2004,

(b) The income tax deducted from dividends and interest is (@ 30%,.

(¢) During the year Y Ltd. sold to X Ltd. goods costing Rs.50,000 at the selling price
of Rs.60,000, One-fourth of the goods remained unsold on March 31, 2005, The ggnds:

were valued at cost to the holding company for closing stock purposes.

Prepare a Consolidated Profit and Loss Account for the year ended March 31 ,"Zﬂﬂﬁ-.
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Solution

Consolidated Profit and Loss Account for the yca-r ended March 31, 2005

A Lid. B Lud Total Adjust- Met
ment Amount
Hs. Rs, Rs. Rs. Rs. ¥
Debit items
To Purchases (adjusted) 7,50,0001 3,00,000) 10,50,000f (75,000)| 9,75,000
To Manufacturing expenses — 2000000 200,000 —| 200,000
To Gross profit ¢fd 2000001 2,50,0000 450,000 — |  4,50,000
950,000 7,50,000( 17,00,000 —| 16,25,000
To Sundry expenses T3,000| 100,000 [,75,000 — L.75,000
To Debenture interest — 7,000 7,000 (3,500) 3,500
To Met profit ¢/d 149,500 1430000 292,500 (21,0000 2,71,500
| 224500] 2,50,000] 474,500 (24.500)| 4.50,000
To Income tax 70,000 60,000 1,30.000 —| 30,000
To Preference dividend — 3,000 3.000 — 3.000
To Interim dividend — 28,000 28,0001 (21,000) | 7,000
To FProposed dividend 50,000 42,000 02,0001 (31,500) 60,500
To Cost of control (cap. profit) IE,{IDU 15,000
To Provision for stock 2.500 2500
To Minority interest 2,750 2,750
To Balance carried over to B/S 29,500 10,000 39,500 11,250 50,750
1,49,500| 143,000 2,92,500] (21,000)f 2,71,500
Credit items

By Sales 9,50,000| 7.50,000] 17,00,000] (75,000)| 16,25,000
9,50,000| 7,50,000] 17.00,000{ (75,000)| 16.25,000
By Gross pmﬁ"f b/d 200,000 2,50,000( 4,50,000 —  4,50,000
By Dcbenture interest 3.500 —_ 3.500 (3,500) -
By interim dividend received 21,000 — 21,0000 {21,000) -
2,24.500| 2,50,000| 4,74,500{ (24,500)| 4,50,000
By Net profit b/d 149,500 143,000 2925000 (21,0000 271,500
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Notes : (1) Figures in the brackets indicate minus ligure.
(2) Dividend received by X Lid. has been eliminated against interim dividend
paid by Y Ltd.

(3) Proposed dividend includes Rs. 31,500 (i.e., Rs. 42,000 x %] payable to X
Ltd. by Y Lid. This is also eliminated. The corresponding climination on the
other side will be from the liability for Proposed Dividend in the Balance
Sheet, since X Ltd. has not yet taken credit for the proposed dividend.

(4) Share of capital profit : [Rs. (1,43,000 — 60,000 — 3,000) = % = %] = Rs.
15,000

(5) Provision for stock: (Rs.10,000 = % ) = Rs. 2,500

(6) Assumed that the dividends have been paid or proposed from revenue profits.

6.8 Group Consisting of more than one Subsidiary—Chain-
holding

A holding company may have a number of subsidiaries. For example, X Ltd. directly
acquires controlling interest in A Ltd. and B Ltd. Thus, A Ltd. and B Ltd. are the
subsidiaries of X Ltd. Other examples of chain-holding are :

(a) X Ltd. acquires controlling interest in A T.td., and A Ltd, acquires controlling
interest in B Lid.;

(b) X Ltd. acquircs controlling interest in A Lid. while X Ltd. and A Ltd. jointly
acquire controlling interest in B Litd.;

(¢) X Ltd. acquires majority shares of A Ltd. and minority sharcs of B Ltd., wh:lc A
Ltd. individually acquires majority shares of B Ltd.; and

{d) X Ltd. acquires majority shares of A Ltd., and A Ltd. acquires mu_}ur:ty shares
of B Ltd. but B Ltd. acquires minority sharca of A Ltd.

In the case of chain-holding, a holding company is not only entitled to the profits of
its own subsidiary but is also entitled to the profits of sub-subsidiary which it may confrol
‘through its own subsidiary. The principles for consolidation will be the same as explained
in the preceding pages.

Mustration 10 :

You are asked to prepare from the following data the Consolidated Balance Sheet of
_a group of companies :
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Balance Shects as at March 31, 2005

(Rs. in lakh)

Liabilities AX | Bx | ex Assets AX | BX | ex |
Ltd. | Ltd. | Ltd. Lid. | Ltd. | Ltd.
Share Capital 250 | 200 100 | Sundry Fixed Assets 50 20 55
Reserve 36 20 14 | Investments at cost :
Profit & Loss Alc 32 4 10| Shares in BX Ltd. 170 —
Creditors 14 10 8| Shares in CX Ltd. 36| Cloeh —
CX Lid. balance 6 — — | Stock 24 20 28
AX Ltd. balance - 14 — | Debtors 36 32 45
" |Bank overdraft — —_ 2| BX Lid, balance 16 —_— =
AX Ltd. balance A
Bank balance 6 L e—
338 | 248 134 338 248| 134

Information regarding AX Lid. and its subsidiaries, BX Ltd. and CX Ltd. are as

follows :

(1) The share capital of all companies is divided into shares of Rs.100 cach,
(2) AX Ltd. held 1,50,000 shares of BX Ltd, and 15,000 shares of CX Ltd.
(3) BX Ltd. held 60,000 shares of CX Ltd.

(4) All investments were made on September 30, 2004,

(5) On April 1, 2004, the position of reserves and surplus was as follows:

Reserve

Profit & Loss Account

BX Ltd. CX Ltd.
Rs.16,00,000 Rs.12,00,000
2,00,000 80,000

(6) Dividends have not been declared by any company during the year cnded

March 31, 2005.

(7) BX Ltd. sold goods for Rs.8,80,000 to AX Ltd. at a profit of 10%
on cost and remained unsold on March 31, 2005.

(8) Cash-in-transit from BX Ltd. to AX Ltd. was Rs.2,00,000 as on the close of
business on March 31, 2005. :
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Solution

Consolidated Balance Sheet of AX Ltd. and its subsidiarics, BX Ltd. and CX Ltd.
As at March 31, 2005

(Rs. in lakh)
Liabilities A L. | B Ltd Assets A Ltd. | B Ltd.
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Share Capital Fived dssets
Authorised 7 Goodwill 6021
Isswed & Subscribed Sundry Fixed Assets
Sh. of Rs.1000 each 250.00{ (50 + 80 + 55) 185.00
Reserves & Surplus Tnvestments S
Reserve 38.10| Current Assets,
Profit & Loss Alc 34.91| Loans and Advances :
Current Liabilities Stock (24 + 20 + 28) 72.00
and Provisions Less : Prov, for stock 0:80 71.20
Minority Interest 90.40| Debtors (36+32+45) 113.00]
Creditors (14+10+8) 32.00| BX Ltd. balance 16.00 :
Bank Overdraft 2.00| Less : Inter-co. debt 14,00
CX Ltd. balance 6.00 2.00
Less : Inter-co. debt 600 —| Less : Cash-in-transit 2.00 it
AX Ltd. balance 14.00 AX Ltd. balance 6.00
Less ! Inter-co. debt 14.00 —| Less : Inter-co. debt 6.00 .
Cash-in-transit « 2.00
Bank balance (6 + 10) 16.00
44741 447.41

Working Notes :

(1) Break up of Control :

In CX Ltd—

AX Ltd. = (15,000)/(1,00,000)=15%
BX Ltd. = (60,000)/(1,00,000)=60%
Minority = (25,000)/(1,00,000)=25%

In BX Ltd—

AX Ltd. = (1,50,000)/(2,00,000) = 75%
Minority = (50,000)/(2,00,000) = 25%
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(2) Analysis of Prolits

(Rs. in lakh)
Capital | Revenue | Revenue
Profit |Gen. Res.| P & L
CX Ltd
Reserve on 30.9.2004 :
Balance on 1.4.2004 12.00
Add : Increase during first 6 months __L.oo| 13.00
[14—12) = '%]]
Incicase in Reserve during last & months L.o0
Profit & Loss Afe on 30.9.2004 :
Balance on 1.4.2004 0.80
Add ;:  Increase during first 6 months
[(10—0.80) = 4] _4.60] 540
Increase in P & L. Alc during last 6 months 4.60
18.40 .00 4.60
Less : Share of AZ Lid. (15%) 2,76 0.15 0.69
Share of minority (25%) 4.60 025 1.15
Share of BX Ltd. (60%) 11.04 0.60 2,?6*
BX Lid.
Reserve on 30.9.2004 [16+20—16) x 4] 18.00
Increase in Res. during first 6 months
[(20—16) % 4] 2.00
Profit & Loss A/c on 30.9.2004 [2+(4—2) = 4] 3.00
Increase in Profit & Loss A/c during last 6 months
[(4—2) = 4] ) 1.00
32.04 2.60 376
Less : Inter-co, unrealised stock profit
[8.80 % (10)/(110)] 0.80
32.04 2.60 296
Less : Share of minority (25%) 8.01 (.65 074
Share of AX Ltd. (75%) 24.03 1.95 2722
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(3) Costof Control

(Rs. in lakh)

Amount | Amount | Amount
Cost ol Shares (170 + 36 + 106} 31200
Less : Paid up value of 2,25,000 shares of
Rs.100 each 225.00
Share of Capital Profit :
AX Ltd. from BX Lid. 24,03
AX Ltd. [rom CX Litd. 2,76 26.79 25179
Goodwill 60.21
(4) Minority Interest
i (Rs, in lakh)
BX Ltd. | CX Ltd. Total
Paid up value of shares 50.00 25.00 75.00
Add : Share of Capital Profil 8.01 4.60 12.61
Share of Revenue Profit :
Rescrve 0.65 (.25 0.90
Profit & Loss Afc 0,74 L.15 1.89
59.40 31.00 00.40
(5) Group Reserves & Surplus
(Rs. in lakh)
Reserve P& L
Balance of AX Ltd. on 31.3.2005 36.00 32.00
Add : Share of Revenue Profit:
AX 1td, from BX Ltd, 1.95 222
AX Ltd from CX Ltd. .15 0.69
38.10 34.91

Ilustration 11 @

From the following Balance Sheets and other information prepare Consolidated

Balance Sheet of the group of companies :



Balance Sheets as at March 31, 2005

(Rs. in thousand)

Assets

Liahilities A B C A B C

Ltd. | Lid, | Ltd. Lid. | Ltd. | Ltd.

Equity Share Capital | 600 | 400 200 | Goodwill at cost 40 —] =

(Rs. 100 each) Sundry Fixed Asscts 0] 200] 240
Profit & Loss Alec 160 100 62 | Investments ;

Creditors 20 24 10 3,000 shares in B Ltd. | 320 —— —

1,600 shares in C Lid. —| 200 —

Stock-in-trade 60 20 0]

Debtors 46 57 20

Cash at Bank 14 27 2

7RO | 524 272 JRO| 524| 272

Other Information . o Bl CLid

(1) Profit & Loss Afe (Credit balance) on
1.4.2004 before taking proposed dividend Rs.80,000 Rs.48.000 Rs.4.000
(2) On 1.7.2004 dividend paid for the year
ended 31.3.2004
(3) Dividends proposed for the year ended

31.3.2005 out of current year's profit

12%

12%

(4) All shares were acquired on 1.4.2004.
(5) A Ltd. and B Ltd. credited dividend received to their Profit & Loss Accounts.

Solution

10%

10%

10%

8%

Consolidated Balance Sheet of A Lid. and its subsidiaries, B Ltd. and C Ltd.
As at March 31, 2005

(Rs. in thousand)

Amount [ Amount

Amount

Invesinents

Liabilitics Assets Amount
Share Capilal Fived Assefs
Authorised 7 Goodwill
Issued & Subscribed (40.00 + 5.60) 45,60
Equity Shares of Sundry Fixed Assels
Rs. 100 cach 600.00| (300 + 220 + 240) 760.00

Reserves & Surplus
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B Lid. = (1,600)/(2,000) = 80% A Ltd, = (3,000)/(4,000) = 75%

Liabilities Amount | Amount Assets Amount Au_munt*
Profit & Loss Aflc 145.80) Current Assefs, _I
Currvent Liabilities Loans and Advances

and  Provisions Stock-in-trade
Creditors (60 + 20 + [0} 90,00
(20 + 24 + 10) 54.00| Debtors
Minority Interest 176.60| (46 + 57 + 20) 123.00
Proposed Dividend : Cash at Bank
A Ltd, T2.00 (14 + 27+ 2) 43.00
B Ltd, 10.00
| € Ltd. {(minority only) 3.20 85.20
1061.60 1061.60
Working Notes :
(1) Break-up of Control :
In C Ltd— In B Ltd—

Minority = (400)/(2,000) = 20%  Minority = (1,000)/(4,000) = 25%

(2) Analysis ol Profits

Details Capital | Revenue
Profit P & L
Rs. Rs, Rs.
C Lid
Profit & Loss Adc on 1.4.2004 24.000
Less : Dividend paid for 2003-04 @ 10% 20,000
Increase in Profit & Loss Ale during 2003-04 4,000
(62,000 — 4,000) 58,000
4,000 58,000
Less @ Share of minority (20%9%) ROD 11,600
Share of B Ltd. (80%) 3,200 46,400
B Ltd
Profit & Loss Afc on 1.4.2004 48,000
Less : Dividend paid for 2003-04 @ 10% 40,000 8,000
Increase in Profit & Loss Ade during 2004-05
 (1,00,000 — 8,000) 92.000
11,200| 1,38,400
Less : Share of minority (25%) 2.800 3.4,61‘.]0
Share of A Lid. (75%) #400( 1,03,800
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(3) Cost of Control

= Amount !'Lm_;um
Rs. Hs,
Cost of lnvestments (3,20,000 + 2,00,000) 5.20.000
Less :  Dividend for 2002-03 received and wrongly
credited to the Profit and Loss Afc in 2004-05 :
A Ltd. from B Ltd. (40,000 = 75%) 30,000
B Lid. from C Ltd. (20,000 = 80%) 16,000 46,000
| True cost of investments 4.74,000
Less ¢ Paid-up value of 4,600 shares of Rs. 100 each 4,60,000
Share ol capital profil #.400 4,658,400
Goodwill 5,600
(4) Minority Interest
B Ltd. C Ltd, Total
Paid-up value of shares of Rs. 100 cach 1,00,000 40,000 [,40,000
Add : Share of capital profit 2,800 800 3,600
Share of revenue profit 34,600 11,600 46,200
Less : Share of prﬂposcﬂ dividend ; 1,37.400 52,400 |,89,800
B Ltd. (4,00,000 > 10% = 25%) 10,000 - 10,000
C Ltd. (2,00,000 = 8% = 20%) 1,27.400 49,200 1,76,600
(5) Group Profit and Loss Account
~ Amount Amount
Es. Rs.
Profit & Loss Afe of A Ltd. on 31.3.2005 1,60,000
Add : Share of revenue Profit & Loss Ale 1,03.800
2,63,800
Less ©  Dividend for 2003-04 received and wrongly credited
o the Profit & Loss Afc 46,000
Proposed dividend of A Ltd. {ﬁ,ﬂﬂ,ﬂﬂﬂ % 12%) 72,000 1,18,000
1,45,800
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6.9 Summary

Preparation of consolidated balance sheet and consolidated profit and loss account by
the holding company is not mandatory in India under the Companies Act, 1956. However,
the Act stipulates the presentation of accounts of subsidiary companies by the holding
company. But AS-2lrequires compulsory preparation of consolidated financial statement
by the holding company for a group of companics under its control in addition to its
separate financial statement. Moreover, the Standard provides the procedure of consolidation.
The Standard also prescribes the disclosure requirements of the consolidated financial
statement Thus, preparation of consolidated financial statement by the holding company
along with its own linancial stalement is essential to the users of financial information of
holding company for taking useful economic decisions. In the light of preparation and
presentation of financial statement by the holding company, the Standard is superior to the
Act—the latter deals not only with the preparation and presentation but also deals with
the disclosure requirements while the former deals with the legal aspects of its preparation
and presentation. ;

6.10 Exercises

Problem 1 : :

X Ltd. purchased 600 out of 1,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 100 cach of ¥ Lid. at a cost
of Rs.96,000 on July 1, 2004. The Profit and Loss Account of Y Ltd. on April 1, 2004 was
Rs5.40,000 and made a profit of Rs.24,000 during the year ended March 31, 2005,

Determine (i) Cost of Control and (ii) Minority Interest.

Answer : (i) Goodwill Rs.8,400 and (ii) Rs.65,600,

Problem 2

HB Lid. acquired 2,000 shares in 5B Ltd. on October 1, 2004, The Balance Shects as

at March 31, 2005 were as under : '

Liabilities HE Lid.| 8B Lid. Aszsets HBE Lid. | SB Ltd.

Rs, Rs. Rs. Rs,
Equity Share Capital ) Buildings 1L15,000( 1,50,000
(Rs. 100 each) 5,00,0000 2,50,000| Machinery 190,000 135,000

Reserve (1.4.2004) 1,55,000 10,000| Investments in 2,000
Profit & Loss Alc 2,00,0001 1,80,000 shares SB Litd. 3.60,000

Creditors 75,0000  70,000| Stock-in-trade 1,24,000| 1,01,000
Current Aceount Debtors 116,000 20,000
with 8B Lid. 14,000 —| Bills Receivahle "20,000| 20,000
Bills Payable 6,000 10,000| Current Account N
with HB Lid. — 16,000

Cash at Bank 25,000 18,000

9.50,000]  5,20,000 9.50,0001 5.20,000
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Other information :

(1) The balance in Profit & Loss Account of SB Ltd. on April 1, 2004 was Rs, 1,40,000.
(2) An interim dividend (@ 10% was paid during the year ended March 31, 2005,
{3) Stock-in-trade of HB Ltd. includes Rs.15,000 for goods supplied by SB Ltd. at a

profit of 25% on cost,

(4) The Profit & Loss Account of HB Ltd, includes interim dividend from SB Ltd.

(5) The difference in Current Account arises on account of cheque sent by HB Lid.

but not reached SB Litd.

(6) Blis Pa}rablé of 5B Ltd. are all issued in favour of HB Ltd., out of which HB Lid.
discounted bills for Rs. 6,000,

Answers : Goodwill Rs, 14,000; Minority inferest Rs. 88,000; Consolidated Profit &
Loss Af/c Rs. 2,03,600 and total of Balance Sheet Rs, 11,03,000,

Problem 3 :

X Ltd. purchased control of Y Ltd, on July 1, 2004, Following are Balance Sheets of
two companics as at March 31, 3005 :

Liabilities X Ltd. | ¥ Ltd. Assets X Ltd. | ¥ Ltd.
Rs. Es. Rs. Es.

Equity Share Capital Land & Buildings 66,000 84,000
(Rs.100 each) 3.60,000] 1,80,000| Plant & Machinery L120,000( 108000

Capital Reserve —_ 10,000] Investments in 1,350 i
General Reserve 36,000 40,000F shares of Y Lid. 2.00,000 s
Profit & Loss Alc 60,000 50,0001 Stock 73,000 60,000
Creditors 60,0001  32.000] Debtors 40,000 54,000
Bills Payable to X Ltd. — 6.000| Cash at Bank 17,000 12,000
5,16,000( 3,18,000 5,016,000 3,18,000

The following further information is furnished ;

(1) ¥ Ltd. had on April 1, 2004 Rs.30,000 in General Reserve and Rs.36,000 (Crcdit.
balance) in Profit & Loss Account,

(2) Y Ltd. paid 12% dividend out of pre-acquisition Profit & Loss Account. The share
of dividend received by X Ltd. credited to its Profit & Loss Account.

(3) In July, 2004 Y Ltd. issued bonus shares at par in the ratio of one share for every
six shares held out of pre-acquisition General Reserve. No effect has been given to that in

the above accounts.
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(4) Plant & Machinery standing in the books of Y Ltd. at Rs.1,20,000 on the date of
purchase were revalued at Rs. 1,37,000.

(5) Proposed dividend of bath the companies for the year ended March 31, 2005 is 10%,

(6) Creditors of Y Ltd. include Rs, 14,000 due to X Ltd. while Debtors of X Ltd, include
Rs.18,000 due from Y Ltd.

(7) Stock of ¥ Lid includes Rs.12,000 for goods purchased from X Ltd. which
company made a profit of 20% on cost price.

(8) Contingent liability of X Lid.Rs.8,000 for bills discounted.

Prepare a Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2005,

Answers : Capital Reserve Rs.15,550; Minority Interest Rs.68.875 (excluding share of
proposed dividend); Consolidated General Reserve Rs41,625; Consolidated Profit & Loss
Afc Rs.25,200; Proposed dividend for minority Rs.5.250; Remittance in transit Rs.4,000;

Contingent liability for bills discounted (exlemal} Rs.2,000 and total of Balance Sheet
Rs.6,36,500. i

Problem 4 :

The Summariscﬂ Balance Sheets of AL Lid., BL Lid. and CL Lid. were as follows :
Balance Sheets as at March 31, 2005

(Bs. in lakh) .

Liabilitics AL | BL | CL Assets AL | BL. | CL

| Ltd. | Lid. | Lid. Ltd, | Lid. | Ltd.

Equity Share Capital | _ Fixed Assets 173| 82| 55

{Rs.100 each) 250 | 100 80 | Investments : I

Profit & Loss Alc 30 20 2| 80,000 shares in

Loan from CL Ltd. | — | 25 —| BL Ltd. 96 — -
Other Liabilities T 55 18 | 60,000 shares in

CL Ltd. — 55| —

Advances to BL Lid. — — 35

Clurrent Asscts 51 63 10

350 | 200 100 350| 200 100

On April 1, 2004, when the above shares were acquired, BL Ltd. had a surplus of Rs.10
lakh and CL Ltd. had a deficit of Rs.6 lakh. On September 30, 2004, BL Ltd, sold an item
of fixed assets, which had cost Rs.20 lakh, to AL Ltd. for RS,ZS lalch. Deprecmtmn was
charged at 10% p.a. on the book value of the asset.
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Prepare a Consolidated Balance Sheet of the group as at March 31, 2005,

Answers (Rs. in lakh) : Goodwill Rs.6.60; Minority Interest Rs.43.85; Consolidated

Profit & Loss Alc Rs.39.00 and total of Balance Sheet Rs475.85.

Problem 5 :

The Profit and Loss Account of AX td. and its subsidiary, BY Lid. for the year ended

March 31, 2005 are as follows :

Profit & Loss Accounts for the vear ended March 31, 2005

AX Ltd| BY Lud. AX Lid. [BY rid. |
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs, |
To Depreciation 15,000 4,500 By Balance b/d 47,250 18,000
To Debenture : By Trading Profit 93,0001 57,000
Interest 12,000 —| By Dividend from
To Directors By Ltd. :
Emoluments 7,500 6,000 Preference 8,100 R
To Prov. for Tax 31,500 21,500 Equity 5,625 e
To Dividend Paid :
Pref.  Sept 30 — 4,500
Mar 31 — 4,500
Equity : Sept 30 18,000 7,500
Mar 31 18,000 7,500
To Balance cfd 51,975 19,000
1,53,975] 75,000 153,975 75000
The following information relates o share capital :
AX Lid. | BY Lid.
Rs. Rs,
Equity shares of Rs.100 cach fully paid 6,00,000 3,00,000
6% Preference shares of Rs.100 cach [ully paid 1,560,000
Shares in BY Ltd. held by AX Ltd.
Equity shares acquired on Oclober 1, 2004 2,25.000
Preference shares acquired on April 1, 2004 1,35,000

are payable out of the current year's profit.

193

Income and expenditure are deemed to acerue evenly throughout the year. All dividends



Prepare Consolidated Profit and Loss Account for the year ended March 31, 2005,

Answers @ Profit after taxation: AX Ltd. Rs.27,000 and BY Ltd. Rs. 25,000,
Consolidated Profit & Loss : AX Lud. Rs, 51,975, BY Lid. Rs. 19,000 and the group Rs.
52,350, i.e., Rs. [51,975 + (25,000 — 24,000) = 6/12 = 75%]; Minority Interest Rs. 4,750 and
Pre-acquisition Profit Rs. 13,875,

6.11 Ouestions

Q.1

Q3

Q.4

Q.5

What do you mean by a holding company? How does a company become holding
company? Are the preparation of consolidated financial statements compulsory in
India?

Discuss the principles of consolidation. Explain separately the accounting (reatment
for the purpose of consolidation on (i) Debentures and Preference Shares held by
the holding company, (ii) Pre-acquisition dividend paid by the subsidiary company,
(iii} Interim dividend paid by the subsidiary company partly out of capital profit and
partly out of revenue profit, (iv) Issue of bonus shares by the subsidiary company
out of post-acquisition profit, and (v) Unrealised profit on fixed asset purchased by
subsidiary company from its parent company.

What are the legal requirements for the presentation of information by the holding
company in respect of its subsidiary or subsidiaries?

Mention the requirements relating to the consolidation of financial statements as per
the AS-21, Do you think that AS-21 is superior to the Companies Act, 1956 in the
matter of preparation and presentation of consolidated financial statements?
Make a comparative analysis between the Companies Act, 1956 and AS-21 in the
matter of preparation and presentation of consolidated financial statements.

6.12

Suggested Readings

L R e

L B |

Schedule V1 of the Companies Act, 1956.
The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India: dccounting Standards 21.
Chakraborty, H:  Advanced Accountancy, Oxford University Press.

Shukla, M.C: Grewal, T. S. & Gupta, S. C: Advanced Accounts, S. Chand & Co,
(Pvt.) Lid.

Gupta, R. L. & Radhaswamy, M: ddvanced Accounts, Sultan Chand & Sons.

Maheshwarl, 8. N: ddvanced Accountancy, Volume 11, Vikas Publishing House
Pyt Litd. g
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Unit 7 [] Schemes for Mergers and Amalgamations

and Internal Reconstructions

Structure
7.0  Objective
7.1  Introduction
7.2 Meaning of Amalgamation and Merger
7.3 Accounting for Amalgamation
7.4  Types of Amalgamation
74.1 Amalgamation in the nature of merger
7.4.2 Amalgamation in the nature of purchase
7.5 Methods of Accounting
7.5.1 Pooling of Accounting
752 Purchase Method
7.6 Schemes for Mergers and Amalgamations
7.7 Outlines for Amalgamation Scheme
7.8 Scheme of Internal Reconstruction
7.8.1 Circumstances of Internal Reconstruetion
7.8.2 Steps for Internal Reconstruction
1.9  Summary

7.10 Exercises
7.11 Questions
7.12 Suggested Readings

7.0 Objective

By the time you have gone through this unit you would be able to :

% know the meaning of merger and amalgamation. and internal reconstruction;
% understand the types of scheme, its legal aspeets and formalities;

% have guidclines for the preparation of different schemes; and

% get in touch with the dratled schemes,
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7.1 Introduction

Accountants have to dralt different types of schemes. While drafting any scheme in
accounting, specialised knowledge, mastery and skill over the subject are required. But the
attitide of accountants must differ on the nature of scheme to be drafted because of the
differences of intention of different interested proups in the company or companics sccking
amalgamation or internal reconstruction. Thus, the principles of drafling a scheme of
amalgamation surcly differ from the principles of drafling a scheme of internal reconstruction.
In the ease of a scheme of amalgamation, the objective will be Lo protect the interests of
the sharcholders of the amalgamating companies. But in the case of a scheme of internal
reconstruction, the ubjcctive will be to reorpanise the company keeping equity control over
the aflairs of the company.

In India, during the last decade, a spate of corporate mergers and amalgamations has
taken place. With the corporate mergers and amalgamations, Indian corporate scenario is
also changing. Keeping this in view, ICAT has issued in October, 1994, AS-14 on
‘Accounting for Amalgamations’ and made it mandatory (or all companies in respect of
accounting period commencing on ot after 1.4.1995.

7.2 Meaning of Amalgamation and Merger

Traditionally, merger of two or more existing companics under the umbrella of a newly
formed company, which takes over the assels and liabilities of existing companies, is called
arnalpamation. In amalgamation, business of existing companics is liquidated and the
sharcholders of the liquidated companies become the shareholders of the newly formed
company. But modern concept of amalgamation i« a broader one. In this concept, the tenm
amalgamation is used when two or more existing companies are involved or when one 18
merged with another or taken over by another. In practice, amalgamation is a blending of |
at least two existing undertakings into a single undertaking in which {he sharcholders of each
blending undertaking becomes the shareholders of the blended undertaking.

Merger is another form of amalgamation where the business of at least two combining
companies are liquidated and assels and liabilities of the combining companics are
transferred to a newly formed company. As a result, the sharehalders of the combining
companies become the sharcholders of combined company.

The objectives of amalgamation or merger arc to avoid competition, to derive the
benefit of large-scale production, lo ensure [inancial efficacy and to effect manageﬁal
efficiency.
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7.3 Accounting for Amalgamation

AS-14 mainly deals with the following :

()

(b)

(©

Accounting for merger where there is a genuine pooling not merely of the assets
and liabilities of the amalpamating companics but also of the shareholders” interests
and of the businesses of these companies;

Accounting for acquisition or purchase where one company is acquiring another
company and as a consequence the sharcholders of the company which is
acquired normally do not continue to have a proportionate share in the equity of
the combined company or the business of the company which is acquired is not
intended to be continued; and

Disclosures in connection with (a) and (b).

The Standard defines the following terms :

(@)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e

Amalgamation means an amalpamation pursuant to the provisions of the Companies
Act, 1956 or any other statute, which may be applicable to companies,

Transferor Company means the company, which is amalgamated into another
COmpany.

Transferee Company means the company into which a transferor company is
amalgarnated.

Reserve means the portion of earnings, receipts or other surplus ol an enterprise
(whether capital or revenue) appropriated by the management for a general ora
specific purpose other than a provision for depreciation or diminution in the value
of assets or for a known liability.

Consideration for the amalgamation means the aggregate of the shares and other
securities issued and the payment made in the form of cash or other assets by the
transferee company to the shareholders of Transferor Company.

One has to remember that only payment to shareholders shall be taken into
purchase consideration; but payment to debenture-holders and liquidation expenses
of the vendor company paid by purchasing company shall not be included n the
purchase consideration.

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged befween a
knowledgeable, willing buyer and a knowledgeable, willing seller in an arm’s length
transaction.
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7.4 Types of Amalgamation

The Standard recognises following two types of amalgamation :

7.4.1 Amalgamation in the nature of merger

*Amalgamation in the nature of merger' is an amalgamation, which satisfies all the
Jfollowing conditions :

(a) All the assets and liabilities of the transferor company become, afler amalgamation,
the assets and liabilitics of the transferee company.

(b) Shareholders of not less than 90% of the face value of the equity shares of the
transferor company (other than equity shares already held therein, immediately before
the amalgamation, by the transferee company or its subsidiaries or their nominees)
become equity shareholders of the iransferee company by virtue of the amalgamation.

(c) The transferee company discharges the consideration for the amalgamation
receivable, by those equity sharcholders of the trans(eror company who agree to
become equity sharcholders of the transferee company, wholly by the issue of
equity shares in the transferec company, except that cash may be paid in respect
of any fractional shares.

(d) The business of the transferor company is intended 1.1::- be carried on, after
amalgamation, by the transferee company.

(e) Noadjustmentisintended fo be made to the book values of the assets and liabilities
of the transferor company when they are incorporated in the financial statements of
the transferec company except to ensure uniformity of accounting policies.

7.4.2 Amalgamation in the nature of purchase

‘Amalgamation in the nature of purchase’ 1s an amalgamation which does not
satisfy any one or more of the conditions mentioned in section 7.4.1.

7.5 Methods of Accounting

‘The Standard recognises the following two methods of accounting for amalgamation
7.5.1 Pooling of Interests Method

This method is applicable for amalgamation in the nature of merger of companies
operating in the same line of business activities. Under this method, all assets, liabilities and
reserves of the transferor company are recorded by the transferee company at their existing
carrying amounts with suitable adjustments. In case of conflict in accounting policies of the
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(a)

(b)

()

(d)

two companies, a uniform set of accounting policies is adopted following the amalgamation.
In the Standard, some conditions have been laid down that should be satisfied before a
company is allowed to adopt “pooling of interests method’ for accounting for amalgamation.
- The Standard, liowever, does not allow accounting for goodwill as a result of amalgamation
in the books of the transferec company.

7.5.2 Purchase Method

This method is used in accounting for amalgamation in the nature of purchase. The
object of this method is to account for the amalgamation by applying the same principles
as are used in the usual purchase of assets. The important aspects/points of this method
arc as follows !

"The transferee company accounts for the amalgamation cither by incorporating the
assets and liabilities at their existing carrying amounts or by allocating the
consideration to individual identifiable assets and liabilities of the transteror
company on the basis of their fair values on the date of amalgamation, The
identifiable assets and liabilities may include asscts and liabilities not recorded n
the financial statements of the transferor company.

The reserves of the transferor company, other than statutory reserves, arc not
incorporated in the books of the (ransferee company.

The excess of purchase consideration over the net assels acquired from the
transferor company should be recognised as goodwill and should be debited to
Goodwill Account, The goodwill so arising will be amortised over a period not
exceeding 5 years unless somewhat loner period can be justified.

On the contrary, the excess of net assets acquired over the purchasc consideration
should be considered as capital profit and should be credited to Capital Reserve
Account,

Statutory Reserves, viz., Development Allowance Reserve, Investment Allowance
Reserve, etc. of the transferor company must retain their identity in the financial
staternents of the transferee company in the same form in which they appear in the
{inancial statements of the transferor company through the following journal entry :
Amalgamation Adjustment Account Dr.
To Individual Statutory Reserve Account
The Amalgamation Adjustment Account will be shown in the Balance Sheet of the
transferec company under the head ‘Miscellaneous Expenditure’. When the
identity of the statutory reserve is no longer required to be maintained, the above
mentioned journal entry will be reversed.
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7.6 Schemes for Mergers and Amalgamations

The broad lines in which decisions about the modalities, terms and conditions by which
the business of at least two companies may come under the umbrella of a newly formed
company is known as scheme of amalgamation or merger, In view ol implementing the
scheme of amalgamation or merger, it is mandatory to get the consent of all the interested
parties and also to get the approval of the Court.

7.7 Outlines for Amalgamation Scheme

In order to draft the scheme of amalgamation in the nature of purchase, the
following aspects should be carcfully looked into :

(a) All assets including goodwill and liabilitics of both the transferor company and the
transferee company should be valued for the purpose of valuation of shares.

(b) Instead of taking full value ol goodwill, differential poodwill may be taken in
determining the vale of shares,

() A convenient exchange ratio of shares is (o be ascertained.
(d) Some cash payment may be made in order to avoid fractional value of shares,

(e) Provision for liquidation expenses of the two or more companies to be amalgamated
should be made, Again, provision for formation expenses should be made. In the
casc of insufficiency of cash in the hands of amalgamated company, arrangement
of cash should be made with bank or shares may be sold to the promoters or
people for cash.

() In order to minimise the expenses of liquidation and to avoid the expenses of
formation of a new company, merger of onc company with another is preferable,

(2) Authorised capital may be mainlained at lower level in order to avoid
high registration fees and filing fees on account of issue of shares at a premium.,

Problem 1 :

A Ltd. is a public company having a paid up share capital of Rs. 10 lakh consisting
of 1,00,000 equity shares of Rs, 10 each. Its net-worth as per last Balance Sheet as on
31.3.2005 is Rs. 15 lakh, The fixed assets of this company, the book value of which is
Rs. 5 lakh, have a market value of Rs. 10 lakh. It was declaring dividend @ 10% p.a.
for the last 3 vears.
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B Ltd. is a public company having a paid up share capital of Rs. 1 crore consisting
of 1,00,000 shares of Rs, 100 each. Its net-worth as per last Balance Sheet as on
31.3.2005 is Rs, 5 crore. Fixed assels of this company, the book value of which is Rs.
1.50 crore, have a market value of Rs, 2.50 crore. It was declaring dividend @ 20% p.a.
for the last 3 vears.

The management of both the companies have agreed that A Ltd. should merge with
B Ltd. Drall a scheme of merger (in the nature of purchase) of A Ltd. with B Lid.

Solation

The Board of Directors A & Co,

eeres e Chartered Accountants
Kolkata-700 001 Kolkata-700 073

Date : April 30, 2005
Sub : Sclheme of merger of A Lid. with B L,
Dear Sirs, '
As requested, we have the pleasure in submitting hereunder the scheme ol merger of
A Ltd. with B Ltd. for your consideration :
I Valuation of Shares .

A Lid. B Ltd.
Rs. Rs,
A, Asscls-backing value :
(a) Net-worth :
As per last balance sheet : 150000 | 50000000
Add ¢ Increase in fixed assets 500,000 1,00,00.000
2000000 | 60000000
{b) Number of paid up sharcs 100,000 1,00,000
{c) Value per share [(a)/(h)] Rs. 20 Rs. 600
B. Yield value :
(a) Company rate of dividend 10%; 20%
(b} Market rate of dividend (assumed) 1 0%, 10%
{c) Paid up value per share Bs. 10 Rs. 100
{d} Value per share [{{a)i(b)} = (c)] Rs. 10 Rs. 200
C. Fair value per share ;
[(Assct-backing value) + (Yield value)}/2] Rs. 15 Ra. 400
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II. Exchange Ratio .

Let fair value per sharc of A Lid. is A and that of B Ltd. is B.

Now, exchange ratio is

A:B=15:400 or, A/B = (15//(400) or, 400A = 15B or, B0A =3B

Therefore, B Ltd. will issue 3 shares for every 80 shares in A T.Ad.

Total number of shares to be issued by B Ltd. to A Lid. is [(1,00,000) = 3/(80)] =
3,750

Il Purchase Consideration, Capital Reserve and Revaluation Reserve : .

(a) Purchase consideration al nominal value is Rs.100 = 3,750 = RS.E,TS,{}{]_IIJ

(b) Capital Reserve on merger is as follows :

(i) Net assets acquired from A Ltd. at market value Rs. 20,00,000
(i) Issue of shares al nominal value Rs. 3,75,000
(iii) Capital reserve on liquidation [(i)-(i1)] Rs. 16,25.000
(¢) Revaluation Reserve of B Ltd. is as follows :
(i) Market value of fixed assets Rs. 2,50,00,000
(if) Book value of fixed assets "~ Rs. 1,50,00,000
(i) Revaluation reserve [(i)-(ii)] Rs, 1,00,00,000

V. If owr scheme s accepted, the proposed Balance Sheet of B Ltd. will be :

Before preparation of the proposed Balance Sheet of B Lid. (after merger), it is
required to prepare a summary of Balance Sheets of both the companies as on March 31,
2005 in order to {ind out the missing ligures.

Balance Sheets as on March 31, 2005

(Rs. in lakh)
Liabilitics A Lid | B Lid. Assets A Ltd. | B Lid.

Rs. Hs. Rs, Rs.
Net-worth : Fixed Assets 5.00 150.00
Share Capital 10.000{ 100.00 | Net Currrent Assets 10.00 350.00
General Reserve 5.00f 400.00 | (Balancing figurc)
(Balancing figure)

15.00{ 600,00 1500 | 500.00
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Now, the proposed Balance Sheet of B Litd. is presented as below :
Balance Sheet of B Lid. as on March 31, 2005 (after merger of A Ltd.) -

{Rs.in lakh)
Liabilities Amount Assels Amount
Share Capital
Authorised : Fixed Assets (as per valuation)
coeehares of Rs. 100 each 7 B Lid. 250.00
Issued and Subscribed A Lid, 1000 260.00
1,03,750 Shares of Rs. 100 cach 103.75
Reserves and Surplus New Current Assels
Capilal Reserve 16.25 | B Lid. 350.00
Revaluation Reserve® 100.00 | A Tad. 1000 360,00
CGeneral Reserve 400.00
620.00 620,00

* Revaluation Reserve has been created in accordance with AS-17 : Accounting for

amalgamations.

We shall be glad to furnish you with any further information as you may require.

Thanking you,
Yours faithfully,

(Signature of the partner with seal)

Chartered Accountants
Problem 2 :

X Ltd. and Y Ltd. propose to amalgamate. Their Balance Sheets as on March 31,

2005 were (Rs. in thousand) :

Liabilities XLtd | Y Ltd Asgets X Ltd: | Y Ltd
Equily Share Capital Fixed Assets less dep.| 495.00 150.00
(Rs. 10 each) 600.00 |  200.00 | Investments :

General Reserve 270,00 47.50 | 4% Tax Free Bonds

Profit & Loss Alc 90,00 3450 | (F.V. Ra. 1,20,000) 108.00 -—

Creditors ~157.75 36.75 | Stock-in-trade 240.00 60.75

Debtors 140.25 73.00

Cash at Bank 133.50 | 33.00

1116.75| 318.75 1116.75 | 31875
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: X Lid (Rs) Y Ltd. (Rs)
Net profit afler taxation ;

For the year ended 31.3.2003 1,48,500 40,500
For the year ended 31.3.2004 1,64,250 47,100
For the year cnded 31,3.2005 1,84.500 62,250

Goodwill may be valued at 4 years' purchase of average super profit from trading on
{he basis of 10% normal trading profit on closing capital employed. Z Lid. is formed lor
the purpose of amalgamation of both the companies.

Advise upon capitalisation of Z Ltd. and suggest a scheme of exchange of shares for
that purposc (consider only break-up valuc). Also dralt the Balance Shect of 7, T.td.

Solution

The Board of Directors B & Co.
............................ Chartered Accountants
Kalyani-741 235 Kolkata-700 001

Date : April 28,2005
Sub : Scheme of Amalgamation of X Ltd. and ¥ Lid.
Dear Sirs,
As requested, we have the pleasure in submitting a scheme of armalgamation hereunder
for your consideration :
1 Valuation of Shaves including Goodwill ;

While formulating the scheme of amalgamation X Ltd. and Y Lid., importanee is to
be given to evaluate the special advantage attached to the companies. In other words, value
of poodwill of the companies is to be determined, This will determine the shareholdets®
equity and the amount they can claim in the new amalgamated company. The valuation of
goodwill is as Tollows :

(i} Closing Trading Capital Employed .

X Ltd. N Ld.

Rs. Rs.
Fixed Assels 4,95.000 1,50,000
Stock-in-trade 240,000 60,750
Debtors 1,40,250 75,000
(Cash at Bank 1,33,500 33,500

10,08,750| 3,18,750
Less : Creditors 1,57,750 36,730

852000 2,82,000
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(i) Average Maintainable Profits :

Since the profits have shown an upward trend, it would be appropriate to use
weighted average method lor determining average profits. This is caleulated as below ;

Weighted Average Profits

Year X Ltd Y Litd.
Profits Weights Product Profits Weights Praduct
Es. Rs. Rs. Ks.
2002-03 1,48,500 | 1,48,500 40,500 1 40,500
2003-04 1,64.250 2 3,28,500 . 47,100 2 94200
2004-05 1,84,500 3 553500 | 62,250 3 1,86,750
6 10,30,500 e | sk
Rs. Rs.
Weighted average profits :
X Ltd. [(10,30,500)/6] 1,71,750
Y Ltd.[(3,21,450)/6] 53,575
Less : Income from investments
@ 4% on Rs.1,20,000 4,800 —
1.66,950 53,575
(iif) Super Profits and Value of Goodwill
X Ltd. (Rs.) |Y Ltd. (Rs.)
Average maintainable profits 1,66,950 53,575
Less : Mormal return (@ 10% on closing trading
capital Employed 85,200 28.200
Super profits 81,750 25,375
Goodwill at 4 years® purchase of super profits 3,27,000 1,01,500
(iv) Valuation of Shares :
X Ltd. (Rs)|Y Ltd. (Rs)
Closing trading capital employed 8.52.000 2.82,000
Add :  Goodwill 3,27.000 1,01,500
4% Tax Free Bonds 108,000 —
Net assels for shareholders (i) 12,87,000 3,83,500
Number of shares (ii) 60,000 20,000
Value per share [(i)/(ii)] Rs. 19,175
Rs. 2145
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II. Exchange Ratio of Shares, Number of Shares to be issued and Cash Requirement :

It is difficult to find out a suitable exchange ratio of shares having regard to the value
of shares arrived at. It would be better to make some cash payment (as there is sufficient
cash at bank) in order to find out a convenient exchange ratio. This can be achieved as
follows :

The value of 10 sharcs of X Ltd. is Rs. 21.45 = 10 = Rs. 214.50
The value of 10 shares of Y Ltd. is Rs. 19.175 = 10 = Rs. 191.75

Therefore, Z Ltd. will make payment to the sharcholders of vendor companies as
follows :

(1) Z Ltd. will issue 21 shares of Rs.10 cach and pay Rs.4.50 in cash for every 10
shares in X Ltd.

(2) Z Ltd. will issue 19 shares of Rs.10 each and pay Rs.1.75 in cash for every 10
shares in Y Lid.

As a result, the total number of shares to be issued by Z Ltd. will be as follows :
(1) Shareholders of X Ltd. [(60,000) x (21)/(10)] 1,26,000 shares

(2) Sharcholders of Y Ltd. [(20,000) x (19)/(10)] 38,000 shares

1,64,000 shares

Requirement of cash of Z Ltd. will be as follows : Rs.
To pay shareholders of X Ltd. [(60,000)/(10) » Rs.4.50] 27,000
To pay sharehulders' of Y Ltd. [(20,000)/(10) = Rs.1.75] 3,500
Liguidation expenses of X Ltd. (say) 4,000
Liquidation expenses of Y Lid, (say) ' 4,000
Expenses of formation of Z Ltd. (say) 6,500

45,000
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LI If our scheme is accepted, the Balance Sheet of Z Ltd. will be :

Balance Sheet of Z Ltd. as on March 31, 2005

Liabilitics Amount Assels Amount
Es. Rs.
Share Capital Fixed Assets
Authorised : Goodwill (3,27,000 + 1,01,500)
vivvroshares of Rs.10 each 7 + 4,000 + 4.000) 436,500
Other Fixed Assets
{(4,95,000 + 1,50,000) 6,45,000
Issued and Subscribed : Investments
1,64,000 shares of Rs.10 each 16,40,000] 4% Tax Free Bonds
Current Liabilities and (Face Value Rs. 1,20,000) 108,000
Provisions Current Assels, Loans and
Creditors (1,56,750 + 36,750) 1,93,500| Advanices
Stock-in-trade 3,00.750
(2,40,000 + 60,7507
Debtors (1,40,250 + 75,000) 2,15,250
Cash at Bank 121,500
(1,33,500 + 33,000 — 45,000)
Miscellaneous Expenditure
Perliminary Expenses 6,500
18,33,500 18,33,500

We shall be glad to furnish you with any further information that you may require.

Thanking you,
Yours faithfully,

(Signature of the partner with seal)

Chartered Accountants
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Problem 3 :
Following are the Balance Sheets of P Ltd. and Q Ltd. as on March 31, 2005 :

Liabilities P Lid. | O Ll Assets P Lid. | O Ltd
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Share Capital .
Equity Shares of Fixed Assets 7.60,000 | 3.80,000
Rs.10 each 10,00,000 | 2,00,000
6% Pref. Shares Current Aysets,
of Rs.10 each — | 2,00,000 | Loans & Addvances
Secured Loans : Stock ; 200,000 { 1,00,000
9% Debenture of Debtors 300,000 | 1,50,000
Rs.100 each — | 1,00,000 | Cash and Bank 60,000 | 30,000
Reserves & Surplus | :
General Reserve 1,000,000 50,000

Profit & Lass Alc [, 70,000 85,000
Curvent Liabilities
and  Provisions

Credilors 50,000 25,000

13.20,000 | 6,60,000 : 13,20,000 | 6,60,000

Profit and Loss Account balances were made up as follows :
P Ltd. Q Lid.

: Rs. Rs.
Balance on 1.4.2004 20,000 10,000
Add : Profit for the year before interest on debentures 1,50,000 75,000

1,70,000 85,000

Negoliations are going on for merger of Q Ltd. with P Ltd. Suggest a suitable scheme.
lgnore corporate tax.

Solution

The Board of Directors ' X & Co.
............................ _ Chartered Accountants
Durgapur-713 214 Kaolkata-700 039

Date : April 29, 2005

Sub : Scheme of Merger of Q Lid. with P Ltd,
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Dear Sirs,

As requested, we have the pleasure in submitting a scheme of merger of Q) Ltd. with
P Ltd. for your consideration in the following lines ;

L. Valuation of Goodwill with Leverage Effect :

It is clear from the Balance Sheets of both the companies that Q Ltd, is exactly half -
the P Ltd. in all respects except the composition of capital structure. Again, profit earned
before debenture interest and preference dividend is also half in the case of Q Ltd. in
comparison with P Ltd. The differcnce in the composition of capital structure makes a
significant difference as repards yield to equity shareholders. In other words, the effect of
leverage is to be taken into consideration in valuing goodwill. This aspect is covered in the
scheme as below :

(1) Expected yield to Equity Shareholders :

P Ltd. (Rs) |Q Ltd. (Rs.)
(a) Profit before debenture interest and prefercnce
dividend for the year ended 31.3.2005 1,50,000 75,000
(b) Decbenture interest and preference dividend — 21,000
(¢) Profit available for equity dividend [(a)}—(b)] 1,50,000 54,000
(d) Paid up cquity share capital 10,00,000 2,00,000
(¢) Expected rate of yield [(c) x (100)/(d)] 15.00% 27.00%

() Valuation of Goodwill :

Market value of equity shares is highly dependent on the expected yield or dividend
paid. It is obvious from the rate of yicld that Q Ltd, has almost double the ability to pay
dividend to its equity shareholders in comparison with P Itd. although its profit before
interest and preference dividend is half of P.Ltd. This advantage unless compensated to
the shareholders of Q Ltd., they will not agree to any proposal for merger, The exact
valuation of this advantage depends on the normal expectation on equity capital. Assuming
the normal expectation on equity capital is 15%, keeping the equity sharcholders of P Litd,
at par. The valuation of this advantage, i.e., goodwill of Q Ltd. is calculated as follows :

(a) Profit after debenture interest and preference dividend,

1.e., profit available for cquity dividend Es. 54.000
(b) Normal return on equity capital at 15% on Rs. 2,00,000 Rs. 30,000
(¢) Super profit [(a}—(b)] Rs. 24,000
(d) Value of goodwill on the basis of capitalisation of super

profit at 15% [(c)/15%] Rs. 1,60,000
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I Valuation of Equity Shares (Assel-backing value) .

P Ltd. Q Lid.
Rs. Rs.

(a) Net assets for equily shareholders :
Equity Share Capital 10,00,000 2,00,000
General Rescrve 1,00,000 50,000
P& L Afc after debenture interest and prefl. dividend 1,70,000 64.000
Goodwill —= 1,60,000
! 12,70,000 4,74.000
(b) Mumber of equity shares 1,00,000 20,000
{c) Value per share [(a)/(b)] Rs, 12.70 Rs. 23.70

Il Exchange Ratio of Equity Shares, Purchase Consideration, Number of

Shares to be issued, Cash requirement, efc :

Considering the value of shares, it is difficult to find out the exchange ratio. With a view
to finding out a convenient exchange ratio, some cash payment may be made in order to

avoid Iraction, This is done as follows :
The value of 13 shares of P Ltd. 1s Rs5.12.70 % 13 = Rs.165.10
The value of 7 shares of Q Ltd. is Rs.23.70 * 7 = Rs.165.90

Thus, for every 7 shares in Q Ltd,, P Ltd. will issue 13 shares of Rs.10 each at a
premium of Rs.2.70 per share and pay Re.0.80 in cash.

Total number of equity shares to be issued to Q Ltd. :
(a) Divisible value of 7 shares against 20,000 shares of Q Ltd. is 2,857,
[i.e., (20,000)/7 = 2,857.14 28 or, 2,857]

(b) Number of shares to be issued by P Ltd, to equity shareholders of Q Ltd is
37,141 shares (i.e., 2,857 x 13 = 37,141).

Total number of cquity shares of P Ltd. for Balance Sheet purpose is as follows :
(a) Existing number of shares 1s 1,00,000
(b) Number of shares to be issued to Q Ltd, is 2.857 x 13 = 37,141
(c) Total number of shares [(a) + (b)] 1s 1,37,141
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Payment of Purchase Consideration to Q Ltd. is as follows :

Rs.

(a) Issue of 37,141 equity shares of Rs.10 each at a

premium of Rs.2.70 per share 37,141 x 12,70
(b) Cash payment for divisible shares [0.80 = 2,857]

4,71,691
2,285

(c) Cash payment for fractional value of shares

(0.1428 = 7 = 23.70)

(d) Total payment [(a) + (b) + (c)]

Total cash requirement for payment is as follows :

(a) To equity shareholders of Q Ltd. (2,285 + 24)
(b) Liquidation expenses of Q Ltd. (say)
(c) Total cash payment to Q Ltd. [(a) + (b)]

24
4,74,000

Rs.
2,309
3,000
7.309

(approx.)
(approx.)

(approx.)

In addition, the debenture-holders in () Ltd. should receive debentures in P Ltd. of the
same amount. Similarly, the preference shareholders in Q Lid, should receive preference
shares in P Ltd of the same amount, Presumably both the debenture-holders and
preference sharcholders of Q Lid. may not have any objection to the merger with P Ltd,
since their funds will be even more safe and secured in P Ltd.

V. If the scheme of merger of Q Ltd. with P Ltd. is carried on, the Balance
Sheet of P Lid will be as follows :

Balance Sheet of P Lid, as on March 31, 2005
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Liabilities Amount Assels Amotint
Rs. Rs,
Share Capital Fixed Assets
Authorises : Goodwill 1,660,000
..... Equity Shares of Rs.10 cach 7 Add ; Liguidation
6% Preference Shares of expenses paid _5,000] 1,65,000
Rs,10 each 7 Other Fixed Assets :
7 (7,60,000 + 3,80,000) 11,40,000
Issued and Subscribed ; Current Assefs, Loans and :
1,37,141 Equity Shares Advances
‘of Rs.10 each 13,71,410 | Stock (2,00,000 + 1,00,000) ;;,ur:n_ 0o |



Liabilitics Amount . Assets Amount
Rs. Es.
20,000 6% Prefercnce Debtors (3.00,000 + 1,50,000) 4,50,000
Shares of Rs. 10 each 200,000 | Cash & Bank :
Reserves & Surplus (60,000 + 30,0000 90,000
Securities Premium 1,00,281 | Less : Cash payment 7,309 82,691
(Rs. 2.70 = 37,141)
General Reserve 1,00,000
Profit & Loss Afc 1,70,000
Secured Loans
10% Debentures 1,00,000
Current Liabilities and
Provisions
Creditors (50,000 + 25,000) 75,000
Debenture Interest Due 9.000
Pref. Dividend Due 12,000
21.37,691 21.37,691

We shall be obliged to [urnish you with any further clarification and information that
you may require in this connection,

Thanking you,

Yours faithfully,

(Signature of the partner with seal)
Chartered Accountants

7.8 Scheme of Internal Reconstruction

The need for reconstruction arises when a company has accumulated huge losses or
when a company finds itself over-capitalised, which means either that the value placed on
assets is very high cﬂmparcd to their carning capacity or that the profils generated by the

- company is not sufficient to pay a proper dividend. Considering these aspects, 4 company
is required to be reorganised to inject fresh blood to save the company from its unwanted
liquidation. In order to reorganise a company, the Board of Directors place a scheme
before all the interested parties for their consent and get it approved by the Court for its
implementation. When this is done without altering the name of the existing company, it is
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known as internal reconstruction. In other words, implementation ol a scheme aller it is
consented to by all the interested parties, viz., shareholders, debenture-holders, creditors,
ete., having the approval of the Cowt with a view to bringing equilibrium between assets
and liabilities for better future without liquidation and change in the name of the existing
company is known as scheme of internal reconstruction.

7.8.1 Circumstances of Internal Reconstruction

Internal reconstruction is advisable or preferable under the circumstances noted
below :

(1) The present position of the company is bad but good days are ahead.

(2) The shareholders, debenture-holders and creditors, specifically bankers have not
only agreed to sacrifice but are also ready to subscribe to further capital.

(3) The company is interested to carry forward its past losses or is interested to get
the benefit of set off of past losses against future profits. This will ultimately minimise the
tax burden for a few vears.

(4) The proposal for internal construction is consented to by all the interested groups
of the company without any delaying tactics such as legal objections and dissensions.

(5) The company is not willing to lose'its present legal entity or the company is likely
to have a fresh chance ol avoiding liquidation.

7.8.2 Steps for Internal Reconstruction

The fundamental basis of any reconstruction proposal is the earning capacity of the
company. Even the payment of debenture interest is not possible unless the activities of the
company are profitable. A very careful estimate should, therefore, be made as to the future
anticipated profits of the company. Unless profits are sufficient to meet all expenses
including adequate depreciation, interest on borrowed capital, preference dividend and a
reasonable return on equity capital, reconstruction would be useless because the need for
another reconstruction will arise soon again, Thus, internal reconstruction should be made
very carefully because when a company is once reconstructed, it must survive potentially
for an indefinite long period. The essence of internal reconstruction is that the reconstructed
company has the potentiality to generate sufficient profits in future.

The equity shareholders will have to bear a higher proportion of losses because they
are the real owners of the company. In course of distribution of losses to be written off
among the various interested groups of the company, the control over the affairs of the
company by the equity shareholders must not be overlooked.
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‘The requirement of working capital should not be ignored. Cash may be required to
pay off some dissenting creditors or even to pay arrear preference dividend, The
willingness by the sharcholders, debenture-holders, ete. to provide required cash fund is,
thus, a basic requirement for the success of a reconstruction scheme.

In order to implement the scheme of internal re{;ﬁnsn'ux:ti_un, the following steps may
be advocated :

(1) Estimation of total loss :

This is the first step in estimating total loss to be written off for drafting a scheme of
internal reconstruction. The total loss is estimated on the basis of the latest Balance Sheet
and other information of the company. Total loss may be ascertained as follows :

Statement of Estimated Total Loss

Rs,
Fictitious Assets like debit balance in the profit and loss account, HHR
preliminary expenses, discount on issue of shares and debentures,
underwriting commission, reconstruction expenscs, cte, 3
Add ; Intangible Assets like goodwill, patents and trade marks to the
extent they lost their values. K%K
Contingent liabilities like cumulative arrear preference dividend, etc.
WM
Loss on revaluation of assets and liabilities Kxx
Less : Profit on revaluation of assets and liabilities KR
Net loss to be written off s

(2) Estimation of realisable value of asseis( in case of forced liguidation) and its
likely distribution :
Lstimated realisable valuc of assets can be obtlained by summing up all assets after

valuation on the basis of forced sales (or, going concern value basis). Likely distribution
of assets may be shown as follows :

Rs. Rs.
Estimated realisable value of all assets KN
Lees : Preferential Creditors :
Tax liability M
Workers' dues ' K HKK
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Surplus assets available for secured credilors, unsceured

creditors and shareholders Mn
Less : Secured Creditors :

Debenture-holders (secured against assets) HXK

Other secured creditors v S5
Surplus assets available for unsecured creditors and sharcholders MK
Less : Unsecured Creditors :

Trade creditors, bills payables, etc. R e
Surplus/Deficiency for shareholders R X
Less : Preference Shareholders” Claim :

Preference share capital EES

Arrear preference dividend : MK 6w
Surplus/Deficiency as regards Preference Sharcholders M
Less : Equity share capital MH
Deficiency as regards equity shareholders tak K

(3) Writing off loss .

This is a very crucial aspect of the scheme of internal reconstruction. If preferential
creditors, secured creditors (i.e., debenture-holders) and unsecured creditors are fully
covered by the realisable value of assets, naturally they will not bear any loss. They are
affected only if the realisable value of assets is insufficient to cover even their liabilities. In
such an eventuality, they will have to make sacrifice. The order ol (heir sacrilice will be (a)
preferential creditors (no sacrifice), (b) secured creditors (sacrifice depending on the value
of securities), and (¢) unsceured creditors (heaviest sacrifice). The same principle is
applicable to preference sharcholders as to refund of their capital. They may be persuaded
to share loss in a situalion when the refund of preference capital is uncertain by the
availability or otherwise of the realisable valuc of assets after its likely distribution to
preferential creditors, secured creditors and unsecured creditors. In that situation, they will
. naturally forego arrear preference dividend and bear loss, which will be relatively higher
than that of the creditors. But the sharing of loss by the preference shareholders will be
much lower than that of the equity shareholders.

(4) Compensation to debenture-holders, other credilors and preference
shareholders for bearing loss :

The debenture-holders may be compensated h}r means of increase in the rate of
interest in such a manner so that their total earmings on account of interest will remain the
same as before. The same principle may be applied to preference shareholders. In case
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ol need, non-participating preference shares may be converted into participating preference
shares without disturbing the control of equity shares over the affairs of the company or,
participating preference shares may be converted into equity shares if the existing control
of the equily shares is not changed. Payment of arrears of dividend to cumulative
preference sharcholders in cash may immediately invite difficultics. In such a case, a good
method is to issue deposit certificates to them to avoid immediate burden on liquid
resources. But arrears of dividend on non-cumulative preference shares are usually

cancelled. As a part of compensation, some portion of unsecured creditors may be paid
in cash through the arrangement of liquid funds.

(3) Arrangement of working capital :

Working capital is the life-blood of the business. Therefore it is necessary that the
reconstructed company should have adequate working capital at its disposal. Tt can be
raised by further call on existing reduced shares, sale of investments, lssuamc of new
debentures and shares, arrangement ol overdraft and the like.

(6) Estimation and disposal of expected future profits :
This is the last step but not the least in importance in the scheme of internal

reconstruction. Under this section, due care should be given in estimating future profits and
its disposal so that return on equity capital is fair.

Problem 4 : :

The following is the Balance Sheet of Unfortunate Ltd. as on March 31, 2005 :
Liabilities Amount Assets Amount

. Rs. Rs.
Share Capital : Goodwill 1,580,000
60,000 Equily Shares of Plant & Machinery 5,440,000
Rs. 10 each 6,00,000 | Stock 1,74,000
1,200 6% Cumulative Pref. Debtors 1,20,000
Shares of Rs.100 each 120,000 | Cash at Bank 6,000
Sundry Liabilities 6,00,000 | Profit & Loss AJe 3,400,000
13,20,000 1 3,20,000

P'reference share dividends are 3 years in arrear, Draft a suitable scheme of inlernal
reconstruction, which would help the company to rmr%anise in the following lines :

(a) To write ofl the profit and loss account and goodwill.
(b) To depreciate plant and machinery by 10%.

(¢) To satisfy the arrears of preference dividends.

(d) To provide Rs.60,000 as liquid resources.
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Solution

The Board of Directors Y & Co.
Unfortunate Lid. Charlered Accountants
Kolkala-700 012 Kolkata-700 001

Date : April 30, 2005
qu : Scheme of Internal Reconstruction of Unfortunate Ltd.
Dear Sirs,

With reference to your letter dated 7.4.2005, we are submitting the scheme of internal
reconstruction hereunder ;

(1) Total loss to be written off :

. Rs,

Debit balance in the profit and loss account 3,600,000
Goodwill 1,80.000
Depreciation on pant and machinery (5,40,000 = 10%) 54,000
Arrear preference dividends (1,20,000 x 6% x 3) 21,600
5,55,600

(2) Estimated realisable value of assets (in case of forced liguidation) and its
likely distribution :

Rs. Rs.

Realisable value of assets :
Plant and Machinery (540,000 = 90%) 4,86,000
Stock 1,744,000
Debtors 1,20,000
Cash at Bank i 6,000 | 7.86,000
Less ; Unsecured Creditors (Sundry Liabilitics) 6,00,000
Surplus available for Shareholders 1,886,000
Less : Preference Shareholders’ Claim : :

6% Preference Share Capital 1,20,000

Arrear preference dividend 21,600 1,441,600
Surplus available for Equity Sharcholders : 44400
Less : Equity Share Capital 6,00,000
Deficiency as regards Equity Shareholders 5,55,600
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(3) Writing of Loss :

In the context of the above relative position in liquidation, loss (o be written off should
be shared as below @

(a) Sundry Liabilities : Since their claim is fully covered in case of forced liquidation,
naturally they will not sacrifice anything,

(b) Preference Shareholders : The claim of preference shareholders is also fully
covered cven if forced liguidation takes place. Bul in order to smoothen implementation of
the scheme, equity shareholders cannot be asked to sacrifice more than 90% of their claim,
i.e., Rs. 9 per share. In this situation, preference sharcholders will be asked to sacrifice
a bit, only Rs. 15,600 (i.e., Rs. 5,55,600—0Rs. 9 % 60,000) which will reduce their value
by Rs. 13 [i.e., (Rs. 15,000)/(1,200)] per share. The paid up value after sacrifice will be

Rs. 87 (i.c., Rs. 100 —Rs, 13) per share. As a part of compensation, the rate of dividend
may be increased [rom 6% to 7.50%.

() Equity Sharcholders : In case of forced liquidation, equity sharcholders will pet very
negligible amount considering time and expenses on account of liquidation. In view of
maintaining control over the alfairs of the company, equily shareholders will be asked to
sacrifice a lion’s share, Rs. 9 per share (i.e., Rs.10 % 90%). As a result, paid up value will
be Re. 1 (ie, Rs. 10 — Rs. 9) per share,

(4) Arrangement of Liguid Funds ;

Rs, Rs.
Payment of arrears of preference dividend 21,600
Add : Requirement of liquid resources 60,000 81,600
Less : Cash at Bank 6,000
Additional requirement of liquid resources 75,600

'The above amount may be arranged as loan from bank at 10% p. a. by the mortgage
of plant and machinery by means of {floating charge,

(5) If owr scheme is accepted, the Balance Sheet of Unfortunate Ltd. will be as

below :
Balance Sheet of Unfortunate Ltd. as on March 31, 2005 (And Reduced)
Liabilities Amount Assets Amount
Rs. Rs.

Share Capital : Fixed Assels
Authorised Pilant and Machinery 4,31_5,0{]0'
......... Equity Shares of i

Re.l each
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Liabilities Amount Assets Amount |
Rs. Es.
e 1.30%  Preference Shares Current Asseis
of Bs.87 each ? Stock 1,74.000
Debtors 120,000
fssuwed and Subscribed Cash at Bank /0,000
60,000 Equity Shares of
Re.l each 60,000
1,200 7.50% Preference
Shares of Rs.87 each 1,04.400
Secured Loans
Bank Loan on Mortgage 10% 75,600
Current Liabilities
Sundry Liabilities 6,00,000
840,000 8.40,000

(6) Estimation and disposal of expected future profits :

In estimating future expected profits, it is required to ascertain the capital employed.
Capital employed after reconstruction of the company will be Rs, 2,40,000, which consists
of equity capital, preference capital and loan from bank, (i.c., Rs. 60,000 + Rs, 1,04,400
+Rs. 75,600). The company has to pay no tax for the coming few years because of the
lax benefit due to set off of past losses. Therelore, a reasonable rate of return before
nterest @ 12% on Rs. 2,40,000, capital employed is expected to meet the claims for
inferest on bank loan, dividends and others as follows -

(i) For interest on bank loan (75,600 x 10%)

(i) For preference dividend (1,200 x 87 x 7.50%)
(i) For equity dividend (60,000 = 1 x 12%)

(iv) For transfer to reserve (assumed)

(v) For balance carried forward in the profit and loss account
(vi) Estimated future expected profits [(i) + (i) + (iii) + (iv) + (v)]

Rs. 7,560
Rs. 7,830
Rs. 7.200
Rs. 5,760
Rs. 450
Rs. 28,800

We shall be glad to furnish you with any further information that you may require,

Thanking you,
Yours faithfudly,

(Signature of the pariner with seal)

Chartered Accountants
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Problem 5 :
The Balance Sheet of Progressive Ltd. as on March 31, 2005 is as follows :

Liabilitics Amount Assets Amount
Rs, Rs.
15,000 Equity Shares of Goodwill 50,000
Rs.10 each 1.50,000 | Building 90,000
10,000 7% preference Shares Plant and Machinery 40,000
of Rs.10 each 100,000 (Market value is 15% less
10% Debentures (secured than book value)
against plant & machinery) 30,000 | Investments (Market value
Workmen's Accident Rs. 25,000) 20,000
Compensation Fund 10,000 | Stock (Market value
Profit Sharing Fund 10,000 Rs. 12,000) 15,000
Stall Welfare Fund 5,500 | Debtors 30,000
Sundry Creditors 41,000 | Profit and Loss Alc 1,01,500
3.46,500 3,46,500

Prepﬂré a Capital Reduction Scheme and redraft the Balance Sheet after incorporating,
your proposal for submission to the Board of Directors.

The following are certain relevant facts that may be considered in formulating the
scheme :

(a) Estimated liability on account of workmen’s accident compensation fund is Rs.
9.000. = :

(b) Prefercnce Shares are cumulative and preferential as regards dividend as well as
capital. The preference dividends are in arrears lor two years.

(c) The company needs to have liquid resources of Rs. 25,000 for working capital
purposes.

(d) Bad debts arc estimated at Rs. 1,500.
(e) Current year’s inlerest on debenture is outstanding,
() Sundry Creditors include tax liability of Rs. 5,000.

Solution

The Board of Directors Z & Co.

Progressive Ltd. Chartered Accountants
Kolkata-700 012 Kolkata-700 001

Date : April 27, 2005
Ref : Scheme of Capital Reduction of Progressive Lid.
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Dear Gentlemen,

With reference to your letter dated 10.04.2005, we have the pleasure in submitling a
scheme for capital reduction of your company for your consideration in the followin g lines :

(1) Total loss to be written off :

Rs. Rs.

Goodwill 50,000
Profit and Loss Afc LOTL,500
Plant and Machinery 2,000
Stock 3,000
Deblors 5,000
Arrear preference dividend (1,00,000 x 7% x 2) 14,000
Outstanding interest on debentures 3,000
L, 78,500

Less : Increase in the value of investments 5,000
Decrease in workmen’s accident compensation fund 1,000 6,000
1,72,500

(2) Estimated realisable value of assets (in case of forced liguidation) and its

likely distribution :

Building
Plant and Machinery (40,000 — 2,000)
Investments
Stock
Debtors (30,000 — 5,000)
Assets available for distribution
Less :  Preferential Creditors ;
Tax liability
Workmen's accident compensation fund
Surplus assets available for secured creditors, unsecured
creditors and sharcholders
Less : Sccured Creditors (10% Debenture with inferest due)
Surplus assets available for unsecured creditors and

shareholders

Rs.

5,000
9,000

Bs.
80,000
38,000
25,000
12,000
25,000

1,90,000

14,000

1,76,000
33,000

1,43,000
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Rs. Rs.
Less :  Unsecured Creditors :
Stall wellare fund 5,500
Profit sharing lund 10,000
Sundry Creditors (41,000 — 5,000) 36,000 51,500
Surplus assets available preference and equity sharcholders 91,500
Less :  Preference Shareholders Claim :
7% Preference share capital 1,00,000
Arrear preference dividend 14,000 1,14,000
Deficiency as regards preference sharcholders : 22,500
Less : Equity Sharc Capital 1,50,000
Deficiency as regards equily shareholders 1,72.500
(3) Writing off Loss :
Tn view of the above relative position in liquidation, the loss may be written off as
below : i
(a) Preferential Creditors—As they are sufficiently covered, they will not sacrifice
anything.
(b) Secured Creditors (Debenture-holders)—They ate also covered. Therefore, they
cannot be asked to sacrifice anything.
(c) Preference and Equity Shareholders—Since the preference sharcholders haye got

the priority as to the return of capital as well as dividend at the time of liquidation,
they usually cannot be asked to sacrifice anything. But the available surplus assets
are not sufficient to pay their claims in full. Naturally, they may be persuaded to
sacrifice somcthing, and the equity shareholders’ claim cannot be completely wiped
of which means liquidation of the company. In these situations, the equity share yalue
may be reduced to a token value of Re. | per share. Therefore, balance of loss of
Rs. 37,500 [i.e,, Rs. 1,72,500 — (Rs. 1,50,000 — Re. 1 x 15,000)] should be
sacrificed by the preference shareholders. As a result, preference shares of Rs. 10
cach fully paid will be reduced by Rs. 3.75 [i.e., (Rs. 37,500)/(10,000)] per share.

Tn view of making compensation to preference shareholders, the rate of dividend may
be raised from 7% to 9%,

(4)

Arrangement of working capifal :

In order to provide Rs. 25,000 for working capital, the company may be advised to
sell the investments at the market value rather than collection of liquid fund from borrowings
which is now difficult. This will not impose any burden of interest on the operation of the
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company fou taking loan, For paying arrears of preference dividend, Deposir Certificates
may be issued in lieu of cash payment, This is preferable because it will not give any voting
right and the certificate can be redeemed as soon as opportunity arises,

(3) If the scheme is implemented, the Balance Sheet of Progressive Ltd. will be
as follows :

Balance Sheet of Progressive Ltd. as on March 31, 2005 (And Reduced)

Liabilities Amount Assets Amount
Rs. Rs.
Share Capital
Authorised : Fixed Assets
...... Equity Shares of Building 90,000
Re.l each ? Plant and Machinery 38,000
5 1, 2 0% Preference Shares Current Assefs, Loans
! of Rs. 6.25 each 7 and Advances
| Issued and Subseribed : Stock (Market value) 12,000
15,000 Equity Shares of Debtors 25,000
Re. | each 15,000 | Cash at Bank 25,000
10,000 9% Preference Shares
of Rs, 6.25 each 62,500
Sectired Loans
10% Debentures 30,000
Outstanding Debenture interest 3,000
Unsecured Loans
Deposit Certificates 14,000

Current Liabilities and
Provisions
Workmen's Accident

Compensation Fund 9,000

Profit Sharing Fund 10,000

Staft Welfare' Fund 5,500

Sundry Creditors 41,000
1,90,000 1,90,000

(6) Disposal of expected future profits ;

In order to determine the expected ﬁnure.pmﬁts, it is required to ascertain the amount
of capital employed. The capital employed after reconstruction of the company will be

223




Rs. 1,07,500 consisting of equity share capital, 9% preference share capital and 10%
debentures. Since tax liability will not arise for the coming few years because of the set off
of past losses. earnings before interest may be taken to be, ata conservative estimate, at
about 12% on capital cmployed, which will generate Rs. 13,000 per annum. The likely
disposal will be :

() For debenture interest (30,000 x 10%) Rs. 3,000
(i) For preference dividend (62,500 x 9%) Rs. 5,625
(iii)y For transfer to reserve (assumed) Rs. 2,580
(iv) Tor balance carried forward in the profit and loss account Rs. 1,795
(v) Estimated future profits before tax [(i) + (il) + (iii) + (iv)] Rs, 13,000
We shall be glad to furnish you with any further clarification that you may require.
Thanking you,
Yours faithfully,
(Signature of the partner with seal)
Chartered Accountants
Problem 6 : .
The following is the Balance Sheet of Paradise India Ltd. as on March 31, 2005 :
Liabilities Amount Assets Amount
Rs. B,
Share Capital (fully paid Goodwill 72,000
shares of Rs.100 each) : Patent Rights 96,000
Equity | 2,40,000 | (Estimated value Rs. 36,000)
6% Cumulative preference | 3,60,000 | Buildings at cost _ 1,56,000
6% Debentures, secured by a Plant & Machinery at cost 3,069,600
floating charge on all asscts 1,20,000 | Stock (Market value) 76,000
Interest due on above 14,400 | Debtors (Considered good) 63,000
Sundry Creditors 120,000 | Profit & Loss Alc 1,05,600
Bank Overdratt 28,800
(limit Rs. 30,000)
8.83.200 8.83.200

Dividends on preference shares are in arrear for two years, The directors of the
company are of the opinion that if an additional plant is installed at a cost of Rs. 1,20,000
and working capital needs are fully met, the company will earn enough profit to pay equity
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dividend @ 10% subject to a suitable scheme of internal reconsiruction being put through,
The existing buildings and plant & machinery are considered being worth Rs. 1.82.400 and
Rs. 2,40,000 on a going concern basis.

Debenture-holders are anxious to be paid the interest due to them but are willing to
provide half of the additional capital required on suitable basis, Preference sharcholders are
willing fo accept a reasonable sacrifice provided they are given berth in the equity capital,

Suggest a suitable scheme of internal reconstruction,

Solution

The Board of directors T & Co.

Paradise India Lid. Chartered Accountants
16, Gokhele Road Kalyani-741 235
Kolkata-700 022 Datc : April 25, 2005

Sub : Internal Reconstruction of your Company
Dear Sirs, '
As requested, we have given below our suggestions for a scheme of internal

reconstruction for your consideration and for placing them before the different classes of
creditors and sharcholders.

(1) Accumulated and expected losses to be writien off :

Rs.

Debit balance in the Profit and Loss Afc 1,05,600
Goodwill : 72,000
Patent Rights (96,000 — 36,000) ) 60,000
Plant and Machinery (3,12,000 — 2,40,000) 72,000
Arrear preference dividends (3,60,000 =-6% x 2) 43,200
3,52,800

Less : Increase in the value of Buildings (1,82,400 - 1,56,000) 26,400
3,26,400

(2) Estimated realisation of asvets (going concern value basis) and ifs likely
distribution :

[ Rs, Hs.
Patent Rights 36,000
Buildings 1,80,000
Plant and Machinery 240,000
Stock 76,000
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fie [ Rs. Rs,—|

Debtors ; 68,000
Total Assets available for distribution 6,00,000
Less ©  Creditors hayving floating charge !

6% Debenture-holders 1,20,000

Interest due on above 14,400
Surplus Assels available for Unsecured Creditors ;

and Sharcholders 1,34,400

465,600

Less ©  Unsecured Creditors ;

Sundry Creditors 1,20,000

Bank Overdrafl 28,800 1,48.800
Surplus Asscts available for Shareholders 3,16,800
Less © 6% Cumulative Preference Shareholders Claim :

Prefercnce Share Capital 3,60,000

Arrear preference dividends 43,200 | 4,03,200
Deficiency as regards Preference Sharcholders 86,400
Less : Equity Share Capital 2,40,000
Deficiency as regards Equity Shareholders 3,26,4{](]

(3} Writing of Loss :

In the context of the above relative position, the loss of Rs.3,26,400 is suggested to
be shared by different intercsted groups as below :

() Creditors having floating charge—Debentures having floating charge are fully

covered. Thus, they cannot be asked to bear any loss.

(b) Unsecured Creditors—Since they are sufficiently covered, they also will not bear,
any loss. |

(¢) Preference Shareholders—The claim of preference shareholders is not fully.
covered. Surplus assets available for likely distribution between preference and equity
sharcholders is Rs. 3,16,800 out of which the claim of preference shareholders including
arrears of dividend is Rs. 4,03,200. In this situation, they will not only lose Rs. 86,400 but
will also lose even more, considering time and expensc in liquidation. Hence, they will find
o alternative but to make an inevitable sactifice. Since they are interested in getting berth
in the equity capital, their sacrifice will naturally be commensurate to their asp_iratidil and
must be acceptable to the existing equity shareholders. 1t will be reasonable for them to
forego the arrcars of preference dividend in fi ull and to accept Rs. 2,40,000 9% cumulative
preference shares of Rs.100 cach of the existing preference shares,
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This will mean that in future they will continue to receive Rs. 21,600 as dividend which
was eamned by them previously and, therefore, their sacrifice will not be as heavy at it
appears, In view of higher rate of dividend, the market value of preference shares will rige
and the greater likelihood of the dividend being paid regularly.

(d) Iquity Shareholders—The equity shareholders will be prepared to bear the
balance of loss of Rs. 1,63,200 [i.c., Rs, 3,26,400—(Rs. 4,03,200 — Rs, 2,40,000)]. The
loss will be Rs. 68 [i.e., Rs. 1,63,200)/(2,400)] per share. As a result, paid up value per
share should be reduced from Rs, 100 to Rs. 32.

(4) drrangement of working capital

It is required to calculate the working capital need of the proposed reconstructed
company in order to make the scheme viable before the arrangement of working capital.
The working capital need is calculated as follows -

Rs. Rs.
To instal a new plant 1,20,000
To pay outstanding debenture interest 14,400
To introduce further working capital so as to make current
assets double the current liabilities
Current liabilities [(1,20,000+28,800) x 2] 297600
Less . Existing current assets (76,000 + 68,000) 1.44.000 1,353,600
2,88,000

Assuming that existing debenture-holders will provide half of the working capital need,
Rs. 1,44,000 (i.e., Rs. 2,88,000 x %) by taking up additional debentures at an increased
rate of 10%. The remaining amount may be raised from the existing equity sharcholders
because there is little scope for bank assistance in form of loan, But the existing preference
shareholders are desirous of an interest in the equity capital. However, it is not likely that
equity shareholders would like to lvse their control over the affairs of the company and they
must refain the majority of shares. Under these siluations, in order to retain control and 1o
honour desire of the existing preference sharcholders, remaining funds of Rs, 1,44,000 may
be provided by two classes of shareholders equally, i.e., Rs. 72,000 cach by equity and
preference shareholders in the form of 4,500 equity shares of Rs. 32 each fully paid.

(3) Capital structure after proposed reconstruction
The capital structure of the company will be as below :
(i) 2,400 9% Cumulative Preference Shares of Rs. 100 each fully paid Rs. 2,40,000
(ii) 6,900 Equity Shares of Rs. 32 each fully paid ! Rs, 2.20,800
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(i) 6% Debentures Rs. 1,20,000
(iv) 10% Debentures Rs. 144,000
{(v) Total [(i)+ (ii) +(ii) + (iv)] Rs. 7.24,800
The authorised capital may be suggested at Rs. £.00.000 consisting of 4,000 9%
Cumulative Preference Shares of Rs. 100 each and 12,500 Lquity Shares of Rs. 32 each.
(6) If the scheme is implemented, the Balance Sheet of the company will be as
Jollows & .
Balance Sheet of Paradise India Ltd. as on March 31, 2005 (And Reduced)

Liabilitics _ Amount l Assets Amount I
R= Rs.
Share Capital
Authorised Fived Assels _
4,000 9% Cum. Pref. Shares Patent Rights 36,000
of Rs. 100 cach 4,00.,000 | Buildings 1,80,000
12,500 Equity Shares of Plant and Machinery j,ﬁﬂ,ﬂ{}ﬂ
Rs. 32 each 4.00,000 | (2,40,000 + 1.20,000)
_ggﬂﬂ,ﬂfﬂ Crrrend Assets, Loans
Issued and Subscribed aned Adlvenices 76,000
2,400 9% Cum. Pref, Shuares Stock (Market value) 68,000
of Rs. 100 each 240,000 | Debtors (Good)
6,900 Equity Shares of 1 Bank 1,53,600
lis, 32 each 220,800 | (2,480,000 — 1,20,000 — 14,400}
Secured Loans
6% Debentures 1,20,000
Unsecuwred Loy |
10% Debentures 1A 000
Curreni Liubilities  and
Provisicons
Sundry Creditors 1,20.000
Bank Owverdrall 28,800 |
873,600 8,73,600

(7) Expected future profit and its likely disposal
Unless the company, after internal reconstruction, is not sure of earning a profit of
- about 16% of its capital employed, i.e.. Rs, 112,600 before interest and taxes, it will not
be worthwhile to go ahead with the scheme. The likely disposal of expected profit will be :
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(i) For debenture interest (7.200+ 14,400) Rs. 21,600

(ii) For preference dividend (2,40,000 = 9%) Rs. 21,600
(iii) For equity dividend (2,20,800 % 10%) Rs, 22,080
(iv) For transfor to reserve (assumed) s, 10,920
{(v) For paying taxcs (may arise after 2 or 3 years because of set off

of past losses), say at 40% [{(ii)+ (i) + (iv)] = [(40%)/(60%))] Rs. 36400
(vi) Total profits before interest and taxes [() (i) (1) +(iv)+(v)] Rs. 112,600
We shall be plad to furnish any further information that you may require.
Thanking you,
Yours faithfully,

(Signature of the partner with seal)
Charlered Accountants.

7.9 Summary

With the compulsion of the compliance of AS-14, significant changes in accounting for
amalgamations and mergers were noticed. In order to drafl schemes on amalgamations
and mergers, valuation of shares including goodwill, exchange ratio of shares, cash payment
to avoid fraction, adequate provision for liquidation and formation expenses, etc. are
required to be examined seriously. The “outlines for amalgamation scheme " will help a
lot in the matter of drafting the scheme of amalgamation.

While dralting schemes on internal reconstruction, it is required to follow the ‘steps for
internal reconstruction” in which different aspects, viz, losses to be written off, estimation
of realisable value of assets in case of forced liquidation, writing off losses, compensation
to those who will sacrifice, arrangement of adequate working capital, and estimation of
expected future profits and its likely disposal, are to be discussed and demand careful and
serious attention.

However, consent of all interested groups of the concerned companics is the primary
need in case of amalgamation scheme. But in the case of internal reconstruction scheme,
approval of the Court in addition to the consent of all interested parties of the company
being reconstructed is a must. Nevertheless, an in-depth accounting knowledge is exclusively
required for dralting any scheme, be it on amalgamation or on internal reconstruction.
Schemes on amalgamations and mergers are draficd keeping in view the recommendations
of AS-14.
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7.10 Exercises

Problem 1 :

Azad Lid. and Hind Ltd. propose to amalgamate. Their Balance Sheets as on March
31, 2005 were as below :

Balance Sheets as on March 31, 2005

(Rs: in crore)

Liabilities Azad Hind Asgels Azad Hind
Ltd, Ltd. Ltd. Lid.
Rs. Rs. Rs, Rs.
Equity Share Capital 10.00 4.00 | Fixed Asscts 8.00 2.00
(Shares of (less depreciation)
Es. 10D cach) Investment (Face
General Reserve 4.00 0.40 | value Rs. 2 crore in
Profit and Loss Alc 2.00 0.60 | 6% Tax Free
Creditors 2.00 1.00 | G. P. Notes) 2.00 —_
Stock 4.00 2.60
Deblors 3.40 .20
Cash and Bank .60 0.20
18.00 6.00 18.00 6.00
Met earnings after taxation (Rs, in crore) Azad Ltd. Hind Ltd.
For the year ended 31.3.2003 2.60 . 0.90
For the vear ended 31.3.2004 2.50 (.80
For the ycar ended 31.3.2005 3.00 142

Goodwill may be taken at 4 years” purchase of average super profits from frading
on the basis of 15% normal trading profit on closing capital invested. The stock of Azad
Ltd. and Hind Ttd. to be taken at Rs. 4.08 crore and Rs. 2.84 crore respectively. Azad-lind
Ltd is formed for the purpose of amalgamation in ihe nature of purchase of both the
companies.

Advise upon capitalisation of Azad-Hind Ltd. and suggest a scheme of amalgamation for
that purpose. Draft the Balance Sheet of Azad-Hind Ltd.

Problem 2

The fwo Companies, A Ltd. and B Ltd. are to be merged. Their Balance Sheels are
as below ;
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Balance Sheets as

on March 31, 2005

Draft a scheme of merger.

Problent 3 :

Liabilities AL | B L Assets A Ltd. | B Lid.
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Equity Shares of Fined Assets 2,530,000 | 240,000
Rs.10 each 3.20,000 | 2,00,000 | Stock 92,000 | 100,000
6% Pref, Shares of Deblors 10,000 | 1,04,000
Rs.100 each — | 80,000 | Cash and Bank 18,000 26,000
8% Debentures — | 40,000
General Reserve 32,000 32,000
Profit & Loss Alc 70,000 | 70,000
Creditors 48,000 | 48,000 _
4,70,000 | 4,70,000 4,770,000 | 4,70,000
Profit and Loss Account balances are made up as follows :
A Litd. B Ltd,
(Rs.) (Rs.)
Balance on 1.4.2004 14,000 14,000
Add : Profit before debenture interest during year ended 31.3.05 56,000 56,000
70,000 70,000

The following is the abridged Balance Sheet of Dark [.td. as on March 31, 2005 :

Liabilities Amount Assets Amount
Rs. Rs.

Paid up Capital : Goodwill at cost 60,000

2,000 6% Cum. Preference | Net Tangible Assets 3,04,000

Shares of Rs. 100 each 2.00,000 | Profit and Loss Afc 1,36,000

3,000 Eq. Shares of

Rs. 100 each 3,086,000

5,00,000 5,00,000

Preference dividend is in arrear for three years. Net tangible asscts are estimated to be
worth Rs. 2,72,000, Annual expected profit will be Rs. 30,000,

Draft a scheme of internal reconstruction fo be submitted to the Board of Directors.
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Problem 4

Udayachal Ltd. which suffered heavy losses in the past considers that the worst is over
and that, on a sound reorganisation, it will be able to carry on business successfully, profits
in future being cxpected to be between Rs. 1,00,000 and Rs. 1,36,000 before providing for
interest but after charging adequate depreciation. The Balance Sheet of the company as on
March 31, 2005 is as follows ;

Liabilities Amount Assets Amount
: Rs. Rs,
Share Capital : Sundry Fixed Assets
4.800 6% Cum. Preference (less Depreciation) 16,00.000
Shares of Rs. 100 each 480,000 | Sundry Floating Assets 816,000
4,000 Equity Shares of Cash ‘al Bank 96,000
Rs. 100 cach ; 8,00,000 | Profit and Loss Alc 17,12,000
5% Debentures (Rs. 100 each) | 21,44,000
Interest due on above 64,000
Tax Liability 16,000
Creditors (Unsecured) 7,20,000 i
42,24,000 42,24,000

Preference dividend is in arrear for two years. Debentures carry a [loating charge on
all assets of the company. Sundry fixed assets are worth Rs, 8,00,000 and the sundry floating
assets are worth Rs. 6,40,000.

The Board of Directors of the company requests you to draft a scheme of internal
reconstruction, which would be acceptable to all the interested groups.

Problem 5

Morth-East India Ltd. has experienced difficultics. Tt is decided to reconstruct the
company internally. The following is the Balance Sheet as on March 31, 2005 :

Liabilities Amount Assels Amount

Rs. ' Rs.
Share Capital : Land and Building 2,25.000
6,000 7%% Pref, Shares of Plant and Machinery 4,50,000
Rs. 100 cach fully paid 6,00,000 | Patents : 60,000
4,500 Equity Shares of Stock 2,25,000
Rs. 100 cach fully paid 4,50,000 | Debtors 490,000
6% Diebentures (Rs. 100 each) | 3,00,000 | Cash at Bank 7,500
Trade Creditors 5,25.000 | Profit and Loss Al 817,500
18,75,000 18,75,500
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An analysis of causes leading to losses in the past reveals that processes are outdated
end that sulficient credit is not allowed. Modernisation ol plant will cost Rs. 3,00,000; Rs.
1,50,000 worth of present plat being retired and sold for Rs. 30,000

Two months® credit has to be allowed for sales lo be maintained at their proper level
of Rs. 18,00,000 leading to a profit before interest of Rs. 90,000.

Trade Creditors include Rs. 30,000 payable to preferential creditors. Land and Building
is valued at Rs. 2,70,000 and Patents are worth only Rs. 15,000: Preference dividend is in
arrear for four years. You may assume the company has to pay nothing for income tax for
coming few years,

Submit your proposal for reconstruction of the company.

7.11 Questions

Q.1

Q.2
Q.3

Q.4

What do you mean by the terms ‘scheme of amalgamation’? Explain different steps
of the scheme of amalgamation?

What are the lypes of amalgamation? Explain each of them:

What is meant by scheme of amalgamation? What are the pre-requisites of internal
reconstruction 7

How ¢an you draft a scheme of internal reconstruction which will be acceptable
1o all the interested groups of the company being reconstructed?

7.12 Suggested Readings

Chakraborty, H :  ddvanced Accountancy, Oxford University Press,

Shukla, M.C; Grewal, T. 8. & Gupta, 5. C : ddvanced Accownts, 5. Chand & Co.
{Pvi) Lid.

Maheshwari, 5N ; Advanced Accountancy, Vikas Publishing House Pwt, Ltd.
The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India : dccounting Standard-14.
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Unit 8 [] Segment Reporting

Structure
8.0 Objective
8.1 Introduction
8.2 General Meaning of Segment
8.3 ldentification of Segment
8.3.1 Business or Industrial Segment
8.3.2 Geographical Segment
8.3.3 Reportable Segment
8.3.4 Primary and Secondary Segment
8.4 Need for Segment Reporting
8.5 Benefits of écgmcnt Reporting
8.5.1 Benefits of Segment Reporting from the point of view of Users
8.5.2 Benefits of Segment Reporting from the point of view of Companies
8.6 Segment Accﬂunt-ing Policies
8.7 Disclosure Requirements of Segment Reporting as per AS-17
8.7.1 Disclosures Based on Primary Reporting Format
8.7.2 Disclosure Based on Secondary Reporting Format
8.7.3 Other Disclosures
8.8 Summary
8.9 Questions

8.10 Suggested Reading

8.0 Objective

By the time you have gone through this unit you will be able to :

% know the meaning of segment;

&

know the classification and identification of segment;

b

know the benefits of segment reporting;

g

know the sepment accounting policies; and

Lag

know the disclosure requirements of segment reporting as per AS-17.
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8.1 Introduction

Presently, we are passing through the age of change where everything tends to change,
Those who cannot adapt to the change become backbenchers. Keeping pace with the
changes, different universities, professional accounting bodies, viz., ICAT, ICWAL, TTM,
efc., and other educational institutions have been changing their course curricula, Financial
reporting, a part of accounting, is not an exception to this rule. Users of financial
information are not satisficd with the consolidated form of information, In addition, they
require specific information for individual parts of the business. As a result, the ICAI has
issued ‘4S8-17: Segment Reporting ' for compliance in maintaining aceounts and reporting
thercof by Indian companies.

8.2 General Meaning of Segment

Generally “segment’ refers to a part cut off or a portion or a section of the totality.
Likewise, in business, it means sectionalisation or categorisation of products or services
and business zones of the company on the basis of dominance. In other words, dominating
products ot services and business zones of an cnferprise are known as segments.
Identilication of segment into various categories is needed for providing useful information
to the users.

8.3 Identification Segment

AS-17 distinguish between business segment and geographical sepment and identifies
the factors that are to be taken into consideration in their determination, Dilferent types of
segments along with the factors that are to be considered in their identification are explained
in the paragraphs that follow.

. 8.3.1 Business or Industrial Segment

It is a distinguishable component of an enterprise that is enpaged in providing an
individual product or service or a group of related products or services and that is subject
to risks and returns that are different from those of other business segments. Factors that
should be considered in determining business or industrial segments include :

{(a) the nature of the products or services;
(b) the nature of the production processes;

(c) the type or elass of customers for the products or scrvices;
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(d) the methods used to distribute the products or provide the services; and

(¢) if applicable, the nature of the regulatory environment, for example, banking,
insurance, or public utilities.

8.3.2 Geographical Segment :

[t is a distinguishable component of an enterprise that is engaged in providing products
or services within a particular economic environment and that is subject to risks and returns
that are dilferent from thosc of components operating in other economic environments,
Factors that should be considered in identifying geographical segments include ;

“(a) similarity of economic and political conditions;

(b) relationships between operations in different geographical areas;

(¢) proximity of operalions;

(d) special risks associated with operations in a particular area;

(e) exchange control regulations: and

(f) the underlying currency risks.

8.3.3 Reportable Segment :

Once the business and geographical segments are identified, the management has to
decide whether these sepments are reportable segments. As per the Standard, a segment
-with 10% or more of total revenues, profit (or loss) or identifiable asscts becomes a
reportable segment. The Standard also stipulates that if total external revenue attributable
to reporiable scgments constitutes less than 75% of the total revenue of the enterprise,
additional scgments should be identified as reportable segments, even if they do not meet
the 10% criterion, to make the revenue of the reportable segments at least equivalent to
75% of total revenue of the enterprise. Thus, a segment may be considered as a reportable
segment which satisfies the following test :

(1) Revenue Test—Segment revenue is 10% or more of the total revenue, external

and internal, of all segments.

(2) Profit or Loss Test—The absolute amount ol segment operating profit or loss is
10% or more of the greater, in absolute amount, either of (a) combined profit of
all sepments reporting profit, or (b) combined loss of all segments reporting loss.

(3) Asset Test—Segment assets are 10% or more of combined assets of all segments,

(4) 75% Test—After the 10% tests are completed, a 75% test should be performed.
The total external revenue of all reportable segments should be at least 75% of
the total external revenues of all segments.
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8.3.4 Primary and Secondary Segment :

After ascertainment of reportable segment, the management has to determine the
segment either into (a) primary segment, or (b) secondary segment. The primary segment
and secondary segment are determined by dominant source and nature ol an enterprise’s
risk and returns as follows :

(1) Anenterprisc’s primarty scgments arc business segments if its risks and retums are
affected predominantly by differences in the products and services which it
produces, and an enterprise’s primary segments are geographical scgments if its
risks and returns arc affected predominantly by the fact that it operates in different
countries or geographical areas.

(1) When an enterprise’s risks and returns are predominantly affected by the
differences in both the products and services it sells and geographical arcas where
it operates, it should use business segments as primary segments and geographical
segments as secondary segments,

8.4 Need for Segment Reporting

Many large companies are engaged in the production and distribution of different
products or services not only to serve the home market but also to serve the global market,
However, currently there has been a trend toward diversification, both by line of business
and geographical area, Keeping this in view, large companics operale either in a number
of industries or in a number of countries, or both. Again, many companies are so diversified
that domestic operations account for a minority of total revenues and no single business
sector predominates. Thus, busincss locations nl'mmpanie:'-: are not confined to any
country’s territory; even it extends to any place of the world. This phenomenon has gained
importance with the emergence of globalisation and liberalisation all over the world.

A business enterprisc has to perform many functions int:liucling financial reporting for
the users. In order to discharpe financial reporting function, usually consolidated financial
information is provided without disaggregating information on the basis of products or
services and business locations. Pr't_widing thig type of information will serve only the
purpose of general assessment ol the business. In this situation, some users arc directly
affected by only one part of the company’s business. But the information need of the users
is more than general information. Rather they are interested in getting sepment information
with a view to measuring the efficacy or otherwise of the segments so that they can evaluate
the overall performance ol a business enterprise in a better manner.,
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8.5 Benefits of Segment Reporting

The area of financial reporling where segment-wise financial reporting practices are
followed, may be considered as Segment Reporting. Many large companics with
diversified product lines and segments may differ from each other in respect of profitability,
growth potential and risk. In this context, they essentially make segment reporting for
highlighting different issues which are of immense help to the users of segment information
in particular and consolidated information in general for measuring overall performance of
companies. Segment reporting is surely beneficial to the users of financial information but
it is also beneficial to the companies themselves in may respects. The benefits of scgment
reporting may be discussed from the point of view of companies and users as well, in the
sub-heads that follow. '

8.5.1 Benefits of Segment Reporting from the point of view of
users

Users of information are benefited in a number of ways as below :

(1) It helps in providing a complete picture of information as required by the users.
(2) It helps the users in evaluating the efficiency or otherwise of cach segment.

(3) It helps to assess the safety and security of the funds invested by the investors.

(4) It helps to create conlidence or otherwisc in the minds of the existing and
prospective investors. As a result, they may invest their funds accordingly.

(5) Tt helps in feeling good or otherwise in the matter of social security of the
cmployees.

(6) 1t helps the existing and prospeciive investors to understand the stock market
reaction,

8.5.2 Benefits of Segment chnrtmg from the point of view of
companies

Every company derives the following benefits from segment reporting :

(1) The main benefit of segment reporting is that it enables prediction of future cash
flows and the risk thercof. ;

(2) It provides a complete picture of the affairs of each segment. The result of each
segment may be suitably compared with those of similar other segments over a
number of years. This will facilitate management control over the working of cach
scgment.
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(3) It not only helps in explaining segment-wise performance but it also helps in
exhibiting financial position which are required in framing policy-making exercise.
Based on it, the management can take decision for business expansion or
otherwisc,

(4) It helps to raise funds for anticipated expansion of the segments and the company
as a whole. /

(5) It helps the management to take suitable measure, if any, to counter the challenges
from adverse stock market reaction of its securities.

(6) Ithelps management in taking decisions in respect of closing down or reorganising
of a particular segment by the process of critical evaluation where segment
reporting is in force. For example, a company as a whole might have been
performing badly over the few years and if it is allowed to perform badly for
another few years, the liquidation will be the only alternative of the company. In
this situation, the management may think of either closing down or reorganising its
business. But, where the segment accounting and reporting is in force, they may
observe that a few segments are performing very badly and a few are performing
satisfactorily. As a result, they may take the decision of closure or reorganisation
of badly performed segments.

8.6 Segment Accounting Policies

As per AS-17, an enterprise should follow uniform segment accounting policies in the
following lines :

(1) Segment information should be prepared in conformity with the accounting policies
adopted for preparing and presenting the financial statements of the enterprise as a whole,

(2) There is a presumption that the accounting policies that the directors and
. management of an enterprise have chosen to use in preparing the financial statements of the
enterprise as a whole are those that the directors and management belicve are the most
appropriate for external reporting purposes. Since the purpose of segment information is
lo help users of financial statements to better understand and to make more informed
Judgements about the enterprise as a whole, the Standard requires the use, in preparing
segment information, of the accounting policies adopted for preparing and presenting the
financial statements of the enterprise as a whole, That does not mean, however, that the
enterprise accounting policies are to be applied to reportable segments as if the segments
were separale stand-alone reporting entities. A detailed calculation done in applying a
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particular accounting policy at the enterprisc-wide level may be allocated to scgments if
there is a reasonable basis for doing so. Pension calculations, for example, often are done
for an enterprise as a whole, but the enterprisc-wide figures may be allocated to sepments
based on salary and demographic data [or the scgments.

(3) The Standard does not prohibit the disclosure of additional segment information
that is prepared on a basis other than the accounting policies adopted for the enterprise
financial statements of the enterprise provided that (a) the information is reported internally
{0 the board of directors and the chief executive olficer for purposes of making decisions
about allocating resources to the segment and assessing its performance; and (b) the basis
of measurement for this additional information is clearly described.

(4) Assets and liabilities that relate jointly to two or more segnmnfs should be
allocated to segments if, and only if, their related revenucs and expenses also are allocated
to those segments.

(5) The way in which asset, liability, revenue, and expense items are allocated to
segments depends on such factors as the nature of those items, the activities conducted by
the segment, and the relative autonomy of that segment. It is not possible or appropriate
to specify a single basis of allocation that should be adopted by all enterprises; nor is it
appropriate to force allocation of enterprise asset, liability, revenue, and expense items that
relate jointly to two or more segments, il the only basis for making those allocations is
arbitrary. At the same time, the definitions of segment revenue, segment cxpense, segment
assets, and sepment liabilities are interrelated, and the resulting allocations should be
consistent. Therefore, jointly used assets and liabilities are allocated to segments if, and only
if, their related revenues and expenses also are allocated to those segments. For example,
an assel is included in segment assets if, and only if, the related depreciation or amottisation
is included in scgment expense.

8.7 Disclosure Requirements of Segment Reporting as per
AS-17

As-17 deals with the disclosure of information on the basis of segment of an enterprise
in the financial statements. The objective of segment reporting is to establish principles for
reporting financial information in annual financial statements by scgment, i.¢,, information
about the different types of products and services an enterprise produces and the different
geographical areas in which it operates,
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Tor the purpose of disclosure of segmental information, the Standard also distinguishes
between primary segment and secondary segment and suggests pritnary and secondary
reporting formats respectively for them. For example, if risks and returns of an enterprise
are affccted predominantly by differences in the products and services it produces, its
primary format for reporting segment information should be business secgments, with
secondary information reported geographically. Similarly, if risks and returns of an
enterprise are affected predominantly by the fact that it operates in different countries or
other geographical areas, its primary format for reporting segmental information should be
geographical segments, with secondary information reported for groups of related products
and services. The disclosure requirements are given in Scetions 8.7.1, 8.7.2 and 8.7.3.

8.7.1 Disclosures Based on Primary Reporting Format

1. An enterprise should disclose the following for each reportable segment based on
primary reporting format :
(a) segment revenue, classified into segment revenue from sales to external customers
and segment revenue from transactions with other segments;

(b) segment resull;
(c) total carrying amount of segment assets;
(d) total amount of segment liabilities;

(e) total cost incurred during the period to acquire segment assets that are expected
to be used during more than one period (tangible and intangible fixed assets);

(f) total amount of expense included in the segment result for depreciation and
amortisation in respect of segment assets for the period; and

(g) total amount of significant non-cash expenses, other than depreciation and
amortisation in respect of segment assets, that were included in segment expense
and, therefore, deducted in measuring segment result.

2. Paragraph 1. (b) requires an enterprise to report segment result. If an enterprise
can compute segment net profit or loss or some other measure of segment profitability
other than segment result, without arbitrary allocations, reporting of such amount(s) in
addition to segment result is encouraged. If that measure is prepared on a basis other than
the accounting policies adopted for the financial statements of the enterprise, the enterprise
will include in its financial statements a clear description of the basis of measurement.

3 . Ancxample of a measure of segment performance above segment result in the.
statement of prolit and loss is gross margin on sales. Examples of measures of segment
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performance below segment result in the statement of profit and loss are profit or loss from
ordinary activities (cither before or after income taxes) and net profit or loss.

4. AS-5, ‘Net Profit or Loss for the Period, Prior Period Items and Changes
in Accounting Policies ' requires that “when items of income and expense within profit or
loss from ordinary activities are of such size, nature or incidence that their disclosure is

relevant to explain the performance of the enterprise for the period, the nature and amount

of such iterns should be disclosed separately”. Examples of such items include write-downs
of inventoties, provisions for restructuring, disposals of fixed assets and long-term
investments, legislative changes having retrospective application, litigation seftlements, and
reversal of provisions. An enterprise is encouraged, but not required, to disclose the nature
and amount of any items of segment revenue and segment expensc that are of such size,
nature, or incidence that their disclosure is relevant to explain the performance of the
segment for the period. Such disclosure is not intended fo change the classification of any
such items of revenue or expense from ordinary to extraordinary or to change the
measurement of such items. The disclosure, however, does change the level at which the

significance of such items is evaluated for disclosure purposes from the enterprise level to |

the segment level.

5. An enterprise that reports the amount of cash flows arising from operating,
investing and financing activities of a segment need not disclose depreciation and amortisation

expense and non-cash expenses of such segment pursuant to sub-paragraphs (f) and (g)

of paragraph 1.

6. AS-3, Cash Flow Statements, recommends that an enterprise should present a
cash flow statement that separately reports cash flows from operating, investing and
financing activities, Disclosure of information regarding operating, investing and financing
cash flows of each reportable segment is relevant in understanding the enterprise’s overall

financial position, lquidity, and cash flows. Disclosure of segment cash flow is, therefore,

encouraged, though not required. An enterprisc that provides segment cash flow disclosures
need not disclose depreciation and amortisation cxpense and non-cash cxpenses pursuant
to sub-paragraphs () and (g) of paragraph 1. :

7. An enterprise should present a reconciliation between the information disclosed for

reportable segments and the aggregated information in the enterprise financial statements. -

In presenting the reconciliation, segment revenue should be reconciled to enterprise
tevenue; segment result should be reconciled to enterprise net profit or loss; segment assets
should be reconciled to enterprise assets; and segment liabilities should be reconciled to
enterprise labilities,
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In fulfilling the disclosure requirements, we must remember, for cach reporlable
segment, the following :

- 1. A segmentidentified as a rcpnrtabla segment in the immediately preceding period
because it satisficd the relevant 10% criterion should continue to be a reportable
segment for the current period notwithstanding that its revenuc, result, and assels
all no longer meet the 10% criterion.

2. 1fasegment is identified as a reportable segment in the current period because
it satisfies the relevant 10% criterion, preceding-period segment data that is
presented for comparative purposes should, unless it is impracticable to do sa,
be restated to reflect the newly reportable segment as a scparate segment, even

if that segment did not satisfy the 10% criterion in the preceding period,

8.7.2 Disclosure Based on Secondary Reporting Format

1. Disclosure requirements for each reportable segment bclhBL‘]. on secondary reportling
format of an enterprise are as follows :

(a) if primary format of an enterprise is business segments, the required secondary-
format disclosures are given in paragraph 8.7.2.(2);

(b) if primary format of an enterprise is geographical segments based on location of
assets (where the products of the enterprise are produced or where its service
rendeting operations are based), the required secondary-format disclosures are
presented in paragraphs 8.7.2.(3) and 8.7.2.(4);

(c) if primary format of an enterprise is geographical segments based on the location
of its customers {where its produets are sold or services are rendered), the required
secondary-format disclosures are shown in paragraphs 8.7.2.(3) and 8.7.2.(4).

2. If primary format of an enterprise for reporting segment information is business
segments, it should also report the following information :

(a) segment revenue from external customers by gn:-;:-graplmal arca based on the
geographical location of its customers, for each geographical segment whose
revenue from sales to external customers is 10% or more of enterprise revenue;

(b) the total carrying amount of segment assets by geographical location of assets, for
each geographical segment whose segment assets are 10% or more of the total
assets of all geographical segments; and

(c) the total cost incurred during the period to acquire segment assets that are
expected to be used during more than one period (tangible and intangible fixed
assets) by geographical location of assets, for each geographical segment whose
segment assets are 10% or more of the total assets of all geographical segments.
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3. If primary formal of an enterprise for reporling segment information is geographical
segments (whether based on location of asscts or location of customers), it should also
report the following segment information for each business segment whose revenue from
sales to external customers is 10% or more of enterprise revenue or whose segment assets
are 10% or more of the total assets of all business segments :

{a) segment revenue from external customers;
(b) the tolal carrying amount of segment assets; and

(c) the total cost incurred during the period to acquire segment assets that are
expected (o be used during more than one period (langible and intangible lixed
assets).

4, If primary formal of an enterprise for reporting segment information is geographical
segments that are based on location of assets, and if the location of its customers is different
from the location of its asscts, then the enterprise should also report revenue from sales to
external customers for cach customer-based geographical segment whose revenue from
sales to exlernal customers is 10% or more of enterprise revenue.

5. [If primary format ol an enterprise for reporting segment information is geographical
segments that are based on location of customers, and if the assets of the enterprise are
located in geographical areas dillerent [rom its customers, then the enterprise should also
report the following segment information for each asset-based geographical segment whose
revenue from sales to external customers or scgment assets are 10% or more of total
enterprise amounts :

(a) the total carrying amount of segment assets by geographical location of the assets;
and ;

(b) the total cost incurred during the period to acquire segment assets that are
expected to be used during more than one period (tangible and intangible fixed
assets) by location of the assets.

8.7.3 Other Disclosures

An enterprise should comply with other disclosure requirements for its reportable
segment in the following lines :

1. Inmeasuring and reporting segment revenue [rom transactions with other segments,
inter-segment transfers should be measured on the basis that the enterprise actually used
to price those transfers. The basis of pricing inter-segment transfers and any change therein
should be disclosed in the financial statements.
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2. Changes in accounting policies adopted for segment reporting that have a material
effcct on segment information should be disclosed. Such disclosure should include a
deseription of the nature of the change, and the financial effect of the change if it is
reasonably determinable.

3. AS-5 requires that changes in accounting policies adopted by the enterprige
should be made only if required by statute, or for compliance with an accounting standard,
or if it is considered that the change would result in a more appropriate presentation of
events or (ransactions in the financial statements of the enterprise.

4. Changes in accounting policies adopled at the enterprisc level that affect segment
information are dealt with in accordance with AS-5, AS-5 requires that any change in an
accounting policy which has a material effect, should be disclosed. The impaci of, and the
adjustments resulting from such change, if material, should be shown in the financial
statemnents of the period in which such change is made, to reflect the cffect of such change.
Where the effect of such change is not ascertainable, wholly or in patt, the fact should be
indicated. If a change is made in the accounting policies which has no material effect on

"maneial statements for the current period but which is reasonably expected to have a -
material effect in later periods, the fact of such change should be appropriately disclosed
in the period in which the change is adopted.

5. Some changes in accounting policies relate specifically to segment reporting,
Examples include changes in identification of segments and changes in the basis of allocating
revenues and expenses to segments. Such changes can have a significant impact on the
segment information reported but will not change aggregate financial information reported
for the enterprise. To enable users to understand the impact of such changes, the Standard
requires the disclosure of the nature of the change and the financial effect of the change,
if reasonably determinable.

6. An enterprise should indicate the types of products and services included in
each reported business segment and indicate the composition of each reported
geographical segment, both primary and secondary, if not otherwise disclosed in the
finangial statements.

7. To assess the impact of such matters as shifts in demand, changes in the prices
of inputs or other factors of production, and the development of alternative products and
processes on a business segment, il is necessary to know the activities encompassed by
that segment. Similarly, to assess the impact of changes in the cconomic and political
environment on the risks and returns of a geographical segment, it is important to know the
composition of that geographical segment,
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AS-17 was mandatory with effect from the accounting year commencing on or after
1.4.2001 for (a) listed companics or companics whose shares and debentures are
in the process of enlisting on a recognised stock exchange in India as evidenced by
the board of directors’ resolution in this regard; and (E] all other commercial,
industrial and business enterprises whose turnover for the accounting petiod exceeds
Rs.50 crore.

8.8 Summary

Segment reporting is made [or both the internal and external purposcs. It plays an
important role in disseminating disaggtegated information fo the users. Users of information
may feel good in evaluating segment performance and overall performance of the company.
‘This might cncourage them. Stock market might show its reaction. Scgment reporting also
helps the management in framing policy decisions and in measuring growth potential, risks
and returns. When segment reporting is used for internal purposes, it provides an
opportunity to the management to keep constant watch over the bad and good performing
segments, As a result, they can take corrective measures for the badly performing segment.
They can also think about expansion for good performing segment with a view o enhancing
overall profit of the company.

8.9 Questions

(.1 What do you mean by segment as used in business? How would you identify
segmenl into different types?

. (.2 What is segment reporting? Why is segment reporting needed? What are the
benefits of segment reporting?

Q.3 Are all companies bound to comply with the disclosure requirements under A5-177
State the disclosures that are to be made for each reportable segment based on the
primary reporling format.

Q.4 How would you distinguish between primary segment and secondary segment?
What are the disclosure requirements that are to be made for each reportable
segment based on the secondary reporting format?

Q.5 Why should uniform accounting policies o be followed in segment reportiﬁg‘? What
are the other disclosures in segment reporting?
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8.10 Suggested Readings

1. Schedule VI of the Companies Act, 1956 (Relevant portion).

2. Banerjee, B: Regulation of Corporate Accounling and Reporting in [ndia,
World Press Pvt. Lid.

3. Sen, 5: “Segment Reporting—An Overview” in Banerjee, B. and Basu, A, K fed.),
Corporate Financial Reporting, DSA in Commerce, Calcutta University, 2001,

4. The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India: Accounting Stamdard-17,

The Securities and Exchange Board of India: Guidelines and Regulations
(Relevant portion).
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